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The CHAIR: Welcome to the first hearing of the Portfolio Committee No. 4 - Regional NSW inquiry
into budget estimates2024-2025.1 acknowledge the Gadigal people of the Eora nation, the traditional custodians
of the lands on which we are meeting today.I pay my respects to Elders past and present, and celebrate the
diversity of Aboriginal peoples and their ongoing cultures and connectionsto the landsand waters of New South
Wales. I also acknowledge and pay my respects to any Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people joining us
today. My name is Mark Banasiak and I am the Chair of the Committee. I welcome Minister Moriarty and
accompanying officials to this hearing. Today the Committee will examine the proposed expenditure for the
portfolios of Agriculture, Regional New South Wales, and Western New South Wales.

I ask everyone in the room to please turn their mobile phones to silent. Parliamentary privilege applies
to witnesses in relation to the evidence they give today. However, it does notapply to what witnesses say outside
ofthe hearing, so I urge witnesses to be carefulabout makingcomments to the media orto others after completing
their evidence. In addition, the Legislative Council has adopted rules to provide procedural fairness for inquiry
participants. I encourage Committee members and witnesses to be mindfulof these procedures. To the witnesses,
I welcome and thank you for making the time to give evidence. All witnesses will be sworn prior to giving
evidence. Minister Moriarty, I remind you that you do not need to be sworn as you have already sworn an oath to
your office as a member of Parliament.
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Mr STEVE ORR, Secretary, Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development, affirmed and
examined

Mr JAMES BOLTON, Deputy Secretary, Regional Development and Delivery, and Chief Executive, Regional
Growth NSW Development Corporation, Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development, affirmed
and examined

Ms RACHEL CONNELL, Deputy Secretary, Agriculture and Biosecurity, Department of Primary Industries
and Regional Development, affirmed and examined

Mr SEAN SLOAN, Deputy Secretary, Fisheries and Forestry, Department of Primary Industries and Regional
Development, affirmed and examined

Mr ROB KELLY, Executive Director, Regional Delivery, Local Land Services, Department of Primary
Industries and Regional Development, sworn and examined

Dr ADAM TYNDALL, Executive Director, Strategy, Media and Ministerial Services, Department of Primary
Industries and Regional Development, sworn and examined

Dr LISA SZABO, Acting Executive Director, Biosecurity and Food Safety, Department of Primary Industries
and Regional Development, affirmed and examined

Mr DAVID McPHERSON, Executive Director, Forestry and Land Reform, Department of Primary Industries
and Regional Development, affirmed and examined

Dr KIM FILMER, Chief Animal Welfare Officer, Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development,
affirmed and examined

Mr ANSHUL CHAUDHARY, Chief Executive Officer, Forestry Corporation of NSW, affirmed and examined

Ms KATE LORIMER-WARD, Chief Executive Officer, LocalLand Services, Department of Primary Industries
and Regional Development, affirmed and examined

The CHAIR: Today's hearing will be conducted from 9.15 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. We are joined by the
Minister forthe morning session from 9.15a.m.to 1.00 p.m., with a 15-minute break at 11.00 a.m. In the aftemoon
we will hearfrom departmental witnesses from 2.00 p.m.to 5.30 p.m., with a 15-minute break at3.30 p.m. During
these sessions there will be questions from the Opposition and crossbench members only, and then 15 minutes
allocated for Government questions at 10.45 a.m., 12.45 p.m.and 5.15 p.m. We will begin with questions from
the crossbench.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Good moming, Minister. I'd like to ask youa few questions about Labor's
election commitments regarding animal welfare reforms. Where is the puppy farm legislation up to?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure. I also just apologise in advance, particularly to Hansard. Ithas
been an eventfullast four days,but we'll do the best we canto make sure I'm audible and picked up on the mics.
On puppies in particular, as you would be aware and as others are aware, we did make an election commitment to
end puppy farmingin New South Wales, and also being mindful in that commitment of looking at what happens
in other States and Territories. That commitment is well underway to being delivered. We are currently doing
what I would describe as the final round of consultation with businesses in the sector.

I'm very, very keen to deliver on this election commitment because of course we want to stamp out bad
operators—backyard operators who are not doing the right thing. But the truth of the matteris there is not a lot of
information that exists about operatorsin New South Wales, good, bad or indifferent. There is a registry through
DOGS NSW, but there is not a requirement for people who breed animals to register through that organisation.
We're doing the final consultation round with industry just to make sure that, whilst we're really keen to weed out
bad operators,] don't want to accidentally cause issues for people who are doing the right thing in this space. The
work is almost completed, and I expect to be bringing a bill before the Parliament very soon.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Do we havea datearound thator not—Ilike a month or anythinglike that
that you're hopeful for?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I expect to be bringing a bill very soon.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Theinquiry into puppy farmingthat wasrun by the Hon. Mick Veitch also
made a recommendation to stop the sale of puppies and kittens at pet shops and to move these into adoption
centres, which is still a very financial business model. That was because we heard at the inquiry that pet shops
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often actassmokescreens for puppy farmsand that reputable breeders actually don't sell through pet shops. Does
the bill propose to deal with that aspect, which was a recommendation supported by Labor in that inquiry?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: There are a couple of things thatI'd say about that. I've got joint
responsibility for this Act with the Minister for Local Government. Part of what happens in terms of animal
welfare, as you would be well aware, is covered by POCTAA and the Companion Animals Act, which I don't
haveresponsibility for.I'd say thatatthe outset. What we committed to was to putan end to puppy farming, and
that's the bad backyard breeding operations. That's what the bill will be addressing.

As I'said in my previous answer, there's justnot a lot. It's really quite disgraceful thatthere's not a lot of
information about how these breeders are operatingacross the State.I want to make sure that we are capturing the
bad guys, as I said, without penalising the good ones, but atthe same time makingsure that we're setting things
up for the future. The focus for the bill will be about, first of all, delivering the election commitment but also
ensuring thatthereis atleast some basic information going forward about these businesses and breeders thatare
operating in the State, including having them registered. That's the focus for this bill at this stage.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Will pet shops be potentially looked at further on down the line?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: That will be something that the Government will have to consider.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: You mentioned when you first were talking more broadly about the
legislation thatyou were also wanting to target backyard breeding. Within the otherportfolio committee that I'm
on, we have obviously been looking atpounds. The pounds were saying thatbackyard breeders were one of the
biggest causesof animalsending up in the pounds. How will this legislation help to stop that backyard breeding?
Are there plans to actually make backyard breeding itself illegal?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: EvenI haveused the term "backyard breeding" here, but it's actualy
a challenging term because there's not really a definition of what that means. There are good people who are
breeding in those terms.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: By backyard breeding, I will just clarify that mean unregistered breeders
who may only have one or two animals butthey are doing it for a quick buck. They are not qualified in any way
ortrained in any way.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes, and I certainly understand where you're coming from. I think
we're on the same page about this. Just for the public's information, there are not really definitions about what
puppy farmsare or about what backyard breeders are, for example, even though I have just used the term. I guess
a better way to putit is to weed outrogue breeders or people who are not doing the right thing, but the legislation
will, importantly, capture anyone who is breeding animals for the reasons thatI outlined at the start. At the
moment,even the bare minimum doesn't apply. There is just not information or requirements for people to register
that they are breeding, whether they have one dogor 50. Part of what we will be doing is changing that so that
there is a requirement to register, whatever you're doing. If you're breeding one or two dogs, or more than that,
you will be required to register so that we can have a better chance of being able to monitor the rogues and the
people who are doing the wrong thing.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: How will that monitoringtake place? Will that be through the enforcement
agencies or somewhere else?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: AsI was saying, it also makes it easier forrogues to be ableto be dealt
with. At the moment, you might be a neighbour of somebody and you're not quite sure what is happeningor not
happeningbut, if you want to report it, there is notreally any criteria to check it against. We'll have atleast some

bare minimum standards to ensure that breeders are registered so that these things can be checked. The plan will
be—

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, who is doing the checks and the oversight? You said that it will help
identify some of these rogue operators so that they can be checked on. Who is actually doing that work?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Enforcementagencies who currently do animalwelfare enforcement—
including the RSPCA, the Animal Welfare League and, of course, the police—will be organisations that can
continue to be contacted if people have concerns or if there are places that need to be reported.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Given that will probably be an increase in workload for those three
agencies, will there be an increase in funding when this legislation goes through?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We will continue to work with animalwelfare agencies aswe are now.
Government has got a round of fundingopen now, which the animalwelfare agencies that are currently providing
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enforcement services are able to apply for. That's open at the moment. It's going to close, I think, from memory—
someone will correct me—on 13 September.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Will that include consideration of this legislation? Obviously, the
legislation might not necessarily be passed while they're applying for that funding, so they may not necessarily
know what kind of workload that would be.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The funding that's open now out of this year's budget, which these
organisations can apply for, is in relation to their enforcement activities as they stand. At the moment we've asked
them—I've got to follow the grants guidelines, asI've talked aboutin the House a number of times, in relation to
funding thatis available for charitable organisations who do enforcement work. That round, again, is open now,
anditis available forthese organisations to apply forto coverenforcement work as it currently happens. But thats
a matter for them.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: When will that decision be made on the amount of funding?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The applications are open right now, so we're working closely with
the existing operators. It will close—again, someone hasn't corrected me, but I think it's 13 September. So we'll
consider the applications.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: When will your decision be made?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: They will close on 13 September, and I will consider the information
that comes through after that. I want to get the money out the door as soon as possible.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Do you have any kind of timeline—one week, two weeks, three months
after the submissions close—for when you propose that you willhave made a decision around those grants?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Like I said, atthis stage, the applications will close on the thirteenth
and the department will consider the information that comes through. I will make some decisions after that.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: So there is no timeline, at this point, as to when those grants will be
allocated or decided upon?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Applications will close on the thirteenth, and then I will work through
them with the department.I wantto get the money out the door as soon as possible, but I've got to follow proper
processes. So as soon as possible.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are you aware that Minister Kamper met with DOGS NSW in May this
year to discuss puppy farming legislation?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sorry, I don't track the diaries of my colleagues. I believe thathe did,
if you're telling me that he did.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: So he hasn't spoken to you about that meetingat all?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Colleagues meet with stakeholders all the time. I've talked broadly
with people across the Government about the election commitmentsthat we'll be delivering on in this space. I'm
sure people have breeders in their electorates that they have been talking to as well, so I expect people would
consult widely on it.

The CHAIR: Minister, I'm going to start with some questions around the independent NSW Agriculture
Commissioner. Where are we up to with that? The last information on the department's website was from
14 December last year. Have we appointed somebody yet?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: In fact, have just announced this morning that I'll be bringing in a
bill.

The CHAIR: I must have missed it.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm happy tosend you the media release, butI'll give you the details
now. I will be bringing in a bill, hopefully in the next session of Parliament—it depends on the agenda of the
Government, butI'd like to bring it in in the next session of Parliament—to deliver ourcommitment in full. I asked
the formerag commissioner, Daryl Quinlivan, who hasdone some great work in this space, to help meto deliver
on this election commitment. He provided a report to me late last year—which is, I'd say, what you're referring
to—to do this, potentially, in stages. In fact, what we've decided to do is deliver it in full now.

There are a lot of issues, aspeople would be well aware, to get advice on and to manage. The Agriculture
Commissioner's role will be an important role, an independent role and a statutory role to provide advice to me
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and to the Government on how we deal with some of the issues that need to be dealt with across regional
New South Wales. Rather than doing it in a staged approach, we're going to introduce a bill. It will be similar to
what we did with the biosecurity commissioner, for those who took an interest in that. That will be very soon.

The CHAIR: So the process will be that we'll pass the bill, hopefully—
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Hopefully.
The CHAIR: —and then you'll go out for tender for the new ag commissioner.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes, thenwe'll look to appoint somebody.I'd like to get someone into
the role assoon as possible, hopefully, but that'sa matter forthe Parliament if the bill gets passed. I imagine that
it would but,again, I can't presume what Parliament will do. Then we'll be looking to appoint someone assoon as
possible.

The CHAIR: Will it be at the same pay scale that Mr Quinlivan was paid at?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I'll be honestandsay I'm not sure what he was paid at, but I'm happy
to take that on notice. The details of the payments, I'm also happy to take on notice. I'm happy to provide
information; I just don't have it to hand.

The CHAIR: As youalluded to, obviously one of the commissioner's roles will be to provide advice on
various issues. One of those issues is land use planning and land conflicts that are happening at the moment.
Particularly, at the front of a lot of people's minds is the conflict around renewable energy versus agricultural land.
The last Government exhibited a map in late 2021 around State significant agricultural land. Where are we up to
with providing an updated map based on community feedback? Is that your department or does that sit with
someone else?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Thatwill be partoftherole thatwe will ask the commissionerto fulfil.
I'm aware of the previous map. What we need to do is have someone complete that work, and we'll certainly be
tasking the ag commissioner with doing that. The ag commissioner and I will be consulting as widely aspossible
to make sure that we are getting that right.

The CHAIR: Hasanyonebeen doingwork on it in the meantime, or has it been sitting in stasis, waiting
for the ag commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, Daryl Quinlivan was in place for quite a period of time. We are
now looking to introduce this bill and put someone else into this new role as soon as possible.

The CHAIR: Do we havea finalised version of that matter from the former ag commissioner's work or
not?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, not at this stage.

The CHAIR: CanlI go to one of the other announcements made just the other day around the Forestry
Industry Action Plan? How is industry going to be engaged in that process?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I'm very keen to make sure that industry is engaged in the process.
Yes, we did announce in the last little while that Government has established a forestry committee to look at plans
for the forestry industry into the future. It's well pasttime that this was done. Unfortunately, it's been quite a tug
of war of an issue and it's not fair for people who are operating in the industry, but also for people who feel
passionately about the sector. We've asked Peter Duncan, who I understand is of the industry world, to chair that
paneland to do that work. I wantto hear from every part of industry aspart of that, justasI do now. The industry
action plan is really about developing a plan that makes it clear about what the forestry industry will look like,
whatit is going to be for, what the boundaries are, forwant of a better way of putting it, fornow into the next 20,
30 or 40 years so thatthere's certainty for everybody involved. I certainly will absolutely be including feedback
from industry in developing those plans.

The CHAIR: Can you explain a bit how the process is going to work? I've had representations from
industry saying, "How do I get on this panel?" or "How do I get on this committee?" [s it a case more that it's
going to work like a parliamentary inquiry where the panelthat you've established will interview and consult with
industry and then they will provide a report? Is that how it will work?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. The panel will led be Peter Duncan. Members will include
Professor Mary O'Kane, former chief scientist in New South Wales, and, of course, Mick Veitch, who people
know well in this place. They'll go out and consult with people and provide a report to Government about
recommendations for plans for the long-term future of the industry.
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The CHAIR: CanlI go backtothe commentsaround theagcommissionerand the REZ? Are they going
to be doing a body of work around calculatingthe amount of agricultural land that we need to feed this State and
offsetting that against what we need for renewable energy? Will that be part of their scope of works?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The first partof thatis right. They will havea very importantrole in
being I guess a voice, for want of a better way of putting it, for agricultural land across the State. It's really
important, of course, that we protect agricultural land for food production. I certainly understand that as the
Minister. It's more about the conflict issues that will be worked through with part of this role. Obviously, we're
committed to developing the energy future that we need in New South Wales. As people would be aware, that
was delivered under the previous Government and signed off in a bipartisan way. We're continuing the work that
was agreed before. The role will be more about dealing with the stakeholder views but not so much interfering,
again for want of a better way of putting it, in the plans for the energy future.

The CHAIR: Will they have any engagement with EnergyCo at all?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I would imagine they would.
The CHAIR: They would be included in their list of stakeholders.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: 1 think it's important that EnergyCo and anyone working in the
renewable space will be important organisation stakeholders for our commissioner to engage with, absolutely.

The CHAIR: The way you answered it implied that you won't be necessarily directing this ag
commissioner to talk to specific people or do specific things. Will you have the power to direct the ag
commissioner to look atparticular issues, or direct the ag commissioner to engage with certain groups or engage
with certain people?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. It will be a similar set-up to the biosecurity commissioner. The
role itself will be independent but we want it to provide advice to me and to government about some of these
issues. Yes, [ will be engaging directly with this role to do some of that work and I'm sure others will, too.

The CHAIR: Is it your intention that he or she will appear before estimates like the last ag
commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We'll work through that as part of the process that is underway in
drafting the bill but, again, it's similar to the biosecurity commissioner. The biosecurity commissioner can be
directed by me; can also do work independently.

The CHAIR: Thank you. I might pass to the Opposition.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Good morning, Minister. First, do you believe that all employment
appointments made by government should be conducted under a very transparent process?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think there should be transparency as much as possible in every
decision that government makes. I'm certainly keen to be as transparent as possible. Obviously, some parts of
government decision-making have to be kept confidential, including Cabinet processes, for very good reason, and
that's in the best interest of the State. But, of course, I believe in transparency. That's why I'm here.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You would agree that any employment appointments should be
conducted in a very transparent process. Do you agree with that statement?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think things that government does should be as transparent as
possible, absolutely.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: In yourtime as a Minister, have you ever made direct appointments?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: '"Direct appointments" in what regard?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Employment appointments.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: In the department?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No. Obviously, the Secretary is within my remit, but that's gone
through the public service process as well.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you ever given direction to the Secretary or to any other
departmental staff member to appoint a particular individual within the department?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No. Actually, I should say,the Secretary works for Premier's. Anyway,
proper process is involved, but that'sthe only position thatI havea particularinterest in. As I've said many times
before, I don't get involved in the internal workings of the department. It's not my role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you everoverridden an internal New South Wales government
agency recommendations for the recruitment of a senior role?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don't think so.I can't think of any, but I don't think so.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You don't think that you've ever had to override a decision?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'mnot sure, but if you've got a specific thing that you want to putto
me, you can, but I'm not sure.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: It's quite a specific question about if you've overridden a
recommendation or a decision that the department has put to you in your 18 months as a Minister.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I might've. I might not have.It's within my ability to do thatbutI try
to take advice as much as possible. I'm not sure.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You can'tdefinitively say nowthatyouhaven'toverridden a decision—
an internal New South Wales government agency recommendation—for the recruitment of any senior role?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don't think so, but I'm not sure.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Will you take it on notice?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure. I'm not sure what I'd take on notice, but I'm happy to.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, justto help with the situation, you'd be takingon notice: Have
youoverridden an internal New South Wales government agency recommendation forthe recruitment of a senior
role within the department? That is what you'd be taking on notice. Are you happy to do that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Instead of overriding, have you ever had to intervene in the process of
a New South Wales government internal agency recommendation for a senior role?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'mnot sure. There hasbeen quite a bit of movement overthe course
of the last year so I wouldn't categorically say. I'm not sure.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Okay.Hasanyonein youroffice,anyone from your chief of staff, media
team, or advisers ever had to intervene with a New South Wales government agency recommendation for the
recruitment of a senior role or intervened in that process?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'd have to check with my staff because I don't know what they're
doing allday, every day. I don't think so, but again I'm happy to check all these things.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, who was on the selection panel for the biosecurity
commissioner role?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Ican'tremember. Perhapssomeone in the department can remind me;
otherwise, I'll take it on notice. Sorry—I just can't remember.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr?

STEVE ORR: I can provide some assistance, if that's helpful, Mr Farraway. There was ultimately a
two-step process which occurred, so there was an initial round and that didn't lead to an appointment. Then we
engaged Rimfire Resources to go outand do some work—headhunting, if you like. They identified a number of
candidates, who were ultimately put to the Minister and the Minister made a decision with that information.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You talk about two rounds. Round one—who was on the selection
panel?

STEVE ORR: I'd need to come back to you on that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Are you sure you don't know, Mr Orr?

STEVE ORR: In terms of the biosecurity—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: There were only three of you. Who was on the panel?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: He's entitled to take questions on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Sloan looks like he wants to provide some—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Ifthere's anyone on the panel, I can explore—
STEVE ORR: IfI could just—are you talking about the first round?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes.

STEVE ORR: On the first round there was, in relation to the biosecurity commissioner, myself,
Mr Sloan and Dr Healy.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So Ms Healy was actually on the selection panelfor round one for the
role of the biosecurity commissioner.

STEVE ORR: Correct. That process then ended. There wasn't a successful person who was selected.
That was not the selection panel's decision; that was a decision of the Minister. Then we started a new process,
which I outlined before.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But the Minister would've taken the recommendation of that panel
Correct?

STEVE ORR: The matter was for the Minister to decide.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Okay,so who did—was there a candidate proposed to the Minister's
office from round one?

STEVE ORR: There were candidates who were put forward and the Minister made her decision.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So who was the candidate that was put forward from round one?

STEVE ORR: I'd need to take advice on what I can say about individuals through the process,
Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So would you be happy to take it on notice and maybe come backto us
in the afternoon?

STEVE ORR: Yes. Again, I'll need to take advice on what I can say about individuals.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Just for clarity, you will take on notice who was the preferred candidate
that that selection panel—of which Ms Healy was on that panel—proposed to the Minister.

STEVE ORR: What I'll take on notice will be what I can provide to youin terms of individual names,
because that's an issue about privacy, and, if [ can, I'll come back to you this afternoon.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, why did you reject the recommendation from the selection
panel from round one?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I would imagine thatl probably wasn't satisfied with the candidates.
People would be well aware, becauseit's been conducted in public, Dr Marion Healy did a bunch of work forus
in helping us to establish this role and the biosecurity commissioner. I didn't know her before we asked her to do
that work butI thought she was incredibly good atit so I'm actually really proud and delighted to have appointed
her as the biosecurity commissioner through these processes. All of that'sbeen open and transparent. She's going
to do a terrific job.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So to confirm, you didn't know Ms Healy prior to her being selected
for the role of the biosecurity commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, what I've just said is we engaged Dr Marion Healy to help us to
do some work to—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Excuse me, Minister, if I could intervene to say you did say—and I'm
happy for Hansard to correct me—you did not know Ms Healy prior to herdoing the work to set up the biosecurity
commissioner role. So my question is, again, just for clarity, did you know Ms Healy prior to her work with the
department and prior to being appointed the biosecurity commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure, and I'm very happy to answer that question, as I was doing,
Mr Farraway.Dr Marion Healy was engaged by the Government to put together some work as we developed the
biosecurity commissioner role. I did not know her before she was appointed to thatrole. I thought she was terrific
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in the work thatshe did to give us advice on how it should be established. In the end she hasbeen appointed to
that role and I think she's going to do a terrific job.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: For the Committee's attention, I am going to table a Daily Telegraph
article from 5 August 2023, and also some screenshots from your Facebook page, Minister, from 5 August as
well. It's talking about, obviously, a bit of transparency. You've made plenty of comments in the pastaround the
scrutiny and properand transparent processes that governments should undertake. You've been quite vocalon this
in your time as a Minister, so what I put to you, Minister, is we've just discovered and heard this moming in
evidence thatthe biosecurity commissioner was in fact on the selection panelfor therole thatshe was given from
round one. A different candidate was put forward to your office from round one. Don't you think this requires far
more transparency and far more scrutiny? Do you think this is something that perhaps you should review—this
process—because from the outset it doesn't appear to be very transparent at all?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, I think it's extremely transparentand,asI've just said, we engaged
Dr Marion Healy, who's got great expertise in this space, to assist the Government with setting up the role of the
biosecurity commissioner. It's not something that's existed—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Just to redirect, Minister—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: You've got to let me answer the question, Mr Farraway. You're either
going to let me answer the questions, or not.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Just to redirect, how is it transparent, Minister—

The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: ['d like to redirect from that first part of your answer. How—
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm going to answer the question.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Point of order—

The CHAIR: I'll hear the point of order.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: A pretty serious contention was put to the Minister in relation to
a lack of transparency. I think the nature of what was put should be taken into account in terms of what a reasonabke
opportunity to respond is, and I would suggest she's not being given that opportunity.

The CHAIR: Any points—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ meantosayI'm takingpart ofthatandredirecting to the point of the
question I was asking.

The CHAIR: For every Committee member's advisement we have got some advice from the Clerk
regarding this notion of redirecting. Notwithstanding thatthere isn't anythingin the standingorders around being
able to do it or not do it, it's suggested thatit be done in a way that doesn't impinge on the witness's right to
courteous dealings. If we are going to redirect, I would ask that we allow there to be a pause in a respondent's
answer so that would indicate that they're finished, potentially, or thatthey are finished—or it seemsthattheyare
finished. So we don'thave this talking over the top of each other.I will allow the Minister to finish what she was
saying, and then if you do wish to redirect, Mr Farraway, you can.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Thank you, Chair. I think it's importantthatI do outline the process,
given the questionsthat've just been putto me. I stand by the process. The transparency is, asthe memberhas put,
very important. Dr Marion Healy was engaged by the Government to do a piece of work on helping us to establish
the biosecurity commissioner role. It's not something that's existed in New South Wales before. She has a great
dealof expertise in the field and she was recommended to me as someone with that expertise to help us to design
therole. She did that.I wasvery impressed with the work that she did. I engaged with her directly on it, as did the
department. Yes, she was involved in a panelbecause, in fact, it would've been great to have herin therole sooner
than now, but for whateverreasons she—we engaged her to do a piece of work to help us set up the role. We then
engaged her to help us to select a person to fill the role. Recommendations have been made to me that weren't
satisfactory. That's not an unusual thing. I want to make sure that the role is fulfilled by the right person. It has
been filled by Dr Marion Healy, who has incredible expertise in this space. I stand by it. I look forward to the
work she does.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Thank you, Minister. We've got limited time and I've given fairly fair
latitude there. Minister, do you believe that your actions in this process have been transparent and meet all the
recruitment guidelines under the New South Wales Government recruitment guidelines?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I've justoutlined the process thattook place and I'm pleased with the
outcome that we've landed with.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, do youbelieve that you have met all the requirements under
the New South Wales Government's recruitment process and guidelines?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I've just outlined the process that occurred and I'm pleased with the
outcome.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So I'll take that as a yes. Minister, let's just recap. You engaged
Ms Healy to do work to set up the bio commissioner's role. Ms Healy is put onto the selection panel. That selection
panel interviews. They meet. They make a recommendation. The recommendation's sent to your office. Bearing
in mind Ms Healy is on thatpanel, youreject that. What was the second part of the process? Did you go back to
market and readvertise because you were unsatisfied with the applicant or applicants that were put to you?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Whatthetechnicalsteps were afterthat,Ithink MrOrr's outlined some
ofthem,butI can'trecall the specifics of the process. I'm happy to take that on notice. I think I already did. Where
we landed is an outcome that I'm very happy with.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How is it transparent and right thatthe person that becomes the
biosecurity commissioner was on the original selection panel that was part of making a recommendation—
obviously for a different candidate—who didn't apply for the role and who was part of the interviewing and
selection process. How is that right and transparent?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Shewas also the person that we engaged to help set up therole because
she's got expertise in this space. That's transparent. I've been very open about that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: To thatpoint, Minister, how is it transparent and correct that the person
that sets the role up ends up getting the role?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The Government set the role up.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You justsaid that Ms Healy was commissioned to set up the role and
you value her expertise, which I don't argue with. My point and the question is, Minister, how is it right that the
person you engaged to assist the department to set up a significant role like the biosecurity commissioner is, one,
put on the panel; and, two, you reject the recommended candidate from that panel and end up giving the role to
the person who set up the role? How is that transparent?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: She didn't set up therole. The Government engaged Dr Marion Healy
to provide us with advice on the setting up of the role. This is an election commitment—couldn't be more
transparent than takinga position and a body like this to an election and asking people to vote for us off the back
ofiit. They did. That'stransparency. We openly engaged Dr Marion Healy because of her expertise in the space to
provide advice on how it could be best set up in order to deliver on the election commitment and deliver in this
space because she's an expert in the space. I'm delighted that she is the first biosecurity commissioner in
New South Wales. I've talked about the process and people's involvement in it from the very beginning, including
in the Parliament. Again, I'm really pleased with the outcome. She's going to do terrific work.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: By leave, I table a document.
Document tabled.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Just with the biosecurity commissioner, Ms Healy, who I don't know,
I noticed—and this is literally as of last night on Ms Healy's LinkedIn—that she has five other jobs. Have you
appointed a part-time biosecurity commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I haven't looked at her LinkedIn page, Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Obviously she didn't go through too much of a selection process, and
she has five other jobs.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Point of order: I think there's anissue here about the reputation
ofthe third party.It's been admitted by Mr Farraway that apparently last night he went on the internet and looked
up LinkedIn. If youlooked at my LinkedIn, I don't think it would necessarily be accurate. It's quite well understood
thatpeopleleave positions and don't necessarily update their LinkedIn et cetera. I just don't know thatit's a sound
basis to be impugning the person's performance in the role, that Mr Farraway last night searched on the internet
on LinkedIn.
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Ms SUE HIGGINSON: To the point of order: It does seem to be a heavy impugning of the person
who's just not here to defend themselves. I realise that we've got the Minister, but we're straying into a procedural
fairness issue for somebody who's just not here, who is an appointed employee.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: A commissioner in a very public role—it's more than an employee. By
the way, I've checked all those websites—the five other roles. They're all still current.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm notbothered one way or another, Mr Farraway. The role of the
biosecurity commissioner, as I understand it, is around three days a week. Again, I stand by the appointment.
I think she's going to do really terrific work in the space. She's got terrific credentials. We engaged her to help
us—to give us advice on setting this up because of her experience and credentials. I stand by it.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Ms Healyis, in fact, herself a consultant—strategic, technical and
regulatory expert—particularly around agriculture and food safety, both domestic and international. Should the
biosecurity commissioner be a dedicated role, though, rather than having someone in a role—and I don't know
Ms Healy, forthe record, but the reality is this is publicly available information. This is an important role that the
New South Wales Government has filled. Do you think it is appropriate that any commissioner is also doing
consultancy work in the same industry on the side?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I'll check with the department. They might know now, but I'm sure all
the right processes and probity checks were done. She's in a position that we've accommodated three days a week,
roughly, for. Again, I think she's going to do a terrific job. She's the first person in the role. She's doing work to
set it up now. [ don't have any issue with that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How were the executive director roles for Mr Tyndall and
Ms Blackfield—were they advertised and was there a formal advertising and recruitment process undertaken?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: These are questions forthe department.I don't interfere in the decisions
of employment inside the department. I remember when I became the Minister, there were a whole bunch of
former chiefs of staff for previous Ministers in your Government in the department.I don't get involved in internal
workings.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Did you know Mr Tyndall before you were a Minister?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: For how long?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Icouldn'tsay.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: One year? Five years? Ten years?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don't—just from around is the best way I could describe it.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: "Just from around."I'll comeback to Mr Orr in the afternoon aboutthe
process.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Just before, I was asking about the meetings that Minister Kamper had
with DOGS NSW. You said thatyou didn't necessarily have some concerns about that, but you weren't aware that
he had met with them. It just seems odd to me that he would meet with stakeholders to discuss legislation that
you're putting up without then following up with you and explaining. It's not stakeholders within his electorate. It
was actually DOGS NSW thathe met with specifically. Do younot have concermnsthathe met with DOGS NSW
about legislation and then hasn't come and followed up with you in regard to what came out of that meeting?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Ms Hurst, all of these questions are perfectly fairenough. I'm not sure
if Mr Kamper did or didn't. Obviously, as I've said when you asked me previously, if that's what he's disclosed,
then I can understand that. People meet with stakeholders from across government on a regular basis. I have
engaged with colleagues abouthowthe bill is going to work. I'm continuing to do that.I don'thave any particular
concerns here, but if there's anything in particular you want to put to me, I'm happy to respond to it.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: My concern is that DOGS NSW has been on the record being against any
legislation that would outlaw puppy farming. To me, it seems odd, given it's entirely outside of Minister Kamper's
portfolio and you are actually puttingup legislation, that a stakeholder—I would assume it would be fairly unusual
for a stakeholder organisation to meet with a Minister that wasn't necessarily the one that wasputting forward the
legislation. You say that happens quite regularly?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think my colleagues, whether they're Ministers or backbenchers,
meet with stakeholders all the time. Again, I'm sure there are people who have breeders in their electorates that
would have had discussions.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: No, he met with the organisation DOGS NSW.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure. [ don't find it unusual. I'm not aware of the meeting, but I'm
happy to talk to my colleague about it. We've been very transparent. Thisis an election commitment, so regardless
of who's meeting with who, we're delivering the election commitment. As I outlined at the start, I'm looking
forward to introducing a bill very soon to do that.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I'm going to ask the secretariat to get some images to you from a puppy
farm that was investigated in New South Wales. You'll see from these images that the dogs are living in very
small enclosures, they look very distressed and the living conditions are quite filthy. The RSPCA were called
about this facility. They went outand inspected it but didn't take any action because they said thatthelaws don't
suggest there is anythingillegal happening at this facility, despite the awful conditions that you can see in the
images. The RSPCA is obviously suggesting thatthe laws aren't adequate to stop the cruelty that we're currently
seeing in those images. Canyoutalk us through how the legislation will deal with this? Is this the sort of facility
that you would like to see changed in some way with your legislation?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm looking atthe images that you've given me. Obviously, I don't
have any broadercontext,but I accept the proposition that you're putting to me. I actually say at the outset, I'd be
concerned if—whateversort of laws are in place forthe size of spacesthatthe animalsare kept in, if it seems like
there is cruelty happeningand the RSPCA are involved, they should be doing somethingwith that. What we want
to do with this legislation is make sure that we are getting rid of, or have the best opportunity to get rid of, the bad
operators in New South Wales. That includes places that are keeping animals in poor conditions. Certainly the
bill will go some way to do that. There's also other animalwelfare legislation thatshould be enforced if any kind
of cruelty is happening, with or without the puppy farm legislation.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: We mentioned the size of those enclosures. My understandingis that there
is no real legislation around the size of an enclosure at a breeding facility. I think most people look at housing
requirements for where you put your animalif you're going on a vacation, forexample, and those enclosures are
extremely small. They can be left inside these very small enclosures—Ilegally, underour legislation—for 23 hours
and 40 minutes a day. Are some of those aspects going to be included in this or is that somethingthat's going to
be done as regulations later? If it is regulations, is there a rough timeline of when we could potentially see that?
I know a lot of facilities are looking to upgrade and they're waiting for new standards to come through.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think it's an excellent question. The issue that we've got here is that
we're going to have to work through some of these things in stages. As Isaid, the puppy farms bill that we'll bring
in will deliver on the election commitment to get rid of puppy farms. There is the guide thatpeople are supposed
touse if they've got animalsthatthey're breeding on their properties—it's not compulsory atthe moment.I've had
a good look atthat, and it certainly needs some work. It's not possible to dealwith thataspart of the bill that we
are bringing in to deal with puppy farms, butthatis not to say thatthere isn't going to be more work required to
deal with some of these things in the longer term. We're certainly committed,as know you are, to ensuring that
there are better standardsin place. I won't be able to do all of those things via the puppy farms bill or through our
othercommitment, which is to look atthe POCTA Act in full. There are a number of other things that will require
some work in order to get improved standards.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: One ofthe biggest concemnsis thatany puppy farm bill, ratherthan actually
outlawing puppy farming, could actually make a certain type of puppy farming itself legal. For example—and
I don'tknow what yourlegislation says; I haven't seen it—say there was a cap 040 female dogs and those femalk
dogs all havelitters, and there's male dogs on the property for breeding. You're quickly getting over 250 dogs on
one property, which many people would consider a puppy farm. Can you confirm that your bill won't actually
allow for that in New South Wales, and that it doesn't just regulate puppy farming but actually does outlaw it?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It'sa very good question. Part of the answeris about why this hasbeen
actually more of a complicated process thanl was anticipating before we started the work. As I said, that'sbecause
there's just not a lot of information or requirements for people to even register their operations. We've looked at
those issues, and also at definitions for breeding animals and the best point to define when a breeding female dog
becomesa breeding female dog. That's something that we are continuing to consult with industry on. I'm trying
to keep it assimple aspossible. When we are changingthe law, I wantto make sure thatit's sufficient to deal with
the election commitment that we made and to weed out the bad operators, but also simple enough that people can
understand it and follow it without too much confusion. At the other end of the spectrum of your question is that
I also don't want to cause unintended consequences which could lead to the unfortunate death of animals to get
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people under caps. I don't want animals to be discarded to meet an arbitrary cap that we put in place, so we're
working across all of these issues.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Ratherthan that being associated with the cap, wouldn't that just be in
regard to the phasein of the legislation to give people time to make changesrather thankilling dogs, and rather
than making a very high cap which then legislates puppy farming? Wouldn't the more sensible approach be to
have—which is what Victoria did; they had a period of time where they phased in that legislation. They had time
to actually rehome the dogs that were in excess.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Theseareall of the things that we're working through. It was a difficult
process thattook many, many yearsin Victoria. I would like to have this already completed,butasIsaid,it's been
more complicated than I realised because there's justnota lot of information about howthese things are operating.
I'm trying to keep it as simple as possible, because we want people to be able to follow the law and we want to
make it easy to weed out the rogues.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: You mentioned quite a bit of consultation with industry. You said thatin
these finalstages you're talking with businesses in the sector. Are you also consulting with animal welfare groups?
I know groups like Four Paws havereached out to you to meet specifically on this issue, but they haven't heard
back from you. Will you committo also meeting with those animalprotection organisations in these final stages?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We have been meeting with animal welfare groups throughout the
process of draftingthe bill, including the RSPCA and the Animal Welfare League. Of course, the views of animal
welfare agencies, particularly those who are doing enforcement work, have been very appropriately and
importantly considered aspart of working this through. I'm happy to meet with anybody who wants to talk about
it in order to get the best piece of legislation to protect animals.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Thank you, Minister, for plodding along. I canhear your effortsthere. Canl
go to the Forest Industry Action Plan? What's the timeline for that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I should know this of the top of my head, but someone might help me.
We've got the panelin place now, and I'll comeback to you aboutthe timeline forcompletion—sorry about that.
You would also be aware that we've got a whole bunch of consultation going on with the sector at the moment,
not just in relation to the Forest Industry Action Plan but also in relation to the setting up of the Great Koala
National Park.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: With the action plan, is the purpose of the panelto provide ongoing feedback
or will there be specific reporting guidelines with the recommendation windows? If they do have interim quick
findings, is that something you're open to and willing to consider?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The Government wants the panelto go out and do the work that we
need it to do and make some recommendations,and report back to Government about how we can structure the
industry and have plans for the industry, like I said earlier, for the next year, five years, 10 years and 50 years.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: One of the responsibilities of the panelis to look at the sustainability of the
industry. Are you suggesting that there are questions around the sustainability right now for the public native
forest hardwood sector?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: There area lot of challenges in the sector. At the moment they're being
stopped from doing their work on a very regular basis, which is making it difficult for—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Sorry, Minister. I'm just going to the actual sustainability of the—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Thisis aboutthe sustainability. It's very difficult to meet contracts and
do the work that you're required to do if you're constantly being stopped because of legal action.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: If the panel came back to you—

The Hon. WES FANG: Point of order: The Minister hadn't completed her answer before the question
was asked.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: There is no point of order.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: With the panel, do you consider that it also has a responsibility or an ambit
that, if it considered the end of public land native forest logging, thatit is open to thatpanelto make that finding?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We wantthe panelto give us some advice about what the structure of
the industry might look like and how we can have a sustainable industry well into the future. The Government is
committed to a sustainable industry into the future.
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Ms SUE HIGGINSON: If it found, Minister, thatthere is no capacity fora sustainable industry across
public native hardwood, are you open to that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: This is an industry action plan for, broadly, how the industry is going
to operate well into the future so that people have certainty.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: So are you suggesting—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Aspartofthat,I wantallofthesethingsto beconsidered. Thatincludes
how forests can be used for carbon abatement and the like, as you would have seen asa part of the announcement.
There's a range of things that this panelis going to look at. I believe they're scheduled to report back to us by the
end of the year, in answer to the earlier question.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Thank you.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Thisreally is aboutlookingatall of those things to have plansin place
for a sustainable industry into the future.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Ithink I'm hearingthe answeris yes. You are open to that if this panel genuinely
comes to the conclusion, based on all the evidence, that there is no sustainable future in the hardwood public
native forest? You would take that recommendation as it is delivered to you because, of course, there is no
predetermined political outcome here, is there?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The predetermined outcome is thatthe Government is committed to a
sustainable industry as well as delivering on the Great Koala National Park and we have tasked the panel—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Minister, respectfully, can I just keep you on track here?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Iam on track.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: You know aswell asI know, the forest industry is a broad-based industry.
There are a numberofarmstoit. I am speakingabouta very specific, very small arm of that industry. If the panel
comes back and advises you there is no sustainable future,I think I'm hearing you say of course you would take
that on board because there is no predetermined political outcome.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm notpredetermining whatadvice the panel gives us. This panel is
set up to advise the Government on how to have a sustainable industry well into the future so that everyone
involved in it can have some certainty about how it's operating. We've given it some criteria to consider and I'm
looking forward to the advice and recommendations that they provide.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Minister, on 21 February 2024, in response to my question about continuing
and consistent breaches of the Forestry Corporation,you said, "I don't accept the premise of your question." Last
month,in July this year, the Land and Environment Court accepted the submission of the EPA thatthe Forestry
Corporation has a pattern of environmental offending, and found that there is a high likelihood the Forestry
Corporation would reoffend and thatit does not have good prospects of rehabilitation. Hasthere been any work
undertaken to assess or reform the corporate culture of the Forestry Corporation since February 2024?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: There's always work underway to make sure that Forestry is being the
best corporate citizen, I guess, thatit canbe. There have certainly been some issues and we're seeing some recent
court decisions reflecting things that happened in the past, four years ago, and fines that have been issued by
courts in the last month orso for things that happened fouryearsago orso. I expect Forestry Corp to comply with
the law.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: You do say this consistently.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: They have made a significantamount of changes to—well, they do do
that, but to improve, just as any corporation should.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Has there been any corporate culture work done within the Forestry
Corporation?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The specifics of corporate culture work that's been doneis perhapsa
question you can ask the CEO.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: I will ask. Are you aware of any?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's a State-owned corporation, so they don't directly report to me,
Ms Higginson. I respect the question and I do understand where you're coming from. It would be a question best
directed to the CEO.
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Ms SUE HIGGINSON: After the judgementand the $360,000 fine, you requested, or you stated you
requested a meeting with Ms Loader and Mr Chaudhary. Has that meeting taken place?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Was there a specific request or direction from you, as Minister, to both of them
about the behaviour or the culture of the corporation?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Forestry Corp hasto comply with the law and it hasto do even better
than the best in terms of environmental outcomes and operating within the law—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: What was the actual outcome of that meeting then?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm talkingto thatnow. In thatmeeting I did convey those views. I'll
also make the point that the issues that we're talking about happened some four years ago, maybe even further
back than that—previous Government, previous leadership of the corporation—but that doesn't meanthat I'm not
going to havethese conversations with Forestry Corp on a regular basis, which I do. You've got to comply with
the law.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Are you awarethaton 16 or 17 September there's anothersentencing hearing
where Forestry has pleaded guilty? Are you aware of what the maximum penalty for that upcoming court case
sentencing might be?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm not aware of the penalty, but I'll wait to see what the court
determines. I'm not fobbing it off, but it is important to note that these are referring to incidents that occurred
some fouryears ago. There have been significant improvements and work done, people employed in Forestry
Corporation to assist with compliance and the like to improve their operations just as people would expect, and
just as I expect as the Minister responsible for this policy area.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: What hashappened or what has been told to you, or what has satisfied you,
thatanythingis any different? You've said some more people have been employed, but whathascome outto you
to suggest that the potential $18 million maximum penalty next month won't keep repeating?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Again, and I'm not making light of it—I take it very seriously—but
they refer to incidents that happened four years ago. It's unfortunate that it has come to this point for these
outcomes—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: This most recent one isn't four years ago.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure. I engage with Forestry Corp on a very regular basis. I expect
them, as everybody does, as we all expect every corporation, to comply with the law and the best possible
environmental standards. I'm satisfied that they are doing that now, but it's a conversation that we continue to
have. They do this under enormous pressure. They are getting stopped from working and conducting their
operations which they are legally required to do on a very regular basis. Their staff get harassed in the street.
They've got people protesting literally in their workplaces. You can't chain yourself to a desk that I'm currently
sitting at, but you can do it to a Forestry truck, which is outrageous. They're doing this work under extremely
difficult circumstances, but they have to comply and they've got to do the right thing.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, in answer to a question from my colleague, the Hon. Sam Farraway,
you indicated that the second round of the recruiting for the biosecurity commissioner was done by a recruiting
company. Is that correct?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think Mr Orr actually did that, so I couldn't remember the specific
details.

STEVE ORR: That's correct.

The Hon. WES FANG: What was that company?
STEVE ORR: Rimfire Resources.

The Hon. WES FANG: Sorry, say that again?
STEVE ORR: Rimfire Resources, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: Rimfire Resources?
STEVE ORR: Correct.

The Hon. WES FANG: Thank you.
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STEVE ORR: Just in relation to Dr Healy and—

The Hon. WES FANG: [ might ask a question before we get there because it might relate to the same
point. Did that recruitment company put Dr Healy's name forward?

STEVE ORR: Yes, that's my understanding.

The Hon. WES FANG: Ifthat'sthe case, Mr Orr, did Dr Healy declare that she was intimately involved
in the first round of recruiting where the Minister rejected all the applicants put forward?

STEVE ORR: Just for clarity, because I'm mindful of the inference—
The Hon. WES FANG: No, Mr Orr—

STEVE ORR: IfI can just answer your question?

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Order!

The Hon. WES FANG: That's what I'm hoping you will do.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Order! Allow the witness to answer, please.

STEVE ORR: Dr Healy was the interim commissioner. Dr Healy was on the initial panelbecause she
was the interim commissioner. That's why she was on the panel. She made it clear she was not, at that point,
interested in the role. Right? Equally, all panelmembershad an obligation to declare any interest. So there wasa
clear disconnect between the first round and then the subsequent decision. There was also a passage of time.

The Hon. WES FANG: You haven't addressed the question that I asked.
STEVE ORR: Which is?

The Hon. WES FANG: Did Dr Healy declare that she was intimately involved in the first round of
recruiting?

STEVE ORR: It was obvious she was around or involved in the first round of recruitment because we
knew that. Why would she declare it?

The Hon. WES FANG: No, did she declare it to Rimfire Resources?

STEVE ORR: Rimfire Resources were aware. There was no need to declare it because they were aware
of'the process which had been initially run and aware of whathad occurred, and aware of the need to find people
to put forward to the Minister for consideration.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Orr, how much did the recruiting program cost?
STEVE ORR: I'dtake that on notice.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, who is the acting NSW Agriculture Commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We don'thavesomeoneactingintherole atthe moment.I'llbe looking
forward to introducing the bill and filling the role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Who is leading the process on the recruitment of the Agriculture
Commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I need to introduce the bill into Parliament and hopefully, with the
support of the Parliament, pass it, and then I will look to appointing someone and having that process in place.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Has the role been advertised?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I've announcedtodaythatwe'll be introducing a bill to set up the role.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes, buthastherole of the Agriculture Commissioner been advertised?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: In the form thatweare going to be doing it, asI've announced it today,
no, because I need to introduce a bill to create the position that we're going to be creating. As I said earlier, we
were as a government looking at other—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Does that mean you've changed the structure? Because you have
advertised. The applications closed on 29 January.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: That's what I was just saying. We were looking, as I think I outlined
earlier this morning, at fulfilling the election commitment in a different way. We engaged, as I said earlier, the
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previous agriculture commissioner, Daryl Quinlivan, to put together a report with some options for how we could
proceed to deliver on the election commitment. The original plan was to do it in a more staged way and deal with
the statutory role down the track. In fact, we've decided to change that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: To confirm, it will be a statutory role when you introduce this to
Parliament?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I'll be introducing a bill to the Parliament. Once I've introduced that
bill to the Parliament—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: What are you doing with all the people that applied for the initial
agriculture commissioner's role, with applications closing 29 January this year?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Well, those people would have been advised, I assume—and, again,
I cantakethat on notice—that we didn't proceed, in whateverterms they would have been told, but that we didn't
proceed with doing things in the way that we were going to do them before. Now, in order to set up the role, I'll
need to get the bill through the Parliament.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Why the change?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Because thisis delivering on the election commitment in full, rather
than in a staged way, as in step-by-step way that we were originally looking at. Stakeholders have been really
clear to me—I engage with people across the sector—that they want this role to be delivered in this way, so I'm
getting on with delivering it in this way—again, subject to the will of the Parliament.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, I'm happy to be corrected, but you took this to the 2023
election. You've gone to market. Applications closed. You've now changed the structure. It is now 18 months
since you formed government. There is still no full-time agriculture commissioner. You've changed the process.
Don't you think stakeholders are gettinga bit tired? Shouldn't the agriculture commissionerbe full-time and should
have already been appointed?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, I'm engaging with stakeholders about this and every other issue
on a very, very regular basis. The issues that will be dealt with—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Eighteen months. Eighteen months, Minister.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —by the agriculture commissioner are very important and I look
forward to the new agriculture commissioner being able to assist the Government in those roles or with those
issues, but the issues havebeen dealt with by the Governmentnow and I engage with stakeholders in the sector
all the time.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes, but it's 18 months and we still don't have an agriculture
commissioner. Correct?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure, but we'll have one soon.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How soon?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Subject to passing the bill in the Parliament.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How soon?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Well, do you commit to supporting my bill, Mr Farraway?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: If the bill passes Parliament, how quickly will you appoint an
agriculture commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Iwantsomeonein placeassoon aspossible subjectto the bill passing
the Parliament.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Will you consider Mick Veitch asthe New South Wales agriculture
commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm not goingto be filling the role right here.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: IfI was the ag Minister, I would have appointed him 18 months ago.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Well, I'm not interested in dealing with namesright here in estimates,
Mr Farraway. I will go through the right process.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Did Mr Veitch apply for the initial round?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm going to go through the process, as people would expect. Once we
have passed the bill thatI'll be introducing soon, we'll go through a process of filling the role. I want someone in
the role as soon as possible.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Did Mr Veitch apply for the first round, with applications closing
29 January?

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Point of order: Surely that'sa confidentialmatter, if that wasthe
case.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: We can say that.
The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Itshouldn't be asked.It'sjust being asked to make the suggestion.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Itis up to the Minister. I'm sure she's across what's confidentialand what
she can reveal or not.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: What was the question?
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Did Mick Veitch apply for the initial round?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We've had a previous process under way, which I've outlined. I'm
being transparent about that. I don't plan to go into the details of who did or didn't; I don't think that's appropriate.
I look forward to, again hopefully with your support, passing this bill in Parliament—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Bring it on.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —so that we can get the role in place as soon as possible.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: If Mick's name's there you never know what sort of support you'll get,
Minister. Minister, did the Crown Solicitor have issues with your original proposal for the New South Wales
agriculture commissioner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Off thetop ofmy head,Idon't know. Someone else might assist with
that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So, definitively, the Crown Solicitor didn't have an issue?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: NotthatI canrecall. I don'tthink so, butI'm happy to check and take
it on notice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Just explain to me—you've obviously introduced; you've done your
media release; you're going to bring in a bill. Great, fine. Whathasbeen the hold-up? I don'tunderstand, Minister,
for 18 months what has been the hold-up in getting the agriculture commissioner in place?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I wouldn't say there's been a hold-up, Mr Farraway. ['ve been very,
very busy delivering a whole bunch of things—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Eighteen months, Minister.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —including election commitments that we made.
The Hon. WES FANG: Lots of cuts.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Order!

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We've talked about one that I've delivered, which is the biosecurity
commissioner, just this morning.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: We're talking about the agriculture commissioner now. My question is
a legitimate one, and thatis haveyou faced a lot of challenges internally in the Government or what is the issue?
Why the hold-up? Eighteen months and we still don't have an agriculture commissioner. We have no-oneacting
in the role as of today. Yes, you're going to bring in a bill. I wantto know up until today, for 18 months, clearly
there has been a hold-up. What has been that hold-up?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, there hasn'tbeen a hold-up. I've outlined what's been happening
over that period of time right here this moming. I received a piece of advice on how we could do it in a staged
way. We've decided to leapfrog that and deliver it in full, and to do thatI need to introduce this bill into the
Parliament. We're getting on with delivering on this election commitment—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But why didn't you introduce this bill 12 months ago?

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE NO. 4 - REGIONAL NSW



Tuesday 27 August 2024 Legislative Council Page 19
CORRECTED

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —andin the meantime I'm continuing to engage with stakeholdersin
the space about the issues that are relevant.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: This was a key election commitment for yourself. Why did you not
introduce this bill sooner?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I've been busy doing other pieces of legislation, Mr Farraway. There
is only so many days in the Parliament and I'll get on with it—

The Hon. WES FANG: Should have had more sittings.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do you really want that debate here?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm lookingto introduce it as soon as possible.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So, you engage and socialise and all of that with stakeholders.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: You love that word.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But the reality is, Minister, for 18 months you've been promising an
agriculture commissioner and today they are told that you are essentially starting a new process. You'll need to
wait until you can introduce that legislation into Parliament, bearing in mind that we have the least amount of
sitting days for the last decade under this Government. How much longer will stakeholders have to wait before
the New South Wales agriculture commissioner is appointed?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Well, in fact,I've been engaging with stakeholdersaboutexactly this
decision beforetoday. This wasn't a surprise piece of news to many stakeholders in the space. We've been talking
to them regularly abouthow we are planning on delivering this commitment.I'll be looking to introduce the bill
as soon as possible. I'll be hoping to passit assoon as possible. Subject to the will of the Parliament, if that
happens, I'll be looking to fill the role as soon as possible.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, when did Mr Tyndall start in the role of executive director
within the office of the secretary?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: You'd have to ask the secretary.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Actually, Mr Tyndall, I'll ask you directly. Mr Tyndall, when did you
start in the role of executive director within the office of the secretary?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'll take the exact date on notice, but I think it was in April of last year.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: April 2023?
ADAM TYNDALL: Correct.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Whatwas the process between you leaving yourrole within LocalLand
Services and becoming the director of media strategy and ministerial services?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'll justtalk youthrough. I didn't go from LocalLand Services through to the office
of the secretary role. I was appointed as director of planning at the Northern Rivers Reconstruction Corporation
under the former head or CEO, which was David Witherdin. I had interviewed for an executive director role as
partofthat process. Unfortunately, I wasn't successful, butI was placed on a talent pooland I wastaken from the
talent poolinto an acting position in the office of the secretary.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So, what was the timeline? When did you move from LLS to the
reconstruction authority?

ADAM TYNDALL: I can take thaton notice. I think it was around the time of the—just after the
2021 floods.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: And then you moved into the office of the secretary, April 2023?
ADAM TYNDALL: That's correct.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Tyndall, have you ever been a member of a political party?

ADAM TYNDALL: Imight justget aruling here from the Chairand the clerk. understand that I may
well be setting a precedent here for estimates that others will have to follow.

The Hon. WES FANG: Well, no. I think the Minister—
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Order! I will hear the witness. Go ahead.
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ADAM TYNDALL: I'm just wondering if this is consistent with the terms of reference for the
Committee. I understand your interest, Mr Farraway; I'm not trying to be difficult.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: We've both got a job to do, so that's fine.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I'll just get some advice from the secretariat and we'll come back to that
question.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'd hatetobein a position, Mr Farraway, where [ had to ask everybody
in the department if they were members of political parties.

The Hon. WES FANG: Well, you did it to Emma Watts, Minister.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Order! We will come back to that question once we've got some advice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, are you aware of the new Federal law that comesinto effect
on 26 August around the right to disconnect?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Has your department briefed employees on how it will impact them?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: You would have to ask the department.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do you think that LLS vets sit outside the "right to disconnect" laws?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: All people in workplacesthatthis law applies to, it will apply to. How
this will be worked out in practice is a question for the secretary.

STEVE ORR: Mr Farraway,it's a Federal—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I'll comebacktoyou,MrOrr. We've got plenty of time in the afternoon.
How will this work? In your view, asthe Minister thatisresponsible for biosecurity measures and outbreaks, how
will this impact the response in an emergency?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Just like it would in every other workplace where there are emergency
services provided. The details of individual employment relationships and how people are dealt with for work
outside of standard hours will be dealt with by the department, just like they would in other workplaces where this
could apply.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I'll come back with Mr Orr because, clearly, you don't know.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, that's actually not right. I literally just answered the question.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Why can't LLS vets take work vehicles home?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's a question for the department.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So youdon'tknow. Whatdo you consider a safe workday for LLS vets,
Minister?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The staffing arrangements for people inside of the department are a
matter for the department, Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Okay, don't know. Do you believe—

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Point of order. The memberis interrupting at the end of each answer
to provide commentary, which isn't providing fairness to this witness. He should be called to order for this
disorderly conduct.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: We can skip the commentary, thank you.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, do you believe that it is fair that LLS vets must sometimes
travel a 100-kilometre round trip to pick up a work vehicle to get out into the field?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The individual arrangements for employees inside of the department
are a matter for the department.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So you don't have a view on that at all?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Idon't interfere in the individual rosters or workplace arrangements of
staff inside of the department. That would not be appropriate.
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The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Haveyoudiscussed the "right to work" legislation with Julie Collins,
the new Federal agriculture Minister?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you met with Julie Collins?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We've spoken.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So you haven't met in person, just over-the-phone conversation?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We've met in the past. We've spoken over the phone.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Right.

The Hon. WES FANG: About agriculture?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Was thata question?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: What was discussed? What are the priorities from the Federal
Government, working with the New South Wales Government?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The New South Wales Government works closely with the Federal
Government on a whole range of issues in agriculture.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you discussed with Julie Collins the live sheep export ban?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have youdiscussed with Julie Collins the interest of New South Wales
cattle producers in ensuring that there is no movement to a live cattle export ban?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Ihaven't discussed that with her. I'm not aware of plans to do that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Were you consulted by former Minister Murray Watts before the live
sheep export ban was implemented?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: In Western Australia? No, I'm not consulted on what happens in
Western Australia. I'm the Minister in New South Wales.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do you accept,though, Minister, thatthere are consequences forother
States and Territories from the live export ban in Western Australia?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Mr Farraway, you'd be aware that we don't do live export from
New South Wales, so that's a matter between the Federal Government and the Western Australian Government.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do youacceptthatthere are no consequences forthe New South Wales
economy to processing that excessive amount of sheep meat from Western Australia? Do you accept that there
are no consequences and no opportunities or benefits because of that live export ban, so there is no involvement
from New South Wales?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: So you're supporting the ban?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: No, I'm asking you, Minister, about your advocacy and discussions
with the Federal Labor Government around agriculture and the live export ban on sheep.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Mr Farraway,the live exportban for Western Australia is a matter for
Western Australia and the Federal Government. We don't do live export from New South Wales. It wouldn't be
appropriate for the New South Wales Government to intervene in that decision by the Federal Government.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you discussed with Minister Ryan Park the issue that has
developed around Norco and the supply of milk, which is impacted by the decision to withdraw from the NSW
Health contract?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Iam aware of the issue surrounding Norco. I love Norco. As part of
their reopening, which was a great pleasure, the New South Wales Government provided them with a significant
amount of funding to rebuild, post-floods, in Lismore. My office has spoken to Mr Park's office, and the reason
that has happened is because, as I outlined at the very beginning of estimates, I've been in bed for the last four

days. My office hashad that conversation because, untiltoday,I couldn'treally speak.Itis anissue thatisa matter
for Health.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you spoken to Minister Ryan Park yourself?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Since the decision was made, I literally haven't had a voice, so my
office has had those conversations.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Okay, so that's a no.
The Hon. GREG DONNELLY: Point of order—
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: She said no.

The CHAIR: What is the point of order, Mr Donnelly?

The Hon. GREG DONNELLY: Prior to youbeing here, there was a theme developingof Mr Farraway
sayingno every time an answer was provided.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: That was the Minister's answer, Mr Donnelly.

The CHAIR: I remind members about procedural fairness. In the last 30 seconds, do you want to
continue?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Were you consulted, Minister, on the decision to dump Norco from the
NSW Health contract?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: These are processes that NSW Health and their relevant processes
work through. That's a matter for Health and a question for Health.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Were you consulted?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The Minister for Agriculture, and Minister for Regional New South
Wales, isn't consulted on how Health conductsits procurement processes, Mr Farraway.I've raised the issues or
my office have raised the issues with Mr Park's office, and the questions are best directed there.

The CHAIR: Noting whatoccurred while I was gallivanting atthe other estimates hearing, the advice
thatI'vereceived is thatit is up to the witness to decide whether they will answer or not answer. Members are free
to object to the question being pressed. If Mr Farraway chooses to press a question based on the terms of reference
of budget estimates, but noting there is a wide latitude around budget estimates, it may not necessarily mean that
it is considered out of order. I will leave it up to the member whether he wants to press it after the break. The
witness may choose to answer it as they see fit. They may seek to take it on notice and get some advice. It is
totally up to them how they address that question.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Charr, if the question is put again, I'll take a point of order on it
prior to the witness answering.

The CHAIR: Okay, noted.
Ms SUE HIGGINSON: I think I will take one, too.

The CHAIR: We'll be in chorus—excellent. Minister, how many Fisheries compliance officers do we
currently have in New South Wales?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Excellent question. I'm going to ask Mr Sloan.
SEAN SLOAN: A hundred and five at present.

The CHAIR: Do they allhave access to a vehicle of their own?

SEAN SLOAN: No.

The CHAIR: How is thatarrangement worked out? I's there a vehicle allocated to them when they are
on duty?

SEAN SLOAN: That'show it works. Obviously, different stations have different requirements because
they have different numbers of officers.

The CHAIR: What is the total number of vehicles supplied for Fisheries compliance?
SEAN SLOAN: I'd have to take that on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Tyndall, I'll rephrase the question that wasasked by my colleague. Are you
the same Adam Tyndall that was elected to the Labor Party's education policy committee in 2016?

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Point of order: It's clear that a public servant is entitled to be a
memberofa political party,and that'sobviously so in the pastaswell asin the present day. There hasbeen some
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evidence already given by the witness as to how he found himself in the position he is in. There is absolutely no
evidence to ground any assertion of impropriety or favouritism or anything of the like. This would seem to be
irrelevant, I would say, because it's just an attempt to cast an aspersion with absolutely no basis to it.

The Hon. WES FANG: To the point of order: I note that my colleague the Hon. Sam Farraway has
already provided this Committee with both an article from The Daily Telegraph and the Minister's commentaty,
I believe on Twitter or perhaps Facebook—apologies—that indicatesthatthere are questions around members of
political parties being appointed to roles in the department. Itis our assertion that Mr Adam Tyndall is a member
of the Labor Party and was directly appointed by the Minister into a position in the same way that she has
commented onin The Daily Telegraph atticle thathasbeen tabled. That is certainly within the remit of estimates
to explore, given that the Minister has publicly, on record, commented both on social media and in The Daily
Telegraph about these matters. The Minister opened the door on this. The Minister hasmade direct appointments.
It is our assertion that Mr Tyndallis a memberofthe Labor Party and thatthe Minister has appointed one of her
LaborParty matesto a role in the department, and we wish to explore that. That is well within what is appropriate
n estimates.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Further to the point of order—
Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Further to the point of order—
The CHAIR: I will go with Ms Higginson first, and then I will go back to the Government.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Chair, I would ask youto consider the discretionary powers of this Committee
to consider the relevance of the unnecessary and potentially unfairinterrogation of an individual's business outside
of their office, their appointment and this Parliament. It really brings the entire budget estimates process into
disrepute. The Opposition is well entitled to play this and forensically challenge this, but this is not the forum.
This is budget estimates, and it is about the Government's priorities and the budgets and policies that we're
discussing as part of the budget estimates process.

The Hon. WES FANG: Further to the point of order—
The CHAIR: I will go back to Mr Murphy.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Chair, this is an outrageous slur being made by the honourablke
member, verballing the witness in speaking to the point of order. It is clearly against the procedural fairness
resolution thatthe House hasputin place. He ought to be directed to withdraw the remarks he made aspart of his
contention over the point of order, or he should be called to order.

The Hon. WES FANG: To the contributions to the point of order from Ms Sue Higginson and the
Hon. Cameron Murphy: I would draw your attention to the fact that we held a parliamentary inquiry into the
appointment of Emma Watts—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: This is budget estimates.

The Hon. WES FANG: Therefore, Ms Higginson—

The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Point of order: Sue, come on.

The Hon. WES FANG: We had a whole parliamentary inquiry into the appointment of Emma Watts.
Itis appropriate forusto tease out these matters. Yes, budget estimatesis the place to tease these issues out. It'sa
question to the Minister around appointmentsinto her department, and the questions are lawful and appropriate.
Chair, I don't see how these points of order could be ruled as anything other than seeking to waste time.

The CHAIR: Given thatwe're now into Government time, I propose to seek further clarification from
the Clerk in the break. I'll make these comments to what has been said already. Mr Lawrence rightly points out
that we need to tread carefully in makingassertions about people. At thatpoint in time, the honourable member
hadn't made the assertion that something untoward had been done; he was merely putting a direct question about
whether someone was a memberofa political party or not. But then, in takingthe point of order, he proceeded to
makethatassertion and makethat case, which may have been betterplaced in a line of questioning rather thana
point of order.

The Hon. WES FANG: You could be right, Chair.

The CHAIR: I'm going to take some advice about how we proceed, given that the assertion hasalready
now been put on the public record and made et cetera.
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Chair, I'd like to respond to it because the assertion was made in
relation to me and my involvement in the appointment of thisrole. I'm going to respond to that on record and I'm
going to do it before the break because thatis an outrageous thing to say about a public servant who is doing a
very good job. I've been clear thatl haven'tinterfered in the appointment of staff inside of the department,and I
was not interfering and did not have any involvement in the role thatis under question here. That should be
withdrawn—again, an outrageous thing to say about a public servant. The member has also made reference—

The Hon. WES FANG: I've ordered a full review of the office arrangements here.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Excuse me, I'm speaking.

The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Point of order—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The member has also inappropriately and outrageously made some
assertions about comments that I've made around people in my department being members of political parties.
I don't know who is a member of what political party inside of my department because, guess what? I don't ask
people. If I did, I would imagine that there are quite a number of National Party members who work inside the
department. But I don't ask the question because that is not appropriate, because people are public servants and
I respect their work as public servants.

The Hon. WES FANG: No, you don't.
The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The articles that have been referred to in the point of order by the
member relate to questions that were put to me by outlets and by others about the appointment of a role in the
previous Government, which—

The Hon. WES FANG: That you leaked.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Excuse me, I'm speaking.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Point of order: I makea specific request that Mr Fang be called
to order. He has abused the process of taking points of order in a way that his colleague did not by raising that
allegation.

The Hon. WES FANG: Well—

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: He is now interrupting me. He should be called to order, and
perhaps consideration should be given—in his mind, at least—to the part of the standingorders that exists because
of him. He shouldn't be allowed to disrupt this Committee.

The Hon. WES FANG: To the point of order: Mr Lawrence foreshadowed that he would be taking
points of order if we asked what were already ruled by you aslawful questions that could be raised. It's clear that
Mr Lawrence was going into that phase of questioning with a strategy. If anybody is to be called to order in this
instance, it should be Mr Lawrence.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Thatis a completely irrelevant and spurious contribution. With
the greatest of respect, I don't even know what it means.

The CHAIR: To maintain the reputation of budget estimates, I'm going to suggest that we stop right
nowto allow me to make furtherinquiries with the Clerk. I will come back with a decision. If there are no questions
from the Government, we will break and come back at 11.15 a.m.

The Hon. GREG DONNELLY: Chair, my only suggestion is, if the Minister is not provided with the
time now to complete what she wished to say in regard to this matter, that she be provided with an opportunity
after we return.

The CHAIR: I am happy to allow that after | make my ruling on the matter.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure, but the reason I wanted to respond to it now is because I think
it's relevant and the allegations that have been put—not as a question, just as an assertion, just willy-nilly, on
record, withouta question being put to me asthe Minister, butas some sort of point of order—are an abuse of the
processes of this Committee and an abuse of the processes of this Parliament. I'm happy to answer questions for
the rest of budget estimates. I'll be back after the break to continue to answer questions, but I won't have very
good public servants—from every political persuasion, I'm sure—being slurred by this member abusing this
process. The article that was referred to was where things were put to me about appointments made by the previous
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Government, which I said I would look into, and thatis what I did. I agree that it's not my place here, but the
member should be called to order.

The CHAIR: I suggest we all have a cup of tea and a Bex in the break.

(Short adjournment)

The CHAIR: Welcome back after that brief break. I would like to make a few comments before we
continue. There has always been wide latitude for questions during estimates. Witnesses need to be directly
relevant but can otherwise answer the question as they see fit. The witness can also take the question on notice if
they wish to seek further advice before answering. In terms of the point of order, the assertion regarding the
Minister is now on the record. The witness or the Minister can choose to address these comments if they wish.
I also remind members that, while they do have wide latitude, they should exercise caution and act in accordance
with the procedural fairness resolution as adopted by the House.

In terms of the issue of points of order being used to make the assertion, I would note that, in the House,
the President has chosen to, in some cases, call those membersto order. Given that this is the first time thatl am
using this new power thatI have before me, as Chair, I will give the general warning to all members that, if they
use a point of order to then make assertions or commentsthataren't to the point of order but are more to impugn
orimply things about witnesses, they will be called to order. Thatis a general warming to everyone.I ask that we
now proceed with normal broadcast and go to questions.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Minister, last week there was an announcement of an investment of
$60 million to upgrade research facilities and emergency responses. That came from your office. I am just
wondering, in regard to the research facilities, what the process was for determining which research facilities
actually received those upgrades.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure. These are facilities that are operated by my department. There
are a number of research stations and facilities, and emergency services around New South Wales. We have
allocated some $60 million to upgrade seven of theresearch facilities or research stationsand to upgrade five of
the emergency points. They're seen as key stationsaround the place, but the decision was based on advice from
the department.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Wasthata competitive grants process?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: These are government facilities, so we are upgrading facilities owned
and operated by government. The places that were chosen were based on advice.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: One oftherecipients of the fundingis Wagga Wagga Agricultural Institute,
and the press release states that "small and large animalhouses will be upgraded". Specifically, it talks about
methane emission research in both sheep and cows. Do you know how much funding that institute is going to
receive and over how many years?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm happy to take the breakdown for Wagga Wagga on notice. I'm
sorry, I don't know the answer off the top of my head,butl am happy to comeback to you with as much specific
information as I can.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Given it's talking about studies in methane emissions, will this also increase
the number of animals that are used in experimentation with the use of fistulas?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The department cancorrect me if I'm wrong, but there's research being
conducted—if I specifically use the example of cows and methane emissions—which is in relation to feed and
things that they're eating.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: That sounds like fistula research.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm hoping thatthatwill prove some success to reducing those gases.
Does that answer your question?

The Hon. EMMA HURST: The question was: Will it increase the numberof animalsthatareused in
experimentation with the use of fistulas on the animal?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Whether it will increase the use of animals or the amount of animals,
perhaps the department can assist with that. Otherwise, I will take that on notice.

STEVE ORR: We might take that on notice, unless someone's got an answer.
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The Hon. EMMA HURST: Could you find out if that would increase the number of animals used in
experimentation with the use of a fistula?

STEVE ORR: Ms Hurst, I can give you the information about Wagga, if you want to know the numbers.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: [might comeback thisaftermoon,ifthat'sallright. Did you visit the facility
yourself, at any point, Minister?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I have been to the Wagga Wagga facility, yes.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Did you see the animals that have been used in that research?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don't think I've specifically seen animals relating to that piece of
research, no.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: From the research that you're describing, it does sound like—and I don*
know if there will be anincrease in the numberofanimalsbut, certainly, that'sthe research that doesuse fistulas.
I guess my concern is that the grant is listed as an animal welfare grant but, obviously, the welfare impact of a
fistula is quite large. A fistula is surgically installing a plug on the side of an animal's body,and there is quite a
lot of leakage that happens with these plugs, which means that the content of their stomach is often leaking out
and burning through their skin, for example. Why was it then listed as an animal welfare grant when we are
actually looking at methane emissions and environmental issues?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Inrelation to the specifics of the research thatis conducted, I will
either ask the department to provide some betterinformation than I can or, again, I'm happy to take the details on
notice. There are a number of different ways that research is being conducted to hopefully enable us to reduce
methane emissions. In relation to whether this was described as animal welfare outcomes, I'll have to check the
details of the announcement. I certainly understand where you're coming from, we're just not across the specifics
of that research. But I'm happy to come back to you.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Yes, if youcould comebackasto how that would be considered an animal
welfare grant. Also—and this is probably anotherone to take on notice if you don't have the information on you—
whether there will be fistulas used on sheep as well. I've only ever seen fistulas used on cows, but I imagine the
welfare impact might even be higher for sheep because they've got wool and the issues associated there. If you're
able, let me know if this will also include research with fistulas on sheep.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes, [ will havetotakethatonnotice,butlam happy tocomeback to
you with the details.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: [ would like to also ask about the work of the Independent Office of Animal
Welfare and where that is up to. Have you commenced consultation or any work in this space?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. Asyouareawareand many people would be aware, we did make
a commitment to establish an Independent Office of Animal Welfare. Work is underway for trying to establish
that office. As you would also be aware, it's not something that exists in other States and Territories, certainly not
tomy knowledge, so we are creating the first office of'its kind. There is a lot of interest in the structure and set-up
of this office, from a broad range of stakeholders. We have begun some of that consultation work and it will
continue more broadly soon.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: When Ms Abigail Boyd putup her bill for an independent office, you said
thatyouhad some concerns with her bill because it didn't have adequate ministerial direction or oversight, and it
lacked industry representation. What do you see the office as being independent from, if it's not going to be
independent from government and it's not going to be independent from animal use industries? What does the
independence part of that office mean to you?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's going to be part of the Government, so it will be an independent
office.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: It won't be independent from government?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Itwill be part of government. The Government is setting it up so it
will be funded by government and it will be part of government, but it will be an office, the way I see it as,
providing advice on welfare issues. Thathasto include the views of industry and stakeholdersaswell aswelfare
organisations because it is about advice, or will be about providing advice, on welfare standards, partially. We
will be including the voices of industry in that.
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The Hon. EMMA HURST: Whatis it independent of then? We're talking about an independent office.
What doesthat word "independent" mean to you? Ifit's not going to be independent from government or from the
Minister, and it's not going to be independent from industries that use animals, what does the "independent" mean?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The department. There is quite a lot of commentary about the
departmentthata lot of this work sits within. This will be an independent office that will provide advice directly
to me and to the Government in relation to animal welfare issues. Again, that will include representations and
views from charitable and welfare organisations as well as industry. Obviously, industry has to comply with
welfare standards.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, youmeanit's independent from the DPI? Is that where you see that
independence from then?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [ meanitwill sit in the Department of Primary Industries and Regional
Development, because that's the department that I'm responsible for, but it will be an independent office within
that department.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: But that's what [ meant. Who are they independent from?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Any more specific details, I won't be able to give you atthe moment
because we've got to work through the process for establishing it.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I am justtrying to understand. When an office is independent, it usually
means it's independent, as in it's separate from the Minister, it's not influenced by the Minister, or it's not
influenced by the department or from an industry. At the moment, your summary of it suggests that it will notbe
independent from any of those things. What is the independent part of the independent office?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's going to be a part of the Governmentso it can't be separate from
the Government.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Butwhatis it independent of? I'm not askingwhat it's dependent of. What's
it independent of?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's going to be an independent office of animal welfare that will sit
within my department, but it will be operating as an independent office for animal welfare.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Independent from what?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: That'sa commitment.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Morning, Minister. In budget estimates earlier this year, I asked you when
you would restore the six sanctuary zones in Batemans Bay marine park where the former Government allowed a
fishing amnesty and thatcontinuesunder your Government. You said that you're engaging with communities and
are committed to protecting marine parks in your response. How's that going?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: A couple of things. There's a statutory review due next year on the
marine estate. These things, along with other things that would occur as partofa statutory review, will form part
ofthat. That will include consultation with people and communities who have views on this, and that will include
fishing groups. I've also been seeking advice from the department about any impacts orotherwise of the zones in
certain areasso thatI can collect the factualinformation before we make any consideration for what these things
look like going forward.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Do you see it asyour responsibility to balance,to also have conservation
asa priority in marine parks? You just mentioned fishing groups in terms of consulting with them. You didn't
mention anybody else. Do you see it as your role to protect the marine life, to protect threatened species in our
oceans?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Ido,andIseeit asthe Government'srole to protect marine life as well
asmanagingother uses of our waters, including fishing. I'm of course the Minister responsible forFisheries. The
marine parksare jointly administered by me and the Minister for the Environment and we work together on these
issues and will continue to do so.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Who are you engaging with from the community when it comes to
threatened marine life, marine conservation? Are you meeting with people in that regard?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We will, once the statutory review is underway, which again I
believe—someone will correct me—is due next year. Yes, it's due to commence late this yearin fact. Work will
be conducted, as people would expect,in accordance with the statutory review. We'll be engaging with all kinds
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of stakeholders that have an interest in this space. The Government's role is to certainly protect marine life but
also again the fishing and other uses for these areas and will be consulting on that as part of the review.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Minister, your ministerial diaries for the first half of this year show thatin
terms of meeting with anybody about fishing matters during those first six months, you met in fact with no
conservation bodies whatsoeverand nobody representing those interests, but nine times all-up on fishing matters
in those entire six months. Is there a reason why you're not meeting with conservation groups?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: That'sa particular point in time. I have met with conservation groups.
Itis jointly administered between myself and the environment Minister and I am the fisheries Minister, so people
would expectthatthatwould be, at this stage, the bulk of the meetings. But the Government will be dealing with
these things as a government, as part of this statutory review process.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Haveyouissued any directions to Fisheries NSW in relation to enforcing
the rules pertaining to the sanctuary zones in Batemans Bay since you came to office?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Why is it thenthatyou're happy to allowthe directive issued by the former
fisheries Minister, who in fact did it with no legal basis and who basically just instructed Fisheries NSW to
essentially not enforce the law? There's no regulation thathas come in since then. You're happy to just continue
going on with that circumstance?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We'll review it aspartof that statutory review towards the end of this
year and over the course of next year, so we'll hear from—

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: You're comfortable with Fisheries NSW essentially not enforcing the law
in sanctuary zones that a Labor Government put in place more than a decade ago?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We'll look at all of these issues, as we've said that we would.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: By thetime you do this statutory review, are you expecting there to be any
increases in marine protection under your Government within this term of government?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We're of course committed to making sure that we've got marine
protection in place. I won't pre-empt what's in the review. We're going to engage with people. I've already asked
our department to start putting together some work for me on—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: "Engage", "engage".
The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —whether there's been impactand, if so, what it's been in these zones
as part of the beginning of that work. I look forward to receiving their advice.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Minister, are you aware of the Auditor-General's report recently into
threatened species management that was released a few weeks ago?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. I can't remember it in detail, but I am aware of it, yes.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Did you read the part where the Auditor-General stated that in fact there
were coordination challenges for the delivery of threatened species conservation projects because threatened
species are listed underthe Fisheries Management Act and are managed by the Department of Primary Industries?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes.
Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Are you aware of why she said this?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: There areissues raised which the Government and I will take seriously
from the Auditor-General in relation to our coordination across government, coordination inside my department.
I'll consider the report and recommendations in detail and respond accordingly.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: What does that mean? Does that mean that you'll put in place, finally,
threatened species priority action statementsthataren'tin place? For example, the grey nurse shark, which is very
overdue in terms of updating that priority's action statement? Is that what that means when you say, take this
seriously?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Maybe.I'll consider the report in detail. I certainly take the findings
in the report around that coordination seriously, and I'll consider it.
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Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Minister, why is everything in yourdepartment in relation to marine parks
protection and threatened species management so out of date? It's like you, as Minister, have done nothing in this
area. You've hardly had any meetings in relation to Fisheries. In fact, pretty much all of the meetings you've had,
bar two, in the almost 18 months you've been a Minister are for recreational fishing interests, not conservation?

Why is it so difficult for you, as Minister, to prioritise marine parks? It seems like it's the lowest priority.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: That'snot true, and I reject the assertion thatyou've made. Of course
it's a priority. The marine park estateis jointly administered by myself and the Minister for the Environment and
so, appropriately, we'll be coming together from the different perspectives of our respective portfolios to consider
the management of the estate. That's exactly why it's been structured in this way.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: So whatdoes thatmean? From yourministerial diaries it seems thatyou've
met with Minister Sharpe and the Marine State Management Authority once since you've become Minister about
the marine parks estate. Is that correct?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I would haveto check.I'm sure you've got an accurate diary.I know
there have been discussions between our offices, between departments. There's, in fact, a plan that's currently
being considered by government that I'm not in a position to talk about now. There are discussions at various
levels. It's jointly administered for a reason and we're dealing with it through those structures appropriately.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Just to beclear, in terms of any changesin the extent of areas protected in
our oceansthat are protected from fishing—in terms of this process you're sayingwill begin atthe end of the year,
it doesn't look like that there are going to be any changes, is that correct? Over the next, say, two years can we
expect anything to come out of that process by that time?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm not going to pre-empt what the statutory review work will do.
We're considering a plan that'sbefore government but, again, I'm not going into the details of thatnow because
it's being considered by government. We'll work through these issues—

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Is any of this public, Minister?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —in an appropriate way, as I've said.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Isanyof it public, because I've had numerous conversations with people
who are very involved in marine conservation efforts in this State and they say thatabsolutely zero is happening
There is no progress; they've heard nothing.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The statutory review will begin at the end of this year, as I've said.
The Government will consider relevant information as far as through our processes.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Thankyou, Minister. I don'tthink I'll get anythingfresh from you on this
topic.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Okay.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: CanlI quickly turn to shark nets? When you announced that shark nets
would be—

The Hon. WES FANG: Point of order: Ms Sue Higginson raised a point of order previously on my
friend and colleague the Hon. Sam Farraway in relation to comments made after the Minister answered—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: To the point of order: It wasn't me. Sorry.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Itwasn't Sue. There were multiple when there was a point of order called.
Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Can I just finish my question, Chair?

The CHAIR: Regardless, can we just avoid the commentary after questions and answers given. I'll
allow this latitude for you to ask that question.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Thank you. When you announced that shark nets would be going back in
the water but for one month less, you also said thatyou're considering councils in the future as to whether shark
nets go back in the ocean. Councillors thatI've spoken to are very confused aboutthat. They don't know what that
means. What consultation have you had with councils going forward in terms of allowing them, if the Government
isn't brave enough to not put shark nets back in the water, to make the decision?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The announcementthat we made in relation to shark nets for the next
summerwas very clear. The shark nets will be returning from 1 Septemberbut we have made the decision to take
them out a month earlier, atthe end of March. As I haverepeatedly and consistently said, as Minister I'll look at
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the information and make decisions based on the evidence, and that includes continuing to trial the new
technologies, which are very expensive but are in place for monitoring for sharks. They're coming out a month
earlier because the advice I've received is that that's the peak period for turtle interactions and breeding in our
waters, and it's also a time where there are less people swimming at our beaches. For next summerwe've got the
balanceright. We'll continue to monitorand look at the results of the new technology that is worth $21 million-odd
a year—the smart drum lines and the like—to make sure that they're working. The long-term plans are to move
away from shark nets, but we've got to be sure, or assure aswe can be, thatthis new technology is going to play
the role that it needs to in keeping swimmers and beachgoers safe.

We're also trialling some additionalthings over the summerthat will enhance protections formarine life,
which is also really important. We'll be monitoring the nets more regularly than before. We're trialling lights to
deter some marine life from getting into the nets, and I look forward to seeing the results of that. In relation to
councils, there are mixed views from councils about shark nets being put in to communities or not. We will
continue to engage with councils and there will be engagement specifically over the course of the summerabout
longer term decision-making. There are some councils thatare absolutely adamant that the nets should stay and
there are some councils that are absolutely adamantthatthey should go. We need to engage with councils on local
decision-making whilst also making sure that there are protections in place for beachgoers.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, are you aware of the improved native forestry method that was
submitted by the New South Wales Government to the Commonwealth as part of the ACCU?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Iam aware of it, yes.
The Hon. WES FANG: How do you believe it would impact native forestry in New South Wales?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm awareofit; I don'tknow thatI'min a position to answer detailed
questions on the submission. As you would be aware, that has, I believe, come through the Environment
department—and people will correct me if I'm wrong. The details of that plan would be best directed to the
Minister for the Environment. I'm always mindful, as the Minister responsible for forestry policy and for the
industry, about the impacts and opportunities for the sector. The plan should have both.

The Hon. WES FANG: You indicated that youthoughtit was the department of environment. Do you
know who the lead agency was on that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I believe it was environment, but I'm happy to check and take that on

notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: Within environment, do you who had the lead on that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Inside of the department?

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don't know who's inside of the department, sorry.

The Hon. WES FANG: Was it National Parks and Wildlife Service?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Itmay well have been; I don't know. I'm happy to try and check for
you.

The Hon. WES FANG: Ifyou're not aware that it was National Parks and Wildlife that was leading
that work, is it fair to say you weren't consulted on the method?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The method was determined and submitted by the department of
environment. I'm not sure if my departmentand the environment department engaged directly on it. Perthaps my
department could respond to that.

The Hon. WES FANG: We could perhapsdo thatin the afternoon session. Minister, given that the title
of the submission was the improved native forestry method, how do you feel about being the forestry Minister
and not being consulted on a piece of substantial work that was submitted on behalf of the New South Wales
Government to the Commonwealth?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I engage across government, including with the Federal Government,
about plans for the forestry sector in New South Wales and I'll continue to do that. I'll remind you that we've
announced our Forestry Industry Action Plan to consider issues like this. In this particular case this work was
done and submitted by the department that's not mine.

The Hon. WES FANG: So you're supportive of the proposal?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Of course, it's the Government's proposal, but I'll be honest and say
I'm not sufficiently across the detail to be ableto get into it with you this afternoon. I'm happyto take it on notice.
But it's the Government's proposal.

The Hon. WES FANG: Is it fair to say then that you're the Minister responsible for forestry, the
New South Wales Government has made a submission to the Commonwealth Government in relation to a forestry
method, you're notacross the detail and you're not aware of the detail enough to say whether you're supportive or
not?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, I'm supportive of the Government's plans and the Government's
submissions.

The Hon. WES FANG: You're supportive of the plan. Are you comfortable, as forestry Minister, with
the New South Wales Government submitting a proposalto the Commonwealth to receive funding in the form of
carbon credits for the cessation of harvesting for the purpose of the conversion from productive to protected
forests?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: These are things that we're considering. These are things that the
New South Wales Government is considering, that the Federal Government is considering and that the Forestry
Industry Action Plan panel are considering. We want to look at all of the best ways and opportunities for us to
manage our forest estate in New South Wales to its full and best benefit. That includes timber supply but it can
also—and I spoke about it this morming—be in relation to carbon abatement.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, you'd be aware there was a delegation of forestry workers that were
here in Parliament a few weeks ago. Did you meet with those workers?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I amaware thatthey were here and I did meet with them. I met with
both of their unions and the workers who came through from the industry. I talk to both of the unions and workers
and people from the industry on a very regular basis. I'm always happy to do so.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did you indicate to them that you supported the New South Wales
Government's proposal to the Commonwealth?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We didn't discuss it.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, why were there other proposals that provided a full range of
opportunities for generating carbon credits in our native forestry sectorthat were not developed or submitted under
the Commonwealth ACCU process by the New South Wales Government?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Mr Fang, we're looking at a whole range of opportunities for a plan
forour forest estate going forward. This is one part of the work thathasto be done in conjunction with the Federal
Government. There's a whole range of work being done on possibilities for the forest estate going forward. We're
dealing with as many of those as we can as a government.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, in your answer you said that you're looking at a whole range of
solutions or processes that were available. There were a numberthat were put forward to you, but none of those
were even developed or submitted in relation to this. Why was that the case?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: When you say a numberwere put forward to me, what do you mean?
By who, when? Where? How? Why?

The Hon. WES FANG: I believe thatthere were a numberof industry proposals that were put forward
that the New South Wales Government elected not to progress through to submission to the Commonwealth
Government. Is that correct?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Ifthere were submissions made through the process thatI've outlined
that the environment Minister followed, I can't answerthat; that would be a question forher. But I regularly enga ge
with the industry. There are a numberof mechanismsand processes thatthey are currently making submissions,
suggestions andideas for a sustainable industry into the future. That's one. The other is the industry action plan.
Yet another is the boundaries for the koala national park—plenty of opportunities to engage with industry, and
I do it as much as possible.

The Hon. WES FANG: You understand the community concerns, though, don't you, Minister: that
you've got the Minister for forestry who's notinvolved in a submission from the New South Wales Government
that effectively suggests to the Commonwealth Government that what we can do to increase the carbon credits is
to stop forestry in New South Wales. You were not consulted, you're not across the detail, and you failed to put
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forward any otherproposalthat would have seen forestry and those forestry jobs continue. Do you understand the
community concern?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I reject the premise of your question, Mr Fang, respectfully. I've just
outlined—

The Hon. WES FANG: But thatis a summary of the answers you've provided.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm trying to answer the question. I'm going to answer the question.
I've outlined, justin these last couple of minutes and most of the moring, a whole range of processes forengaging
with the sector about what plans for a sustainable industry can look like into the future. Nothing's off the table.
I'm engaging on this. The Minister for the Environment is engaging on this. I believe the Treasurer is engaging
on this. The whole Government is doing some work on what an industry plan can look like going forward.

The Hon. WES FANG: But, Minister, the only proposalthat was put forward by the New South Wales
Government in relation to this scheme was stopping the forestry industry in New South Wales. Does that concem
you?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The Government is committed—I've said it today and we've said it
consistently—to a sustainable industry. We're working through a whole range of plans and processes to determine,
with stakeholder feedback, what that will look like.

The Hon. WES FANG: You briefly touched on this in some of your answers: How is the development
of the forestry industry action plan going?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think we announced it yesterday—
Ms SUE HIGGINSON: It wasannounced yesterday.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —but work is going well.

The Hon. WES FANG: I note the scoffing from Ms Sue Higginson next to me, but certainly you've
announced something, Minister, and that would indicate that some work has already been undertaken. Can you
provide the Committee some details in relation to the initial fact-finding done with the industry?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: In relation to the industry action plan that we announced yesterday,
that work will get underway from now, but there is a range of other things that are happening—some of which
I've outlined, again, in the last couple of minutes but also this morning—about how we're engaging on the day-
to-day issues in the sector, of which there are many, but also the long-term plan for the future of the industry. I
regularly engage with industry, with business and with workers.

The Hon. WES FANG: You've provided that answer previously. When will that consultation occur?
When will you open to submission, public hearings and round tables?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We've appointed a panelto do this work, which is being led by Peter
Duncan. They're due to report back to government, I believe, at the end of this year. I look forward to them
undertakingthe work that we've asked them to do in the way that they will determine. I'm sure we'll work closely
together on that process. The Government constantly and regularly engages in various ways with people in the
sector, inside and outside of this process, and we'll continue to do that.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, is there a plan to bring into effect the native vegetation maps at a
point soon?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. Thisis something that we are working, again, across government.
The Minister for the Environment and I have worked together on preparing the whole-of-government response to
anumberofreviews that were done: Ken Henry's review and the LLS statutory review in relation to land clearing.
I will do some further work in relation to the broader issues in relation to land clearing and use.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, can I just seek some clarity?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure.

The Hon. WES FANG: Do you have a date for when the maps will be brought into effect?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don't. That will be a question for the environment Minister.
The Hon. WES FANG: You haven't been provided advice?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: About a specific date?

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes.
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, I have not.

The Hon. WES FANG: Whatif [ told youthatimpacted stakeholdershave haditindicated to them that
it will be 24 September?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I haven't been provided with that date. To be fair, that doesn't mean
thatthe department haven't had discussions orthat other discussions haven't been had, but I'm answering honestly:
I haven't been provided with that date.

The Hon. WES FANG: Ifit is 24 September, that would indicate that we are less than one month away
from these maps being enacted. As Minister for Agriculture and Minister for Regional New South Wales, you
should be aware, should you not, that these maps are about to be implemented?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I've already answered that they are; I just didn't have a specific date
for you. They are about to be implemented, and we'll work through—

The Hon. WES FANG: But you should also be aware of the date thatthe implementation is planning
to occur.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm not so fussed abouta specific date. This is an ongoing discussion
and piece of work across government. I deal it from the agricultural perspective. We'll continue to do that.

The Hon. WES FANG: Can I confirm that you said that you weren't that fussed about the date as to
when it was being implemented?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, whether [ had been advised of the specific date. Of course, this is
a really significant issue that I take seriously.

The Hon. WES FANG: It is a significant issue. That's why I'm asking questions about it, Minister.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm trying to answer, Mr Fang. Please let's not speak over each other.
There's a lot of interest in this as an issue. Whether I was told of a specific date or not is my point: It doesn'
necessarily matter. They are being dealt with soon, and I'll continue to work with people acrossthe ag sectorabout
what that means.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, you've just said thatit is an important issue for landholders. Can you
outline to me your understanding of why it would be important to landholders?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Mr Fang, being ableto manage land foragricultural purposesis a very
key part of the work of farmers and people who are landholders who are managingtheir land in a way to produce
food and the like.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, that's probably a broader explanation. I'm talking more about the
implementation of these maps. Can you explain to me why the implementation of these maps would be of critical
importance to those landholders?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Of course they're important, because it determines criteria for how
people can make decisions without having to engage, or engaging, with government abouthowland is managed.
That's somethingthat we'll continue to work with people across the sectoron. We've made an election commitment
to dealwith excess land clearing. We'll do thatbutI'm also very conscious, as the agriculture Minister, that we've
got to work with people across the ag sector about managing land in a way that is environmentally responsible
but also allows for food production.

The Hon. WES FANG: They were very broad statements. I'm more going to focus—"laser-like focus,"
as one of your colleagues likes to say—in on the issues and try and tease out your understanding, as a Minister,
of the responsibilities you have once these maps are implemented. Do you understand what agencies you have
under your direct control that would be part of the implementation of these maps?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. We'll be working closely with people in the ag sector through—
The Hon. WES FANG: Which departments, Minister?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Through Local Land Services, Mr Fang. Is that satisfactory for you?

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes. Whatis your understanding, Minister, of whatLocal Land Services may
be asked to do in relation to these maps?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: LocalLand Services will be required to complete the work that they
currently do with landholders across New South Wales.
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The Hon. WES FANG: That they currently do?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes. The maps will change—

The Hon. WES FANG: So the implementation of these maps won't affect their—
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes, it will.

The Hon. WES FANG: Okay, and how will it affect their—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No—Iet me rephrase it. I'm going to answer that question without
being interrupted. LocalLand Services do work with people across the ag sector and landholders about managing
land. They will continue to do that. The maps will have an impact, absolutely, on how land is managed. Local
Land Services will continue their work working with people in the sector on managingland, justas they do now.

The Hon. WES FANG: Given that you weren't briefed on the 24 September start, has LLS provided
you any briefing in relation to their understanding of the accuracy of the maps?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I know thatthereare views on some of the detail of the maps from the
perspective of—let me put it this way: If you're looking at a satellite image that shows land that's been cleared,
it's not necessarily always clear about the specific details of what's occurred across a geographical area. I have
those discussions with the department regularly, and I'll continue to do that to make sure that we're getting this
work right.

The Hon. WES FANG: If I'm to take your answer that you've just given me in the context that
I understand it, you've had ongoing conversations with LLS about the inaccuracy of those maps.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, that's not what I said. [ said there are a range of views about it,
and these things have to be, and will be, considered. These are, obviously, geographical maps. There are views on
particular areas. We'll work through that just as people would expect.

The Hon. WES FANG: Has the department provided you a brief as to the accuracy of the maps?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I have had regular and ongoing discussions with the department in
preparation for what's happening. I've also got responsibility for working with the department and formanaging
these issues across our agricultural sector. I will continue to do that. We haveregular discussions about what this
looks like—about what it looks like through a broad geographical perspective, and about what it looks like from
a local perspective.

The Hon. WES FANG: Minister, can I then tease that out a little bit more? Given that you've had
ongoing discussion with the department,and given that you're indicating thatthose mapsare going to be enacted
rathersoon, is it fair to say you have 100 per centre confidence in the accuracy of the maps? Let me rephrase that,
Minister—it might make it easier for you to answer—would the New South Wales Government enact maps if
they were aware that they were inaccurate?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Idon't think the way thatyou're posing the question is right, Mr Fang,
The question of accuracy isn't necessarily the right question—and I mean this respectfully—because this is
obviously a contentious and challenging issue for landholders. It's a question of how we manage these things with
landholders from local perspectives with a broad policy view, and that'swhatIwill be doing, whilst also dealing
with broad land-clearing issues.

The Hon. WES FANG: ['ve got limited time, so I just want to understand this. It is important for a
number of landholders, and they've asked me to ask these questions.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's very important.

The Hon. WES FANG: Is it fair to say then, Minister, thatif the New South Wales Government enacts
these maps—and if the date is right, and it is 24 September—that there is 100 per cent confidence within the New
South Wales Government thatthose mapsare accurate,and thatyouare happy to start enforcing proceedings on
the basis of those maps being accurate?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The mapswill be implemented— again, I don't have confirmation
about 24 September, but I'll have to assume that's correct—and we'll work through what that means for local
landholders. Again, it's not a question about accuracy in the way that you're putting it to me—and I understand
the seriousness of this. It'sa question of whatthe issues are from a local perspective. What type of vegetation may
have been cleared off.
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The Hon. WES FANG: Ifthe New South Wales Government implements these maps,and they can be
demonstrated to be inaccurate, are you prepared, as Minister, to indicate now that you will not follow through
with any enforcement or prosecutions that relate to the maps if they can be demonstrated to be inaccurate?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Mr Fang, [ havenot accepted the premise of your question. I am not
suggesting that they're inaccurate.

The Hon. WES FANG: I'm asking you Minister, in that circumstance then, are you 100 per cent
confident thatthe maps are accurate if the New South Wales Government continues with implementation on 24
September?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: MrFang—
The Hon. WES FANG: It's got to be one or the other, Minister.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It'snot.I acceptthatthe mapswill bein place.I wantto be clear: This
isn't a debate about whether the maps are accurate or not—they are.

The Hon. WES FANG: So they're accurate. Okay,you've justsaid thatthey're accurate.l understand,
thank you.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It'sa question of howwe are dealing with issues thatarise from a local
perspective, and what is defined as being cleared or not.

The CHAIR: Minister, cultural fishing—there are currently only two local managementplansthatare
on trial atthe momentin over a decade and a half since section 21 AA was passed. When are those two trial plans
being reviewed, firstly?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: You're right, there are only two. I would like to see more in place.
That's certainly the aim. I'm sorry, I didn't quite hear the last part of the question—when will they be reviewed?

The CHAIR: When will those two be reviewed? I think they were a two-year trial, so that should be
coming up.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I will take advice from Mr Sloan about when they are scheduled to be
reviewed. I do want to see more of them in place.

SEAN SLOAN: We havetwo trials, one for the Tweed and one for the Hastings. They both have been
extended for 12 months while they are reviewed with those communities. We've also commenced some work with
the Worimi community in Port Stephens on another local management plan.

The CHAIR: When you say they're being reviewed with those communities, is that the whole
community or are we just talking about the Aboriginal community?

SEAN SLOAN: In the first instance, because those two plans relate to the Aboriginal communities in
both those locations, the first step is to work with those communities. There's a group of Elders thatsit on a
steering committee that we work with. That's the process that is currently underway. I can say that both of the
trials of those local management planshave been hugely successful. They have engaged the community,and we
consider them to be a successful model for working with Aboriginal communities.

The CHAIR: You said you were working with another one.

SEAN SLOAN: Yes, with the Worimi community which is in Port Stephens.

The CHAIR: Port Stephens. How close are we to thatbeing enacted? Isthat going to be anothertrial or
is it going to—

SEAN SLOAN: It's a little unclearat this point how that community will want it to be framed. We have
had a number of meetings with the Elders in that community. I suspect it will be another trial, but that doesn'
have to be the case. This is something that we will work with the community on.

The CHAIR: Given the Minister's comments just then that she would like to see more, what are we
doing to actually see more of these developed and not taking another decade and a half to resolve this issue?

SEAN SLOAN: We work with our Aboriginal Fishing Advisory Council on mapping that processout.
We certainly have the ambition to work with other communities, particularly in the inland and freshwater space.
The trial of these two areas wasintended to be a blueprint forhow we can move forward and roll that same model
out across other communities.
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The CHAIR: Are we looking to engage with the South Coast? Particularly given that that has been a
hotspot for conflict and concerns around section 21 AA and how it's managed.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's certainly something that we would like to do. There are obviously
some challenges, which I say respectfully to everybody involved, in relation to the South Coast. What I will say
is I recently travelled down to Merimbula and met with local Aboriginal community leaders and fishers on
country,at my request, to engage with them directly aboutthe issues thatare being faced on the South Coast,but
also the opportunities that we might have to be able to work together.

The CHAIR: Did you meet with the abalone industry while you were down there?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I did. I metwith, yes, Aboriginal leaders to discuss how we can begin
some work to move forward. I thought it was a worthwhile discussion, to go down—I think I'm the first one to
have done that—to their country to talk to them about how we can work through some of the issues, and I say
"issues" respectfully, and opportunities that we have to potentially work together in relation to Aboriginal cultural
fishing in the community.I wantto continue those discussions. I did also meet with the abalone industry aspatt
of that visit. It was a great opportunity to be briefed by industry leadership about the challenges that they are
facing, particularly in relation to abalone fishing in that part of New South Wales, and I also look forward to
continuing those discussions with the industry.

The CHAIR: Let's unpack oneofthose issues or challenges that they're facing. Minister, you're aware
that the total allowable abalone catch is set at 100 tonnes?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes.
The CHAIR: Who leads the independent statutory body that sets the total allowable catch?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Mr Sloan might be ableto help me,or I'm happy to take that on notice,
but I know that they have provided me with recent advice to keep the levels at the same level.

The CHAIR: Yes, I've got the document here that says it's at 100 tonnes.

SEAN SLOAN: Thechair of the Total Allowable Fishing Committee is Will Zacharin, and then there's
a series of members that have economic, biological and fisheries management expertise. The committee has
autonomy to set those catch limits from the Minister and from the Government, so they have a full autonomy to
set catch limits across fisheries where we have those quotas set.

The CHAIR: IfI go directly to the document, on the second page it states:

A preliminary draft Harvest Strategy for the Abalone Fishery was developed in 2015 in consultation with industry and a working
group ... No further progress has been made to finalising this draft strategy.

Why has that draft strategy not been finalised?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sorry, I just missed the beginning of the question.

The CHAIR: There was a working group set up to draft a harvest strategy for abalone fisheries, so
essentially to go away from the current model and go to a harvest strategy. That was decided in 2015, but no
progress has been made. Why has no progress been made, in your opinion or the department's opinion?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Isthattome?Idon't know what happened in 2015.

The CHAIR: Perhaps Mr Sloan might be able to answer as to what are the stumbling blocks, in the
department's opinion.

SEAN SLOAN: Chair, I'm not familiar with the 2015 working group or harvest strategy. That was
before my time. ButI have had discussions with the industry about developing a harvest strategy for the abalone
fishery and actually for the dive fishery in general, so with urchins and turban shell, and that's somethingthat we
will work on with the industry going forward. But we've prioritised species that have had particularchallenges, in
our harvest strategy development so far, and the abalone fishery is certainly, I would say, on the priority list to
move forward with.

The CHAIR: I'm not too sure what feedback you've been given by the industry, but the industry have
given me the feedback that there's no point going to a harvest strategy when there is so much illegal take going
outthe back doorand,unless you canresolve that,you won't have a working and functionalabalone industry.I'd
just like to pass to the Minister a graph that has been provided to me by the industry showing their catch in
comparison to the illegal or unidentifiable catch over the last decade and a half. As you cansee if you look atthe
lower half,in the pastcouple of years, the illegal or unidentifiable catch hasactually overtaken their catch. Does
it concern you, as the Minister, that we've got such a highly valued fishery and such an important fishery—not
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justeconomically but because of the health of the system and what the abalone does forthe marine environment—
and you've got close to 50 tonnes of abalone going out the back door and being funnelled to outlaw motorcyck
gangs and Chinese gangs to be sold on the black market?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Look, Mr Banasiak, these are really important questions and this is
certainly a challenging issue that we need to manage, from the Government's perspective. There are a number
of—

The CHAIR: Sorry, can you see the correlation in the graph between—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I cansee the graph, butI'd like to answer the question becauseit is a
complicated situation, as you would be aware. There are native title claims afoot. There are, in fact, traditional
owners. There are issues before the courts in relation to these matters in relation to, first of all, abalone and,
secondly, in relation to native title defences.

The CHAIR: That's already been resolved.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Well, no, it hasn't.

The CHAIR: The casehascome down and said thatthe departmenthasthe burden of proof now. What
does that mean for the department in terms of enforcement? Does that mean you are going slightly hands-off or
more hands-off than you have been? You've looked at the graph, and that's what it indicates. Towards the last
couple of years, you've gone hands-off and the amount of illegal take has surpassed the commercial legal take.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: In relation to the first part of the question, that is not right. From
Fisheries' perspective, Fisheries hasa responsibility to manage our fisheries, as you know. Where there have been
prosecutions undertaken and we then have a situation where a native title defence is—I'm not sure of the legal
term, butclaimed, I guess, butagain [ mean this very respectfully, we're then restricted from being able to proceed
because there is information that the Government is working through to manage these issues more broadly that
Fisheries doesn'thaveaccessto. When [ mentioned earlier in my original answer about going down to meet with
Aboriginal leaders and groups aswell asthe abalone industry, thatis in relation to the questions that you're asking
now.

These arereally complex, important issues that we have to work through. Certainly, from my perspective
as the fisheries Minister but also from the whole Government's perspective, we need to find a resolution here so
that we can have our cultural fishing requirements and commitments met. I want to see Aboriginal communities
on the South Coast thrive and I want to continue to work with them abouthowto do that.I'm also working closely
with the industry and,as I've indicated, with the abalone industry down there to consider these issues. It's really
complex,but we haveto find a solution. I'm certainly doing my part,as part of the whole of government, to work
through these issues. You're right to raise the questions, but we're working through the complexity.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I wantto go backto some of the questions that Ms Cate Fachrmann was
asking you on shark nets. You mentioned that there is going to be a consultation with councils. When will that
consultation commence? I'm assuming it will start after the next council elections?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I should know this, but when are the council elections? I think they're
comingup in the next couple of weeks.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: On 14 September, yes.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I don'tthink I haveany time to consult with people before then, and
I think they're all in caretakermode anyway. We have said that we're going to consult with councils. We do want
to get to a situation where there can be local decision-making. It's not as simple as just going to a council and
saying, "What do you think?" because atthe moment the government taxpayersare paying for $20-odd million a
yearof new technology and the drum lines, drones and all of the other things that we're trialling across the coast.
That isn't done beach by beach,; it's done across geographical areas. We will be consulting with councils about
local views. I don'thave a specific timeline forthat. We will be certainly engaging with local councils again about
that decision-making but also factoring in what the broader State Government's responsibilities are and
particularly what broader taxpayers are paying for this stuff.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Will that also consider the fact that taxpayers are paying for shark nets?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Theyare. They are paying$2 million a yearasopposed to $20 million
a year for new technology. I've got to make sure it works. That's the responsible thing to do.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Canyou provide a breakdown of where you got the figure of $20 million
and the figure of $2 million? When you throw out a figure like that, it's unclear whether a lot of that money is
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going into research into these alternatives or thatis how much the alternatives actually cost to run, which is quite
a different consideration.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's a little bit of both. I might have the numbers wrong. I think it is a
total of $21 million a year. Again, someone will correct me.

SEAN SLOAN: I can provide a breakdown.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: If you can on notice provide a bit of a breakdown.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: That's fine. It includes all of those things.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: That's quite a different thing if it's going to research.
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Sure.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: It's quite different to implementation of the alternatives. You talked about
local decision-making. Will the councils have powers in some way to determine nets go in or don't go in, oris it
more of a consideration of what the local councils want?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: At this stage it's going to be both because,atthe moment,I certainly
want to consult with local communities and local councils about their views, but the shark mitigation tools that
we use arerolled outacross a geographical area. It'snot aseasy assaying optin, optoutand we'll continue to pay
for it in some areas or not. The consultation is going to be genuine. I genuinely want to hear from local
communities about their views. Some of them have been expressed quite clearly. As I indicated this morning,
there are councils that are adamant that they want to keep the nets and there are councils who have indicated that
they are adamant that they don't. We'll work through with local communities about that at the same time as
working through what it means from a whole mitigation work perspective.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Justto take this quote which is, "Councils would need to take responsibility
for the safety of the community if they wish to negotiate on shark mitigation methods."Is this an attemptto cost
shift onto councils? I'm just wondering why councils would need to prove that they're keeping beachgoers safe
when, for starters, the control over the program and all the technology that's being used is actually run at the
moment by the DPI? But also the research itself shows that shark nets are actually not keeping beachgoers safe
now. Ifwe've got one method that we know is ineffective—thatis not me saying that; thatis university research
saying that—why is it now on the councils to have to prove this?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: It's going to have to be a conversation between the Government and
councils. At the moment, the State Government is paying for all of this and councils are responsible for swimmer
safety and beach safety on their local beaches.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: So this is a bit of cost shifting onto councils?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The discussion will have to include the resources that are currently
being put in by the State Government. I'll give you an example of one thatis probably a little easier to have
conversations about. The smart drum lines are operated through us, but there are drones that we're operating
through Surf Life Saving NSW. The surveillance can probably be conducted in a more localised way, but these
are the conversations we're going to havetohave. At the momentitis fully paid for by the State Government, that
is why we're making the decisions.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: So the effort going forward is to share some of those costs. Is that what
you have in mind? That sounds like what you're suggesting.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, I'm not pre-empting it. I'm saying we're going to consult with
councils about localdecision-makingbut that includes what localdecision-makingmeans. I fully respect the views
of local councils and I absolutely want to hear them. It is all well and good for them to offer an opinion but the
State Government is currently paying for it.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are you expecting, through this process, thatnext yearthere may be some
council areas that won't have shark nets put in because they've moved to alternatives?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'mnotgoing to pre-emptanything fornextyear. I've outlined the plan
and the Government has outlined the plan forthe upcoming summer. We'll consult with people about that, consult
with councils and local communities about that,andwe'll look atthe data atthe end of the summer,justas we did
this year.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Just to move on to the $21 million that was in the budget in regards to
spending on animalwelfare, I know you mentioned earlier thatthe first step is that you're allowing enforcement
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agencies to apply for some or all of that money. If the organisations were to receive that entire $21 million, what
would happen to the other animal welfare initiatives that you're working on, such as the Independent Office of
Animal Welfare? Will there be other money allocated for those projects?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The amountof money in this year's budget is $21 million. As I've
outlined this morning, we have opened up a process for enforcement agencies for charitable organisations to be
able to apply for funding. They've got to provide us with information on their enforcement costs and activities.
Up until now, thatjust hasn't been provided. I can't even guess a figure because there's just no information provided
between enforcement agencies and government as to what money is for and spent on before now. We've asked
them to apply—

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, just on that, I know that the DPI had done an assessment on the
fundingthat wasrequired by those enforcement agencies and obviously, through that assessment, they would have
provided a plan for exactly how much money that they were proposing that they needed within the department of
primary industries and they made a recommendation to you. What happened to that assessment and why are we
now saying that nothing has been provided up until now, so therefore we have to go through this budget bid
process when we've already done that DPI process? What happened with that and why are we now doing this on
top of that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: A couple of things on this. First ofall, this is the first yearwe've had
to have this process in place because our Government put in grants guidelines as a new Government last year
sometime—I can't remember exactly when—to make sure that money being spent in this way is properly
accounted for. That's an appropriate thing to do. It's just that this year than other years, because that process and
thatrequirement wasn'tin place. We've had to putit in place because money has gone out the door through grants
funding that hasn't properly been accounted for. We enacted laws to make sure that it would be. The charitable
organisations, the opportunity is open now for them to make their submissions on enforcement costs.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, I just wantto talk aboutthat DPI process. You said thatthe RSPCA
hasn't provided any information to the Government in regard to what money they need to actually enforce animal
protection laws. My understandingis that obviously they have because they went through a lengthy process with
the department of primary industries prior to this grants program opening. What happened to all of that
information? I understand that there's a grants program, but why hasn't that information been included in that?
Why are we starting all overagain?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Fair enough question. Ithasn't been a process through the department.
The charitable organisations—and I would say in particular the RSPCA—put in a budget bid. As organisations
do, they made a submission, they wrote to myself and I think probably the Treasurer.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Butthere wasa DPI processbefore thatto advise you on how much money
that the DPI thought should be allocated to the enforcement of POCTAA.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, it's not a question of what the department thinks should be
allocated. In the past, these organisations were provided half a million dollars, a couple of hundred thousand
dollars a year for enforcement activities. A year or so ago, through the Office of Local Government, they were
provided an amount of $20 million-something for various things, which included enforcement activities. But it
also included funding for facilities and a whole range of other bits and pieces that we've tried to work through so
as to not delay this process. Putting in a I guess a budget bid and writing a letter to the Minister saying, "This is
how much we want from the New South Wales Government," is very different—and I respect lots of organisations
do that and thatis perfectly fine. But forus to go through the process, we're now saying to them, "You need to
provide us with specific information." We're going to pay for some costs for enforcement work through this, not
random facilities and otherbits and pieces that cameout of the last funding, but enforcement. They have to provide
us with the detailon whatthatmeans. That'sthe process that's currently being worked through. It's not a question
of the department coming up with a figure. Part of what we've committed to do is allocate—not just deal with
funding in the short term but work through what it needs to be, year on year, going forward so that we're not in
this situation every year, if that helps.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, I'd like to go back to the recent announcement that Norco had
its contract cut to supply milk through the NSW Health contract. Firstly, are business support measures still
available for farmers on the North Coast recovering from the 2022 floods?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think there are two different questions. Norco—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: The next partof it is will these support programs, if there are any that

are still in place,be extended to Norco dairy farmers who are impacted by the Government's decision to withdraw
milk through the NSW Health contract?
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The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Okay. Look, the decision in relation to Norco was made through
NSW Health, or however their procurement processes work. That decision is really a question for Health, as
Iindicated this moming. My office has had discussions with the health Minister's office about community
concerns. [ knowthat there are community concerns. Certainly the member for Lismore is very vocalabout raising
things on behalf of her community, and I appreciate her for that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: With your Parliamentary Secretary, and the member for Lismore—do
you support her position, which is calling to have this decision reversed? Do you support Janelle Saffin with that
call?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I think Janelle Saffin is a fantastic local member who is a great
advocate forhercommunity,and she is campaigning foran issue that matters to her community,and thatis exactly
her job.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do you supporther calls to have this decision reversed, asthe Minister
for Regional New South Wales?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: These are questions for the health Minister. I'm not able to influence
Health procurement. But my office has, as I indicated this moming, raised concerns, as people would expect, as
the Minister for Regional New South Wales, and the decisions are a matter for them. If there are any issues from
farmers' perspectives as a result of this, then I'll haveto assess that information and the Government will have to
assess that information. I don't have any information to that effect now. But if it does arise, then we'll look at it.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, are you familiar with Radio 2WEB?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Recently, Rod from Radio 2WEB, with the shadow Minister for
Western New South Wales, just this week madea bit of a call-out to get you on the program and said on air that
your office has rejected several requests to jump onto 2WEB, based out in Bourke, as the Minister for Western
New South Wales, and Minister for Agriculture. Can you commit today to Rod and the team and western New
South Wales that you'll jump on 2WEB and give them an update on what is happening in western New South
Wales from the New South Wales Government?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Of course. I'm always happy to do radio, particularly in western
New South Wales. I'll probably have to bump Stephen Lawrence off the list.

The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: Feel free.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: No-one wants to hear from him anyway, so don't worry about it.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The Governmentis communicatingbroadly with western New South
Wales, and Stephen Lawrence is a fantastic person to be doing that. But sure, of course.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I know Rod, and I've been on there in a previous life. He would
genuinely appreciate that, Minister.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Of course—genuinely happy to do it.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: We'll make sure thathe reaches outto your office and you jump onto
2WEB and get an update.I'd like to move now to—what is it? DPIRD, the new acronym for the merged
department. How many jobs are based at the headquarters in Orange? Have we seen a reduction or an increase
since budget estimates last year?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: As tohow many people arebased in Orange, I will ask the department.
Otherwise, I'll haveto take the specifics on notice. I don't know how many people work out of Orange off the top
of my head.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, we'll comeback to you in the afternoon on the specifics. But
as the Minister, can you commit today that Orange will remain the headquarters for the Department of Primary
Industries and Regional Development?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Well, the Department of Primary Industries and Regional
Developmentis based all around regional New South Wales. We have 200 offices, apparently, or various places
of work acrosstheregions. I'm certainly very proud to have a presence across regional New South Wales. Orange
is—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But it's fair to say, Minister, that when that department was
decentralised all those yearsago, and for the past20-odd years, Orange hasbeen the home of the Department of
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Primary Industries, the Department of Agriculture—a lot of different names over history. It is, fair to say, the
home of the Department of Primary Industries. It has been the head office for DPI forever, since it was
decentralised. Will that remain the case under Minister Moriarty?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: There areno plansto move operations out of Orange, butit hasn'tbeen
a standalone department since you guys were in government because you guys were the ones who merged it into
Regional New South Wales. It wasn't a standalone departmentwhen I became the Minister; it was part of Regional
New South Wales. It's now part of—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But it was its own business unit, correct, Minister?
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: You guys put it—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [t was its own defined business unit with its own—
The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, it was a part of—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes, it was—with its own defined director-general.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: No, it's partofthe Department of Regional New South Wales. I know
that the National Party and the leader likes to talk up a big game about moving it. He didn't while he was the
Minister. I don't know why he didn't. He had the opportunity because he was the Minister. Now we've consolidated
into a new department called the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development to focus our
attention and resources on where they are needed across agriculture, across Local Land Services, across regional
New South Wales. I want to make sure that the resources are used appropriately.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Canyoucommittoday thatthere will be no job cuts or losses from the
DPIRD out of Orange?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: There areno plansto moveanythingout of Orange, but the Department
of Primary Industries and Regional Development has a presence all over regional New South Wales. We've got
people based in a whole—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Which you said in a previous answer. Thank you for that. To redirect
that part of the question, which office is the largest office for the DPIRD in New South Wales?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I'll take the specifics of the breakdown of where 5,500 people work—
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Which office has the most staff, Minister?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [I'll take the details of the breakdown of where some 5,500 people
work. Again, I'm pretty sure it is 200-odd presences spread over regional New South Wales. We're not planning
on shrinking the footprint of the department spread across the regions. It's important thatthe various sections of
the department are well represented so that they're easily accessible for and embedded in our regional
communities. That's how we get the best advice. That's how I get the best advice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: In a response to representations to the member for Goulburn in May
2024, you advised thatthe New South Wales Governmentno longer considers blackberry to be a noxious weed.
However, on the New South Wales Government Environment and Heritage website it says, verbatim:

Blackberry has been declared a noxious weed in NSW and is also listed as a Weed of National Significance.
Can you please confirm today and make it clear if blackberry is a noxious weed?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I would havetakenadviceonthat,andI'll takeadvice on thatnow. If
the department would like to confirm—otherwise I'll take it on notice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: According to the Local Land Services website:

Local Land Services works in partnership with local councils to ensure best practice management of natural resources, including
weed management and pest control ...

Can you please advise how much funding is provided to the New South Wales councils for weed management,
and do you, as the Minister, think that this is adequate to control the critical invasion of blackberries?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Pests and weeds are absolutely a massive issue across regional
New South Wales; there is no question about that. The funding that we're providing atthe momentis the same as
was provided under the previous Government. We've also allocated $10 million towards a good neighbour
program. And, as has been well canvassed today, we've set up a biosecurity commission with a biosecurity
commissioner in place to help to provide advice to me and to the Government and to the Parliament on how best
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to manage these things going forward. Certainly it's a massive issue—no question aboutthat—and how we look
to resource and deal with these things going forward will be a key part of the biosecurity commissioner's work.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: In August last year, The Daily Telegraph reported in relation to the
numberof media staffin yourdepartment,and you were quoted in that article sayingthe figure wasabsurd. I think
we discussed this at a previous estimates. Do you remember that?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I do.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: In August of last year, can you recall how many media staff were in
your department at that time?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Idon'tknowhow many mediapeople were in the department in August
last year. I'm happy to take it on notice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But you said it was absurd.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: What I said at the time, which I still say is: We've got to allocate
resources where they are best serving the people of regional New South Wales. Havinga very large comms team
inside the department may not be the best use of resources, particularly in a very difficult budget situation, which
we did inherit when we formed government. I want to make sure that we are allocating and using the finite
resources that we have to best advocate for and work for people across regional New South Wales.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: In August lastyearyoureferred to the numberof media staffasabsurd,
and I've gone back and had a look through some of the answers. There were 15 in the Department of
Regional NSW and there were five for the Department of Primary Industries. Can you tell me today how many
media staff the new Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development has, considering that you said
that 15 and five—20 staff—in your departmenta yearago was absurd? Do you know how many the DPIRD has
in media staff as of today?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Those weren't the numbers thatI was referring to last year, which is
why you're saying media staffand I'm sayingcomms. [t was a very large numberof people in thatsection. Again,
I say this a lot: I don't get involved in the internal workings of the department but I do need to make sure—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How many comms staff are in your DPIRD as of August?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —that taxpayerdollars are being spent in the right way and that
resources inside of my department are being used to best work for people.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: That's fine, butdo you know the number, Minister? How many media
staff or comms staff are in the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development as of August this
year?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: As of August this year, I don't know off the top of my head—
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: It's 26.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: —butI'm happy to take that on notice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Moving on to the McPhillamys mine, you may have seen that—

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I would be interested to check where you got the figures from. Do you
want to just give me the document you are referring to so I can check?

The CHAIR: Order! Can we not talk over the top of each other.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, you may have seen that yourboss, Chris Minns, the Premier
of New South Wales, hascome out and backed the McPhillamys goldmine near Blayney and is at odds with Tanya
Plibersek. I notice the Prime Minister hasjust recently—today; you may not have seen—come out and supportted
Chris Minns, the Premier of New South Wales. My question to youis: Do you support the McPhillamys goldmine
at Blayney, and have you advocated around the Cabinet table in recent days to find a solution for regional
New South Wales and for Central West New South Wales to save this billion-dollar project and the
800 good-paying jobs that will come with it?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I certainly support the views that the Premier has expressed on this
issue. Jobs, particularly at this scale, across regional New South Wales and in the Central West are vital, and I
was certainly disappointed by the decision. I think the Premier has expressed the views ofthe New South Wales
Government very well, and I support him wholeheartedly. You're right to say thatI was notaware thatthe Prime
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Minister has commented today, because I've been very focused on giving answers here at estimates. But I'm glad
if it's the case thatthatthe Prime Minister has supported the New South Wales Government's view, if that's right.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, have you reached out to Regis Resources or Blayney Shire
Council asthe Minister for Regional New South Wales about a State significant project that hasessentially been
axed? Have youreached out to either the mayor, council staff or the actual developer, being Regis Resources, to
see what your office could do to assist?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Regis Resources is being ably assisted with finding a way forward
through the appropriate Minister, which is Minister Houssos, the Minister for Natural Resources. She, as
I understand itand asI'm advised, is working closely with them to try and find a pathway forward,and I certainly
hope that is achieved.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have you spoken to Minister Houssos?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: AsI'vesaida few times today,l haven't spoken to anyone forthe past
four or five days.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Haveyousent a text message or an email? Have you got your chief of
staffto ring her office? What have you done in the past two daysto advocate fororsupport the Blayney Shire and
the Central West, as the Minister for Regional New South Wales, with your Cabinet colleagues?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm saying it right now, just as the Government has said publicly—
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You've been sick in bed.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I'm sorry if that's offensive to you, but it happens.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: No, if that's the case, that's the case; it's fine.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The Premier hasably explained the position of the New South Wales
Government, and I support him completely.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Will you speak with Minister Houssos and advocate for regional
New South Wales, advocate forthe Central West and advocate forthe 800 good-paying jobs that are associated
with that development that have essentially been axed by the Federal environment Minister?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Of course I'm always happy to speak to my colleague Minister
Houssos, but I know she is already ably dealing with this issue, and I support her 100 per cent.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: With regard to the ag commissioner and renewable energy zones, my
colleague in the chair asked a pretty diligent question earlier about what power, essentially, the ag commissioner
will have, in your view, in the legislation you're bringing forward. From memory, you said that the ag
commissioner could provide a voice for farmers around land use conflicts. Do you believe that the
ag commissioner should have more than just a voice? Is there any power that you are considering giving the ag
commissioner in the legislation you bring forward to give the ag commissioner some real meat,some real teeth,
around advocating for and protecting farmers from what is a completely unbalanced onslaught of renewable
energy projects in the Central West region?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The ag commissioner will have a really important role to play in
advocatingin this sector. They're not going to have the power to overrule planning rules and the renewable energy
zones that were, again, enacted by your previous Government and had bipartisan support. But they are going to
havethe ability to raise the issues and concerns of people in the ag sector and across regional New South Wales,
and I will want them to do that. I'll be interested in their advice about how to best manage these issues because
we do need to push forward with delivering our energy future, but we also need to make sure—and I certainly
want to work with landholders in agriculture to make sure—that we're protecting ag land and food production
land as best we can.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Lastweek,during an announcement of fundingaroundresearch stations
or during the presser, youslipped in thata review is being undertaken into research stations. Whose idea it was to
conduct the review? Who in your department ismanaging this review, and who is draftingthe terms of reference
for this review?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: Ididn'tslip in, in a press conference,thatI'm doing a review. We've
announced thatI've engaged Professor Mary O'Kane, the former chief scientist in New South Wales, along with
others on a panel, to conduct some work for me and for the Government looking at the State's research strategy.
It hasn't been looked at for over 10 years, and so it's appropriate that we look at the research strategy that we've
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got in New South Wales. As I said publicly with the Premier last week, technology has improved. There are
different issues in the sector than there were 10 years ago.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Who in the department is going to be managing this process?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: The secretary manages my requests. Whoevermanages it inside ofthe
department, I'm not sure. I'm happy to defer to him to provide a name.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: That's all right. Mr Tyndall, are you managing that process?
ADAM TYNDALL: Not me, specifically and individually, no.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Minister, will yourule outany job losses in regional New South Wales
as a part of this review?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We're reviewing the research strategy. I have asked Professor Mary
O'Kane and a panelof people who have expertise in this field to review theresearch strategy for the State.1 want
to make sure thatit's fit for purpose. I'm going to work with stakeholders about how we are conducting our
research, both now and into the future.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But can you give comfort to the good people that work in our 21
research stationsacross regional New South Wales that their jobs are not on the line andthat,asthe Minister for
Agriculture, and Minister for Regional New South Wales, you will emphatically, from the beginning, rule outjob
losses across those research stations and look specifically at the structure of how those research stations deliver,
rather than any job losses?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: [certainly will take this opportunity to thank allof the fantastic people
who are working in our research facilities around the State. They do absolutely phenomenal, terrific work that
I don't think gets highlighted enough. I take every opportunity I can as Minister—and the people sitting around
me will be sick of me saying it—to highlight the fantastic work that occurs.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Are you preparedto rule outany job losses as part of this review into
the 21 research stations?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: I want to celebrate the great work that happens in these research
facilities around the State.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ think you're answering it for me.

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: As I've previously answered, ['ve asked Professor Mary O'Kane and a
panel of experts in this field to look at our research strategy because,again, it hasn't been looked at for 10 years
or S0.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Separately to that,will yourule out the prospect of selling off any of
the land or the research stations as part of the review?

The Hon. TARA MORIARTY: We're looking at ourresearch strategy because it hasn't been looked at
forthe last 10 years. We've announced $60 million to upgrade a number of research facilities because they havent
properly been invested in. There's some terrific research going on, but we need to look at the research strategy to
make sure that what we're doing is fit forpurpose, that we're working with industry in the right way, and that we're
embracing technology and helping research to manage climate change in the ag sector. All of these things will
have a different perspective now than they did 10 yearsago, when it was last looked at,and I look forward to the
advice that they give me on that.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: No questions, Chair.
The CHAIR: That concludes our time with you, Minister.
(The Minister withdrew.)

(Luncheon adjournment)
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Mr PETER TURNELL, Acting Executive Director, Fisheries, Department of Primary Industries and Regional
Development, sworn and examined

Ms HARRIET WHYTE, Executive Director, Regional Programs and Partnerships, Department of Primary
Industries and Regional Development, affirmed and examined

Ms KATE MEAGHER, Deputy Secretary, Community Engagement Group, Premier's Department, affirmed and
examined

Dr JACQUELINE TRACEY, Executive Director, Policy, Local Land Services, Department of Primary
Industries and Regional Development, before the Committee via videoconference, affirmed and examined

The CHAIR: Welcome back to the afternoon session of Budget Estimates 2024-2025. We will swear
in Mr Tumell, Ms Whyte, Ms Meagherand Dr Tracey. Picking up from where we left, Mr Orr—and feel free to
direct this possibly to Mr Sloan or Mr Turnell—around cultural fishing and the issue of the abalone. I passed a
copy of a graph showing the illegal catch against whatthe commercialcatchis. Over a decade and a half, it shows
quite clearly a pattern of where the confusion is around what is and what isn't cultural fishing, and how that's led
toaninflux oranincrease in illegal take of abalone down on the South Coast. My question is: Noting the Minister's
dancingaround the issue saying it's a complex issue and we need to work through it, if we boil it down to the core
issue, which is resource management,isn't that what we should be caring about—resource management? How is
it good resource management to have 45 to 50 tonne of abalone being totally unaccounted for, potentially, and
going outtheback doorand being sold illegally? Shouldn'tthatbe our primary concern—addressingthe resource
management issue that is potentially half the total allowable catch [TAC] going out the back door?

STEVE ORR: Chair, noting the comments of the Minister earlier on today, I might ask Mr Sloan to
respond.

SEAN SLOAN: Thank you, Chair. Certainly the figures that you presented—I've seen those figures,
and I'm aware of those figures, and that certainly is of great concern to Fisheries. We have, obviously, a role. Our
primary role is to ensure sustainability of our fish stocks. That'son behalf of all people in New South Wales and
it's all fishing sectors—commercial, recreational, Indigenous. The practicalchallenge that we have is on the South
Coast, where there is a native title claim. That claim was lodged in 2017 to the Government but has been an
ongoing challenge on the South Coast. We, and our Fisheries officers in the field, have to monitor the take of
fisheries resources within the laws that we have. For the commercial fishery that'sa quota and, asyou alluded to,
there's a totalallowable catch that's set by an independent committee that's set up under the fisheries Act and has
autonomy from Ministers and department. They set the quota, and they've said the quota forthe last two or three
years at 100 tonnes.

Our Fisheries officers, based on their field observations—based on apprehensions of illegal activity but
also on otherobservations with dumps of shells thathave been caught, processed on the rocks and then taken off
somewhere else, whether they're sold or whether they're taken into communities, our Fisheries officers estimate
theamount ofillegalcatch thatistaken as part of that activity. I want to sayunregulated catch. We're not regulating
that take from the fishery, and that's the problem. That does get taken into account in the assessment of the status
of the resource and the viability of the resource, and that's what comes out of that Total Allowable Fishing
Committee.

The CHAIR: Canljust stop youonthat? If youlook atthe document, whenit talksaboutit, it saysthat
the main indicator is drawn from fishery-dependent data. Are you including those observations of Fisheries
compliance officers as part of that fishery-dependent data? How I understood it to be—when you say
fishery-dependent data,I'm talkingabout the data from the commercial fishers themselves in terms of their returns
and their own compliance within the Act. So you're saying fishery-dependent data includes observations from
compliance officers.

SEAN SLOAN: The Total Allowable Fishing Committee will make an assessment of the health of the
abalone resource, and they base that on statistics we get from the commercialfishery. That'susually catch rates—
so the kilograms per day that divers catch. We have quite sophisticated data in the fisheries. We have that
information and then ourcompliance officers who are operating in the field will estimate what they believe is the
unregulated catch outside of that system. The figures that you were presenting earlier today are those figures. Our
compliance officers don'thave an absolute numberoran absolute countof that unregulated catchbut they estimate
it based on their observations. That's been steadily increasing, so we are deeply concerned about that issue.

The CHAIR: Is part of that estimation also looking at the size of that unregulated catch in terms of
whether it's of the legal size or whether it's undersized? Obviously the commercial guys have a legal size that they
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adhere to, and it's slightly larger than the recreationalsize. Is there any data around how much ofthat unregulated
catch is undersized?

SEAN SLOAN: There is, and the majority of the unregulated catch—and this is based on the
apprehensions that have occurred, but also on the shells thatare dumped on rocksnearthe shoreline. The majority
of that—in fact, we estimate about 80 per cent of that—is undersized or immature abalone. That means those
abalone haven't had the opportunity to reproduce. When you take the biology of abalone—whichis thattheyare
very site-attached and they're very localised on reefs—you can havea biologically or genetically distinct stock of
abalone on one sside of a reef headland which is a kilometre away from the other side of the headland,and they'l
be completely discrete genetic stocks. So you can actually, with that biology, remove the abalone that are
undersize and immature. If they're notable to reproduce on those patches of reef, you can actually remove them
from those reefs altogether. What we're seeing, particularly on the east coast, with the increase in numbers of
urchins, is thaturchins will then take overthathabitat. Because ofhowdominantthey arein those habitats, there
won't be any room for any other animals.

The CHAIR: My understandingis thatthey're notas geographically attached when it comes to breeding
asabaloneare. Abalone actually keep the sea urchin in check, and they also keep the kelp in check as well, so the
abalone are a key part of balancing that marine environment. To go back to your point about not regulating it,
where are we at with actually getting a regulation up or drafted that will feed from section 21 AA and then feed
into the local managementplans? My understandingis that there was a draft regulation in 2015 that went nowhere.
It seems like thatis the missing link here in terms of dealing with this issue of what is cultural fishing and when
it steps into whatis clearly becoming a commercialenterprise—at the moment, an illegal commercial enterprise—
for many people down there.

SEAN SLOAN: The first point I would make is that we are regulating the take in the fishery, but we
have to operate within the legal framework that we've got. There have been some significant challenges,
particularly where native title claims exist. There's a distinction between cultural fishing and native title. Cultural
fishing is where an Aboriginal person is taking fish for their own personal, domestic, communal, cultural or
spiritual needs. Native title is the same; however, native title has a set of rights associated with it which are much
stronger than, say, an average cultural fishing—

The CHAIR: Does the native title allow them to sell?

SEAN SLOAN: That's, I think, a really critical question which is something that has been the subject
of numerous court cases in recent times. There was a case that recently was referred to the Court of Criminal
Appeal which did draw conclusions on three key points, which were about the purpose of the activity, the activity
itself and who bears the onus of proving native title.

The CHAIR: But nothing around whether it entitles them to actually sell that take fora commercial
enterprise.

SEAN SLOAN: There was, and that was, I think, quite a landmark ruling by the Court of Criminal
Appealin thatnativetitle holders cannotsell catch outside of the community. That meansthat this issue that has
been bouncing around in the courts for some years hasnow got a very clear ruling, so that will mean there's some
clarity for how we address those issues going forward.

The CHAIR: Given thatthis decision hascome down, when will you draftregulation thatreflects some
sort of mechanism foryour Fisheries compliance officers to crack down at that point when it's not cultural fishing
anymore, it's not native title and they've gone to sell it? That's when this regulation comes into effect. When will
we see a regulation that deals with that ruling?

SEAN SLOAN: Our laws already state that. However, native title does override laws of the State when
it comesto the native title rights that fishers have. But where, to some extent, the grey area hasbeen is the nature
of a nativetitle right versus a general cultural fishing right. The cultural fishing regulation, which is the one that
you're referring to, won't address the nativetitle issue. That's a separate order of right. I can explain thatin a bit
more detail if necessary.

The CHAIR: Yes, we'll probably pick it up when I come back to my turn.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Dr Filmer, this morning I was asking the Minister about the DPI's
assessment of the funding that went into the enforcement agencies. I think in the last estimates you told me that
the DPI had completed that process and had made a recommendation to the Minister. Is that correct?

KIM FILMER: A review has been done but, asthe Minister said this morning, I wouldn't go so far as
to say it has made a recommendation. There's been a review undertaken that looked at the various enforcement
agencies around the country in different States to see how they fund their agencies.
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STEVE ORR: Ms Hurst, canl justprovide a point of clarification. The distinction between the review
and understandingwhat funding needs might actually be versus the granting of funding are two quite distinctive
processes. As the Minister alluded to earlier today, we have grant guidelines and we are legally obliged to follow
those grant guidelines. That's the process we're in the midst of at the moment.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Yes, I understand the difference, absolutely, but my understanding was
that the DPI was doing its review—and I believe it might have even been an election commitment prior to this
whole grants process occurring—as a completely separate process.

STEVE ORR: Correct.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Because I couldn't get any answers this morning from the Minister, I wanted
to double-check where thatreview was up to. I'm specifically asking about thatreviewatthe moment, if that helps
clarify the question. Did thatreview include speaking to the enforcement agencies in any capacity,orwas it just
a review on funding elsewhere generally?

KIM FILMER: My team didn't do the actualreview. I'm pretty sure they were consulted to feed into
that process but, in terms of the details of that, I'm not able to give that to you.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Which team did it? I thought it was coming from DPI.
KIM FILMER: Yes, from DPI but not in my direct team.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Not the animal welfare section.

KIM FILMER: A section thatdoesanimalwelfare work, but not directly under me. I'm familiar with
the review but, in terms of the exact detail of that, I'm unable to give that to you.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Which section was it?

RACHEL CONNELL: I canhelp you with that, Ms Hurst. The team that undertook the review was in
my policy team.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Who was involved in that process? Can you give me some details about
how long that process took?

RACHEL CONNELL: Iwould havetotakethatonnotice,butIcan get the answers to those questions
and come back to you this afternoon. I understand we spoke to a range of agencies including external parties,
including the RSPCA and Animal Welfare League, but I'll confirm that and come back to you.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: As partofthatprocess, the RSPCA andthe Animal Welfare League were
consulted. There was a broader review on what other States were doing.

RACHEL CONNELL: Yes. My understandingis it was a comparative benchmarking exercise. We
looked at the funding approaches that were taken in otherjurisdictions to gather some information to look at what
the approaches were across different States and different compliance efforts, if you like. My understandingis that
we also looked at some of the compliance functions internal to the department to get an understanding of costs
and approaches to enforcement and compliance under other regulatory frameworks.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Did it also include any kind of consideration in regard to the cost of the
enactment of POCTAA more generally—how much it would actually cost to fund the enforcement ofthat criminal
legislation?

RACHEL CONNELL: My understanding is that the review was undertaken to get a better
understanding for what would be reasonable enforcement and compliance costs for the POCTAA framework.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Did thatreport include any recommendations, or was it just a general
review that was given to the Minister?

RACHEL CONNELL: I'd have to take thaton notice. I've only been in the role for three weeks, but
we can come back to you this afternoon on that.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Ifyou could take that on notice, that would be fantastic. Does the DPI
receive the quarterly reports on the spending of the previous amount of funding, or does that just go to OLG?

STEVE ORR: My understanding is that that goes to the Office of Local Government.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Has DPI ever requested a copy of those reports or is it only received by
OLG?

STEVE ORR: 1 believe we did.
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RACHEL CONNELL: The issue would be over what period of time we requested that information.
We can find that out. I also understand they've nowmoved to publish those quarterly reports. l understand RSPCA
and Animal Welfare League have both published reports from the last couple of financial years on their website.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I think the change was just very recent, because the reports thatthey have
published are very different, I believe, to the onesthat havebeen made to the departments. I think they have agreed
to make them public, but there were some complicating factorsin regard to the information that was contained in
those reports being public. I think there is still a process to go before thatoccurs. I just want to clarify, you said
you would need to find out over what period DPI were requesting the quarterly reports of the funding spending.
I'm just a bit confused, sorry.

RACHEL CONNELL: My understanding is RSPCA and Animal Welfare League have been
undertaking enforcement compliance functions under the legislation for over a decade now.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: The $21 million was only given very recently. It's those quarterly reports
that have come through since that larger amount of funding, which was just over a year ago.

RACHEL CONNELL: We cantakethatonnoticeand come back to you. Just to clarify, you're seeking
information about whether we've requested those reports over the last 12 months?

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Whether the DPI has requested those quarterly reports around the 21.
I imagine previously they would have only been going to DPI. They wouldn't have gone to the Office of Local
Government, because it was only that $21 million that actually came from the Office of Local Government.

STEVE ORR: Correct. The arrangement with that money is with the Office of Local Government. I'm
aware we've asked for one of those reports just to understand the spending pattern, but there may well have been
others. We'll come back to you, as Ms Connell has alluded to.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Haveany ofthosereports,to yourunderstanding, then gone to the Minister,
oris it something that's just stayed within the department?

STEVE ORR: I'll need to confirm, but I think it's just stayed within the department, Ms Hurst.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Going back to Dr Filmer, in regard to animal research, I've asked a few
times about how the DPI is shifting to a system thatis going to make it easier and quicker to publish the animal
use statistics in animalexperimentation. The latest statistics that we have currently available are still from 2022.
Canyou give me anupdate on where we are up to with that new online reporting system that will ensure that that
data can be available much faster?

KIM FILMER: Yes, I can.I spoke—a couple of years ago now, I think it was—about changing the
process, and we have digitalised the ability for people to putthe data in. Itstill requires, atthis stage, a fairbit of
data cleansing, I think it's referred to—checking to make sure thatthe data thatis actually produced is accurate.
As youknow from the numbersin this space,there can be room for error. We do a lot of crosschecking to ensure
thatthatdata is as accurate as it possibly canbe. We haverecently—in the last 12 months—undertaken to tran
somebody else to help in that process. Thatis, atthe moment, one of the steps along the chain that takes a bit more
time. At the moment, the data comesin atthe end of March. We look atit. It usually gets into ARRP by the end
of the year, and then it goes to the Minister's office.

There's a bit of a lag in that sense, but the reason is that we are trying to ensure that the dataisasaccurate
as it possibly canbe. We arelooking atsome other processes though that will enable the input data to be almost
clean and looked at betterasit comes in, so using technology to make that process more efficient. We're continuing
to look atthatto try to makeitasstreamlined as possible. It's always going to be behind because a yearhappens—
it's on a calendaryear—andthen the datacomesin atthe end of March, and it then hasto be looked at. The report
needs to be written and it has to be approved by ARRP. There's a whole process. As you know, ARRP doesn't
meet every week, so you've got to wait foran ARRP meeting to come around, or whatever. Thattakes a little bit
of time.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: At the momentthereis a delay of at least 2}2 yearsfor thatdata to come
out. With that new trained person, do you have a goal in mind as to how quickly—obviously 2% years is an
extremely long time to be cleansing data and to be going through that process.

KIM FILMER: No, it's not2%: yearsof cleansing data. The datacomesin atthe end of March and then
it—

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, cleansing the data and then going through those processes was my
statement. At the moment the data 2! years old. That's the most recent data that we have available.
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KIM FILMER: No, it's not 2! years old. It's 1% years since the last bit of data was actually—at the
end of 2022. That data comes to us in March 2023, and then it's looked at by the department. Then it goes to
ARRP to be approved, and then it goes to the Minister. We're in the middle of 2024 now, so it's 18 months since
that last—

The Hon. EMMA HURST: But the last data we have is 2022.

KIM FILMER: The last end of 2022 data is 18 monthsold right now, butit was published earlier this
year, if my maths is correct.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: No, I don't think so.
The CHAIR: We might do some maths work in the break while the Opposition have their time.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, I want to go back to the biosecurity commissioner's role
because,and I quote the Minister earlier, "I've got to follow proper processes." That's what she said in an answer
to my colleague Ms Hurst. I still find lots of grey areashere, so let's go through it from the beginning. Ms Healy
was the Interim Biosecurity Commissioner, correct?

STEVE ORR: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: When did you first advertise or when was the selection panel established
for round one, as you described earlier?

STEVE ORR: This is before my time in this role, just forclarity. [ was sitting on that panelasthe CEO
of Local Land Services at the time.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: We might pause there. I'll go to Mr Sloan, then. You were the acting
director-general at the time, correct?

SEAN SLOAN: Correct.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Ifyouwere theacting director-general, you set up the selection panel
Is that correct?

SEAN SLOAN: I'm just pausing because I don't think it was me that set up the selection panel. This is
some time ago now, Mr Farraway. I did chair the selection panel. Can I take that on notice please?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: That'sfine. Canyoutakethatonnotice,and we'll see if we can maybe
resolve that before the end of the day.

SEAN SLOAN: Sure.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You are chairing the selection panel, of which Mr Orr is a member,
correct?

SEAN SLOAN: Correct.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: And Ms Healy is a member?
SEAN SLOAN: Correct.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: At whatpointdid youhavea conversation with Ms Healy asto whether
she was interested in becoming the biosecurity commissioner full-time when you were acting in the role?

SEAN SLOAN: I had no conversation with her.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Did Ms Healy give you any indication, when she was the interim
commissioner, that she had an interest in becoming the full-time commissioner?

SEAN SLOAN: Not as I recall.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How many meetings did the selection panel have?

SEAN SLOAN: As I recall, we held interviews over the course of a single day.I think we resolved the
business in a single day.I don't recall us having any further sessions, but that's actually stretching my memory,
Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do you remember how many applicants there were in total for the
advertised position at the time?

SEAN SLOAN: I don't recall. There were a number of applicants, but I don't recallhow many.
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The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Are you able to take that on notice? I'm not looking for their names,
just the number.

SEAN SLOAN: I can take that on notice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: As the chair of the selection committee or panel, you sent a
recommendation that was obviously a recommendation that yourself and the two other members, including
Ms Healy, had concluded thatthere was a potentialcandidate that youhad selected, and that candidate was sent
to the Minister's office for approval. Is that correct?

SEAN SLOAN: That'scorrect, butit was a consensus by the panelof putting candidates forward to the
Minister for consideration.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Was there a shortlist or just one candidate?

SEAN SLOAN: There was a shortlist.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How many were on the shortlist?

SEAN SLOAN: I don't recall, actually. There was a shortlist. I'll have to take that on notice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You send a recommendation from the selection panel for either a
candidate or a shortlist, which you will take on notice and come back to us.

SEAN SLOAN: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How quickly were you advised by the Minister or Minister's office that
the candidate or candidates were unsatisfactory to the Minister?

SEAN SLOAN: Idon'trecall, Mr Farraway, to be honest. The job of the panelwas to put forward advice
to the Minister. The paneldid that and it was then a matter for the Minister, and I don't recall the process from
there.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: At what stage was round two commenced? Did you have any
conversations with the Minister's office—anyone in the office, including the chief of staff—as to commencing,
on the Minister's advice or direction, a round two recruitment process? Or did you pick that up, Mr Orr?

SEAN SLOAN: I didn't have any involvement in that round two process.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Sloan, once you sent the recommendation on, as the chair of the
selection panel, you've met; you've shortlisted; there could be a candidate or a couple of candidates—you will
come back to us on that; and you've sent the recommendation in to Minister Moriarty's office. At that point, is
that where you finish with the process?

SEAN SLOAN: That's correct.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, where do you pick up in the process, bearing in mind thatyou
were on the panel?

STEVE ORR: Yes. Ithink Mr Sloan hascovered off on the process of the first panel. Also, to beclear,
all panel membershave an obligation to declare any interests and my understanding was there was certainly not
anapplication from Dr Healy. She wasn't interested in the role. That was my understandingof all of that. So the
process asdescribed by Mr Sloan played out. There was then a group called Rimfire Resources who were engaged
asan executive search group to look in the market, find potential applicants and bringback some recommendations
for the consideration of the Minister.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Where did you pick up the process where the external recruitment
agency was engaged when you became—

STEVE ORR: That happened prior to my appointment to this job.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: To Mr Orr or Mr Sloan, where was the advice from the Minister's office
that the applicant or applicants were not suitable, and the reasoning? Where is that in this timeline?

STEVE ORR: It obviously happened following the advice up to the Minister's office that they weren't
suitable, and then we started, as I understand it, the process which I've just described with Rimfire Resources.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So it would have either gone to the acting director-general or the new
secretary.
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STEVE ORR: No, I don'tthink it was the new secretary; I think it was the formersecretary. Thatis my
understanding.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Would it have been the former secretary that then instructed HR to
engage a recruitment firm?

STEVE ORR: That's my understanding.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, once the recruitment firm was engaged, did you have any
approaches from Ms Healy ordid you in facthave any conversation with Ms Healy about herinterest in becoming
the biosecurity commissioner?

STEVE ORR: No, I didn't. Again, this started before my time in the role, Mr Farraway, so I didn't have
any direct discussions with Dr Healy about coming in to the role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Idon'tknowMsHealy, forthe record—probably quite an accomplished
person—but this timeline and such a change in attitude from someone who wasn't interested in the job to then be
interested in the job and get the job doesn't sit well with me, and it doesn't sit well with stakeholders and, quite
frankly, people in your agency who have approached me about it. I need to ask: At what point did Ms Healy
declare to you that she was interested in applying for that role?

STEVE ORR: ['ve answered the question.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [I'm askingagain, though: When did she declare that to you, Mr Orr?
STEVE ORR: She didn't declare that to me, Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: The first you knew that she was interested in becoming the full-time
biosecurity commissioner is when her name popped up through—what was it?

STEVE ORR: Rimfire.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Rimfire recruitment.
STEVE ORR: That's my recollection but, again, that process had started before my time in this role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes. When you saw her name on a shortlist or as a recommendation
from a third-party recruitment firm, did youraise concerns thatthe person that wasbeing recommended was pait
of the initial recruitment process and you sat on a panel with this person for the role to begin with?

STEVE ORR: It was pretty clear in my mind, Mr Farraway, that in that initial process Dr Healy was
not interested in the role. She was interested in being part of the selection process to find someone to be in the
role. That process ran its course. The Minister made the decision, which the Minister is open to make, and then
another process started, and through that process Dr Healy indicated that she'd be willing to take on the role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Did the Minister's office ever supply to you—or to you, Mr Sloan, in
your previous role, or any DPI representative here—a reason as to why the initial candidate or candidates were
not suitable and a reasoning as to why they should go back to market or go and have another look?

STEVE ORR: Not directly to me, Mr Farraway, for the reasons I outlined before.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Sloan?
SEAN SLOAN: Not directly to me.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: To anyone? Any reasoning? Mr Orr, obviously, in any government
agency you have a pay scale and a band. What is the band or pay scale for the biosecurity commissioner's role?

STEVE ORR: My understanding, Mr Farraway—and again I'll confirm this—is thatit's equivalentto
a senior executive band 1.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Band 1 senior executive, okay.

STEVE ORR: It's the equivalentto in terms of the pay scale. It'snot an SEB1. There's a difference. I'm
just saying it's equivalent to.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Equivalent to?
STEVE ORR: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Okay.I'mnotsure if you've got this information now, but do you know
the dates when Rimfire recruitment started the selection process and when they concluded it?
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STEVE ORR: I'll take it on notice, Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Was there more than one successful applicant in the recommendation
from Rimfire?

STEVE ORR: I'll need to take that on notice, Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You may needto take onnotice the date thatthe recommendation was
sent to the Minister.

STEVE ORR: I'm happy to, Mr Farraway.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Moving on, if that is the case—

The Hon. WES FANG: Just before you do, canIask: Mr Orr, was the band—the pay scale—when the
role was an interim role the same as it is now?

STEVE ORR: Correct. That's my understanding.
The Hon. WES FANG: So there has been no change in the pay?
STEVE ORR: Correct.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: While we're still on the biosecurity commissioner, Dr Healy seems very
credentialled, but with biosecurity as one of the most significant priorities for the State, for agriculture and for
your agency, do you believe that it probably should be a full-time role? What is it at the moment? About three
days a week or something like that, as the Minister mentioned earlier?

STEVE ORR: Yes, three daysa week. I think whether it's a full-time or part-time role is up to the
Minister and Dr Healy.I think that'swhatit was before, although I'm happy to be corrected, in terms of the role
Dr Healy played asthe Interim Biosecurity Commissioner and, with that in mind, the work program for Dr Healy
reflects the time which she has to commit to the role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Haveyoudesigned the role around her available time rather than what
is actually needed, though?

STEVE ORR: I think what'sneeded and then, in terms of some of the initial work for Dr Healy—there's
a number of things which she's working on, one of which is some of the governance arrangements which exist.
There's a bit about communication, particularly ensuring people understand some of their obligations. There's
anotherbit which is about broaderenforcement and how enforcement is working across, and Dr Healy is going to
be now working through that. The other issue or the other priority for Dr Healy is actually working across
government, so working with different agencies to understand some of the issues and challenges in terms of
biosecurity with other agencies, and the role has been designed to fit in with those particular authorities.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [totally agree with thatbecause that'swhatyouneed to do. My concem
is Ms Healy seems to be a very busy person. She has five otherpositions and, based on the Minister's commentary
overthe past 18 months, a priority forheris biosecurity. Itis forany stakeholderthat you speak to in the agriculture
space. Don't you think that we should be budgeting towards a full-time biosecurity commissioner?

STEVE ORR: That's a matterclearly for government, Mr Farraway. The other thing I would probably
say it's not just Dr Healy. Dr Healy will have a small support team, which will be put in place to support her in
fulfilling her obligations and the roles which we've talked through, so there will be a supportteam. Then there'sa
department and the department has considerable biosecurity resources to also assist Dr Healy.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Moving to the ag commissioner role, hasthe Crown Solicitor's office
approached you or anyone in your agency with concerns about the appointment of the ag commissioner—

STEVE ORR: No.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: —oprior to the Minister's media release and restructure today?
STEVE ORR: No.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: No issues have been raised from the Crown Solicitor's office?
STEVE ORR: No.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Internally,in terms of the process, what is holding this up? The Minister
puta brave face on this moming about the fact thatitis 18 monthssince the election. Having an agcommissioner
is probably one of the most important policy areas that farmers and the ag sector and stakeholders like
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NSW Farmers are calling for that they want to see actioned. What's the hold up, Mr Orr, in your view? I notice
you haven't been there the whole time. As the leader in the department, what's the hold up?

STEVE ORR: Again, I haven'tbeen here all the time, so I can't provide a view. What I cansay is that
it hasbeen a priority for the Minister since I've been in this role and the Government has formed a view that they
want to have the role as a statutory position, as the Minister outlined earlier today, so it's enshrined in legislation.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Was it not a statutory position before today's announcement.

STEVE ORR: No. Itneverhasbeen. Again, just for clarity, the arrangements in the past were a contract.
Mr Quinlivan, for instance, was a contractor within the role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Will it be full-time, the ag commissioner?

STEVE ORR: The Government needs to work through exactly what it wants to have in its bill,
Mr Farraway. What it wants to have, the role, the functioning, how it's going to operate are no doubt matters which
will be in the bill.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Isit yourunderstandingthatit will be the same band or atleast atthe
same level and commitment and resourcing as the biosecurity commissioner?

STEVE ORR: Well, again,that's a matter for governmentto work through. But I think, Mr Farraway,
the Minister alluded this moming to the fact that there will be similar in terms of the model for the biosecurity
commissioner.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: After this morning's announcement, who is leading the process in your
agency for the introduction of that legislation and the process behind the scenes within the agency?

STEVE ORR: In terms of now the Government has made the decision which it has, obviously it will
be joined together with Rachel's team, who's sitting here to my left. She's only been here for three weeks.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I'll go easy, don't worry.

STEVE ORR: So Racheland ourlegal team, and to the Minister's point earlier, she intends to introduce
the bill as soon as possible but subject to the order of Government business.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How many people applied for the ag commissioner's role prior to
today's announcement, bearing in mind that I think we were able to ascertain that the applications closed on 29
January this year? How many people had applied?

STEVE ORR: I'll need to take that on notice. I wasn't involved in that process.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [sthatsomething we cantake onnotice and maybe comebacktousa
bit later in the day?

STEVE ORR: If we can.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: If that's the case and with today's process obviously making the role
statutory, possibly some changesto the role and the introduction of legislation, hasthe departmentwritten to those
applicants that applied for the ag commissioner's role—

STEVE ORR: Initially.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: —to advise them thatthey'll haveto either have anothercrack or that
there's been changes to the role?

STEVE ORR: My understanding, Mr Farraway—again I'll confirm this with you later today—is that
the applicants who applied back in the time frame which you talked about have been advised thatthey were not
successful and that happened a little while ago.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Sloan, I want to talk about LLS. I know Ms Lorimer-Ward is the
new CEOQ, but the questions [ have are during your time. I've been inundated with LLS staff who have spoken to
me around the travel budget cuts that have come across DPI which impacted LLS, and impacts everyone's role.
In particular, they are now having to travel five hours a day to do some of their outreach work, some of their
practicalon-the-ground work. This hasbeen happening for months and months and months now, or the majoriy
0f2024.1n the previous role with LLS did you advocate fora bigger budget to address some of the WHS concerns
around LLS staff out in the field?

STEVE ORR: MrFarraway, just to clarify, Mr Sloan was formally Fisheries.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: No, it was you, Mr Orr, wasn't it?
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STEVE ORR: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Sorry, Mr Orr.

STEVE ORR: [ was waiting for something to happen.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ take allthat back. It's to Mr Orr, same question. Sorry.
STEVE ORR: Do you want to repeat it?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ have been approached by multiple staff within LLS that there are
WHS concerns because of the travelbudget cuts that have been implemented overthe course of the last 12 months,
that staff are travelling five hours a day to do outreach work because there is no budget for overnight
accommodation. Do you think that's appropriate?

STEVE ORR: Ms Lorimer-Ward or Mr Kelly may be more appropriate to answer. But in terms of
travel, obviously travelis important in terms of the delivery of services, so we understand that. The department—
aswas discussed back at estimates earlierthis year, there was a reduction in overalltravelbudget as part of broader
government savings. We operated well within that budget, so that was certainly achieved. In making decisions
across the department—and Ms Lorimer-Ward and Mr Kelly may be able to comment—but the safety of peopk
was paramount,as well as the delivery of services. Those two things were really important in terms of the broad
narrative within the department about the way in which travel was to be considered—safety and the welfare of
staff—aswell asensuring that we are doing the BRU and delivering the services which need to be delivered. I'm
not familiar with any specific cases. I'm happy to talk about specific cases, but that wasthe broad message which
went in my time at LLS into LLS.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: I havesome questions about forestry, so it may be Mr Chaudhary or it could
be Mr McPherson or Mr Sloan, I'm not sure, whoever wants to answer them. [ want to raise the point thatitappears
that 45 per cent of the logging operations planned and underway in the north-east region are located within the
footprint of what we understand will be the Great Koala National Park, and certainly within the assessment area.
Even though that's only 20 per cent of that region, earlier this year, the Minister had stated to me that, in her words,
"We're getting on with the job of delivering the park"—the Great Koala NationalPark—"and aspart of that work
I issued a directive to Forestry Corporation to hold all harvesting in the areasidentified as koala hubs within the
proposed park. I also stated thatthere was to be no increase in forestry operations elsewhere in the State to make
up forthe shortfall." You probably recall thatthat was the position, by discontinuing logging in the hubs. I'm just
curious if you could let me know what percentage of delivered timber decreased since that direction was made to
Forestry Corporation?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: I can answer that question. I don't have the exact figures, but since that
decision was handed down to stop harvesting in the koala hubs, we have been doing that. That was an area of
about 8,400 hectares. Then I think if you take into account the surrounding areas, the access into the koala hubs,
that was aboutanother3,000 hectares. So all up, about 12,500 hectares, or 12,000 hectaresrather, was affected.
In terms of volumes, I don't have thatinformation on hand, Ms Higginson, butwe haven'tbeen harvestingin that
area.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: I am interested in the volumes that have been forgone, so to speak. Is that
something you can provide on notice?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Yes.
Ms SUE HIGGINSON: How has Forestry Corporation of NSW made up for that shortfall?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: We havenotbeen able to makeup for thatshortfall. In fact, last financial
year, FY24, we have not been able to meet certain wood supply agreements on the north coastbecause of a number
of factors. Not being able to harvest in the koala hubs would be one of those reasons.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Could you tell me what the other reasons are?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Yes. There have been disruptions to native forestry as a result of the loss
of production days from things like protesters, for example. We also had stop work orders and injunction
applications to stop work. All of that has resulted in the loss of production days, which has prevented us from
meeting our supply commitments.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Hasany compensation been paid to any of the holders of the wood supply
agreements?
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ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: No, no compensation has been paid to the holders of the wood supply
agreements. They have raised concerns about us not meeting wood supply agreements. We are in conversation
with our customers at this stage.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Is it likely that compensation will be paid?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: That's a difficult question to answer at the moment because we're going
through a potential legal process. We'll have to see how that goes, Ms Higginson.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Without disclosing anythingyou can't, when yousay "a legal process", are you
suggesting that lawyers are engaged and those discussions are happening between timber companies and the
Forestry Corporation?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: We havecontractualobligations and,therefore, by not meeting the supply
commitments, there are questions about the contractual obligations. Yes, we're working through our legal team as
well—but working with the customers to see what their concerns are and see how we can address them.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Forgive me if I'm wrong, but it sounds like there is likely some form of
compensation that might be required forthose discussions around actual failure to supply and some kind ofremedy
around that failure to supply. Would that be a fairly correct assertion?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: [ wouldn't jump tothatconclusion. We have not supplied to the contracted
volume, that's clear, and we have advised our customers of that. We have discussed the broad range of reasons as
to why we haven't. Now we're working through the next phase.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: That is options of what to do about that?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: That's right. The contracts have certain provisions in them, and we are
working through that.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Are youconsidering the option of looking for further volumes of timber that
might be available somewhere else? Is that something you're looking at?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: We haven't ruled anything out at this stage, Ms Higginson. We are quite
early in our discussions with the customers.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Butthat would be very problematic, wouldn't it, looking for timber that just
isn't there when we're going to create a nationalpark? Ifthe koala hubs were anissue, which is a tiny part of the
forest estate, do you have a—

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Juston that, I think it's importantto realise thatthetimber volume is still
there. The reasons we weren't able to supply that were, as had just explained, due to numberof factors, including
disruptions to our operations. The timber is still there. It's not like it has been affected by fires.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: But they were koala hubs. They will never be available for—
ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: With the exception of the koala hubs.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: And then there will be otherareas—obviously, the Great Koala NationalPark.
Do you have a date for when any logging will cease within the footprint of the Great Koala National Park?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: No, I don't have date or a direction on that.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: We have actually been told that it will be later this year. Later this year is
coming very quickly. Have you still been told that we are looking at later this yearthatlogging will stop within
the Great Koala National Park?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: I think that's probably a question for my colleagues.
Ms SUE HIGGINSON: I am certainly looking somewhere over atthatend of thetable. Is there a date?

DAVID McPHERSON: Ms Higginson, there is no firm date at this stage. It still has to go to
Government. But the work is ongoing atthe moment, looking at the assessment of all the values within that park
and the potential impact on jobs and the industry and timber supply.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Mr McPherson, the way you are looking atthe process atthe moment,do you
think that it is still likely that there will be a decision towards the end of this year, as the Minister has put on
record?

DAVID McPHERSON: That's what we've been working towards.
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Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Isit yourunderstandingthatthe decision will be made tonot log any more of
the Great Koala National Park? Do you know what that decision will look like? Will it be once it has gone to
Cabinet, or will you keep logging once it has gone to Cabinet? Do you have any idea?

DAVID McPHERSON: No, [ can'tspeculate on thatat this stage. We're still waiting for the information
to come forward about the values within the park and the impacts on jobs and timber supply and other factors.
Until we've got that information, it's hard to speculate.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: [ am also curious about the forest management zone plantation layer. Our
understanding is that the plantation layers have just been increasing within the Great Koala National Park
assessment area. Is there a date when that cuts off? Has it cut off? Is the understanding of the plantation area
within the Great Koala NationalPark assessment area currently fixed and defined, or is that still a movable feast?

DAVID McPHERSON: As farasI know, if I understand what you're asking, the area of plantation that
has been excluded out of the assessment area for the Great Koala National Park is now fixed.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: It is fixed?
DAVID McPHERSON: Yes.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Do youhavethe date of when thatwas fixed? Is that something that you can
provide to me—

DAVID McPHERSON: We can come back to you.
Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Thank you very much. I'm just also—

DAVID McPHERSON: Just on that,it's probably best to ask National Parks. They've been managing
and running that process, so they would be able to give you the most accurate information.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: Iwill askthem aswell, butif you could give your version, that would be great.
I'm curious abouthowthe Forestry Corporationis dealing with the latest research that goes to the koala acoustic
method—the acoustic monitoring and the methods. We know that Forestry Corp has been monitoring the male
koalas to estimate koala population health and density. I'm sure you're aware that in June this year new
peer-reviewed research demonstrated that there was a reason not to rely on that methodology, in particular for
health and density. What are the Forestry Corporation and the department doing about that?

DAVID McPHERSON: Justin terms of who is doing the research, the department hasbeen doing that
research on koalasusing acoustics. We've been doing thatacrossa numberof years—I think seven yearsnow of
research and 25,000 hours of acoustics. It's a significant program of research in many, many State forests and
including nationalparksand private land as well. It's a significant study lookingat male koalasand theirbellowing.
It's very difficult to do a comparison between that and the other research that you're referring to, which was done
by Smith and Pile, I think.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: With the greatest respect, could I redirect you very quickly to answer the
question? What are you doing about the fact that this new research is contrary—

DAVID McPHERSON: Yes. We have asked our scientists to have a look at that research and
understand what the differences are between that.

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: And you're waiting for an outcome on that?
DAVID McPHERSON: Correct.

The CHAIR: I might just pick up where we left off, Mr Sloan—if that's all right with you, Mr Orr—
around the cultural fishing/native title issue. Just to recap, the casein the Court of Criminal Appeal was handed
down. Itstipulated thatnativetitle doesn't actually allow for sale. We know cultural fishing doesn't include sale.
When are we going to see a regulation thatties thatallup and recognises thatassoon assomeone steps over that
line of whetherit's cultural fishing or a native title practice and actually sells, then it becomesan offence where
your compliance officers can actually fine or move to prosecute to try to curb this illegal or unidentifiable catch
that seems to be pillaging our abalone stocks on the south coast?

SEAN SLOAN: Chair, coming back to the explanation I was giving earlier about the differences in
native title and cultural fishing and, obviously, the other forms of fishing, nativetitle, as stipulated in the Native
Title Act, is fishing for domestic, personal, communaland non-commercialneeds. There is this practice of barter
and trade which has,over time, been used as a defence for the process of selling. That's where some area of grey
has been in this issue, and the Court of Criminal Appeal has just clarified that.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE NO. 4 - REGIONAL NSW



Tuesday 27 August 2024 Legislative Council Page 57
CORRECTED

The CHAIR: Butthe barterand trade hastraditionally been between Aboriginal people and Aboriginal
people, not Aboriginal people and outlaw motorcycle gangs or Aboriginal people and Chinese crime gangs. Barter
and trade is between two cultural people or two cultural groups, not outlaw gangs.

SEAN SLOAN: What I'm explaining here is that,overa long period of time and through various court
procedures, there has been consideration of thatissue about what barterand trade actually means and whetheror
notan Aboriginal person with a nativetitle claim can use that defence assatisfyingtheir own personalneeds, and
the Court of Criminal Appeal just clarified that.It's certainly a very strong clarification in the monitoring of that
activity.

The CHAIR: So, essentially, they can barter or trade with people outside their cultural group.

SEAN SLOAN: No. There were three key findings in the Court of Criminal Appeal. The first one,
which I think you were referring to earlier this moming, was who bears the onus? A native title holder has to
discharge an evidentiary burden. They haveto be able to identify as a person connected with that community—
thatnative title area. Once they've done that,the onusis now on the departmentto prove or disprove thatthey're
anativetitle holder. That was one finding. The other finding was that there can be no selling of catch outside the
community. Thatis clearly not possible under the Native Title Act. The other thing that'snot possible is sharing
the resource outside of the community. Those two practices cannot be undertaken by native title holders.

The CHAIR: Now thatwe've got, seemingly, some legal clarification in terms ofa court precedent or
a court ruling, when are we going to see a regulation that ties that all together and draws a line in the sand that
your Fisheries compliance officers can actually stand by and use to curb what is the illegal take and sale, which
is clearly happening, versus what is a legitimate cultural fishing or native title pursuit? When are we going to see
that regulation being drafted to support section 21 AA and the local management plans? It seems like that's the
missing link in all of this: There needs to be a regulation that supports what is there in legislation and there in
those management plans, which is the nitty-gritty of how we manage on the ground. When are we going to see
that regulation drafted and utilised?

SEAN SLOAN: In fact, the situation is that you have the Native Title Act that stipulates what can
happen, which is the catch forpersonal, domestic, communal and non-commercialneed, and you have the fisheries
Act, which saysthe same thing. There doesn't need to be a regulation to stipulate that you can't sell the catch. That
court precedent has now clarified that issue. The regulation that you're referring to—the cultural fishing
regulation—is something separate to dealing with native title. The Attorney General is responsible for dealing
with native title claims, so that's not DPIRD. The Attorney General will be dealing with the South Coast native
title claim, and the way that those claims are settled is usually through a determination and then an Indigenous
land use agreement. That process will run its course and be led by the Attorney General, and there will be input
from Fisheries to that. Separate to that, there will be a regulation for cultural fishing which would apply to all
other Aboriginal people who are not part of native title claims, so this will be a statewide regulation that would
apply to Aboriginal people and allow them to practise cultural fishing.

The CHAIR: Where are we up to with that part?

SEAN SLOAN: That one is, I think, well advanced. There's been a whole process of consultation
through the Aboriginal Fishing Advisory Council. The Office of Parliamentary Counselhasdonea lot of work to
drafta regulation,and there is now, I think, a piece of work just being done to respond to concerns that were raised
by the NTSCORP and the NSW Aboriginal Land Council about how that cultural fishing regulation intersects
with native title and to make sure that that intersection doesn't cause any problems for native title holders. That
piece of final work is being undertaken, so cultural fishing regulation is actually, to my understanding, not far
away from going through and being out for consultation.

The CHAIR: That's half of my question sorted. We don'tneed the regulation to sort out the native title
component; we just need proper enforcement. The court decision has given you a clear line as to what you can
and can'tenforce, so when are we going to see proper enforcement based on this legal clarity now of this clearly
disturbing issue where we're losing potentially half of our TAC ofabalone and impactingthe marine health down
in thatarea? When are we going to see thatenforcement,and do you think you require more resources to get on
top of this issue in the initial instance?

SEAN SLOAN: At the momentwe have five cases thatare on foot for offencesthatrelate to abalone
on the South Coast where native title defences are part of those cases. They've been on hold while that Court of
Criminal Appealcase was being carried out. Now thatthatcaseismade orthere'sbeen a judgement on that matter,
those other five cases will now haveto be reviewed against the precedent that came out of that Court of Criminal
Appeal. So there are those five matters. There are also joint operations that Fisheries do with police, and there's
at least one matter that's being taken forward by police. We also have permits that we issue for cultural fishing,
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and since permits were available for this purpose there's been over 150 issued and probably half of those have
been issued on the South Coast.

As the Minister was saying this moming, it's quite a complex matter. You havenative title, and that'san
Attorney General's matter, and there will be an Indigenous land use agreement that will, over the course of the
future, be used to address that matter. There's our enforcement role, which is about the laws that exist in the Act,
and our Fisheries officers will be enforcingthose with the precedent that came out ofthe Court of Criminal Appeal
Then there's cultural fishing, which is the regulation that you were referring to, and then we have local
management plans, which are really about a local community. They're not native title claims; they are where
communities want to work with the Government on a particulararea, which is about their cultural fishing interests.
So we've got a numberofthings that we are using to support cultural fishing and native title. Itis quite a complex
space, so we're using all of those tools to manage the situation.

The CHAIR: In the 10 seconds I've got, I'm switching the issue to the blue groper. With the GIPAA
documentsthathavebeen received, it became quite clear there were discussions within the department aboutthe
reasons why DPI only fined one ofthe offendersa certain amount. That wasreally the crux of why people were
so upset—it was around why the fine was so low—on all sides of the argument, fishermen included. Why was
thatnot communicated to the media or to the public as to the reasons why you only fined this person X amount,
given thatthat wasthe very crux of the issue as to why people were upset? Why did the Minister not include that
in her media statements, given that that was one of the big reasons why people were peeved off about it?

SEAN SLOAN: I think we did explain the fact that there was a $500 on-the-spot fine and—

The CHAIR: But not the reason why it wasn't more. You quoted figures around $11,000 and
$22,000 maximum fines, but then didn't explain the very technicalreason why you weren't able to prosecute, take
him to court or give a higher fine, and that was really the crux of why people were so vexed about this issue. If
that was communicated better, you probably wouldn't have found yourself in such a situation. I am just wondering
why the decision was taken not to communicate that technical reason as to why you couldn't find—

SEAN SLOAN: There were two matters. There was the spearfishing at Cronulla, which was a police
intervention with an on-the-spot fine.

The CHAIR: Yes, which is what I'm referring to.

SEAN SLOAN: Fisheries officers then fined thatindividual another$300 for a separate offence. And
then there was a separate incident, which was in Jervis Bay and which, I think, involved three groper that were
takenillegally. Thatperson was prosecuted and the court made a determination to fine them.I don'thave the exact
figure.

The CHAIR: I'm just conscious of time. I might throw back to the Opposition and we might pick this
up later.

The Hon. WES FANG: Dr Tyndall, could you provide to me the title of the job that you went into when
joined the department? You indicated that was just after the election last year. Is that correct?

ADAM TYNDALL: No, that'snot correct, Mr Fang. I joined the department—it would have been about
seven yearsago. I entered the public service in 2016 in the Premier's department. The Premier at the time was the
Hon. Mike Baird.

The Hon. WES FANG: The role where you were working under Rebecca Fox that I believe you started
in April last year—what role was that?

ADAM TYNDALL: That was the executive director of the office of the secretary.

The Hon. WES FANG: And before that you were—

ADAM TYNDALL: Sorry, Mr Fang. Just for clarification, I was acting in that role at the time.

The Hon. WES FANG: Prior to that, I think you said you were just on a holding panel. Is that right?

ADAM TYNDALL: No, Hansard might be able to make sure this is correct, butI think whatI said was
I was a director of planning at the Northern Rivers Reconstruction Corporation.

The Hon. WES FANG: So you were immediately taken out of the director of planningrole and putinto
the executive director role.

ADAM TYNDALL: Yes, and,again, for probably your benefit and for the Committee's benefit, I had
interviewed for an executive director role atthe Northern Rivers Reconstruction Corporation. As is pretty routine
in the public service, I was found to be suitable at that level but wasn't appointed at that level.
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The Hon. WES FANG: These things happen all the time in the public service; that's understood.
Dr Tyndall, how did you find out about the executive director role under the secretary?

ADAM TYNDALL: I wasapproached by Ms Fox.

The Hon. WES FANG: Hadyou indicated to Ms Fox previously that you were interested in that role?
ADAM TYNDALL: I was approached by Ms Fox herself.

The Hon. WES FANG: Had you worked with Ms Fox previously?

ADAM TYNDALL: No, I hadn't, but I understand that I was recommended to her as a person who
might be suitable for the role.

The Hon. WES FANG: Ms Fox had never worked with you before and didn't know you. All of a
sudden, she's approached you to take on this executive director role. Is that usual?

ADAM TYNDALL: That's probably a question best addressed to Ms Fox, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: [ would ask her but, obviously, the Minister terminated her employment a fter
she terminated other people's employment, which is interesting. But I will return to your position now. You've
indicated that you were approached and thatshe had received a recommendation to approach you, havingnever
worked with you before. Who provided her with that recommendation, do you know?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'm not sure, Mr Fang—obviously, a question best answered by Ms Fox.
The Hon. WES FANG: Butit wasjustafterthe election—is that right?—and the change in Government.
ADAM TYNDALL: Itwasin April of 2023, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: Just afterelection, so there was a new Minister in the department. Just shifting
gears a little bit—

The Hon. GREG DONNELLY: You mean out of reverse?
The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. WES FANG: Chair, seeing as we've had the interruptions, I'd ask you to call those members
to order who continually interject.

The CHAIR: We know interjections are disorderly.

The Hon. WES FANG: [ just wanted to make the point. Dr Tyndall, let's shift gears, as we were talking
about. You were approached for the role. How did you apply for the role?

ADAM TYNDALL: I conducteda short interview with Ms Fox and I was appointed to the role in an
acting position. That's consistent with the public sector employment framework.

The Hon. WES FANG: Was that a one-on-one interview?

ADAM TYNDALL: Yes, it was at the time.

The Hon. WES FANG: How long was the interview?

ADAM TYNDALL: I would have to take that on notice. It was quite some time ago, Mr Fang.
The Hon. WES FANG: How long was the period from the initial approach to starting in the role?

ADAM TYNDALL: Again, I'd have to take that on notice, Mr Fang. It was more than a yearago. I
think you can probably appreciate that I don't have the exact figure in front of me.

The Hon. WES FANG: I'm usually pretty good at recalling some of those things, but I understand if
you're not. You had been appointed to thisrole. Whatwas yourunderstandingof what the role entailed? I'm sure,
in the initial contact, you would have been provided guidance as to what the role involved.

ADAM TYNDALL: It was similar to the role that wasin place at the time. I spoke directly with the
former executive director of the office of the secretary about what the role required. I also spoke with Ms Fox
about the role itself.

The Hon. WES FANG: There was somebody in therole at the time when you spoke to them. Why were
they not continuing in the role?

ADAM TYNDALL: It's probably a question best addressed to them, Mr Fang.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE NO. 4 - REGIONAL NSW



Tuesday 27 August 2024 Legislative Council Page 60
CORRECTED

The Hon. WES FANG: Given that you were recommended forthe role, what did Ms Fox indicate was
in yourexperience or youreducation profile that deemed you as somebody that she should approach forthe role?

ADAM TYNDALL: Forgive me, Mr Fang. I know I've given this response a number of times, but it's
probably a question best addressed to Ms Fox in terms of her motivations.

The Hon. WES FANG: But she musthavetold youin the interview. I mean, she would have said that.
ADAM TYNDALL: No.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did she indicate to youhow many other people were approached forthe role
and asked to apply?

ADAM TYNDALL: No, she did not.

The Hon. WES FANG: How long afterthe interview was it before you were told that you would have
the role? Were you told on the day, or did you have to wait for a period of time?

ADAM TYNDALL: Forgive me,Mr Fang, butI think you've asked this question beforeand I said that
I would take it on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: No, I'm just curious asto whether she might have told you in the interview that
you'd received the role.

ADAM TYNDALL: No, not during the interview, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Orr, how many executive directors in the department do you believe have
been directly appointed?

STEVE ORR: Over time?

The Hon. WES FANG: No, I'll make it easier for you. How many have been appointedin your time as
secretary?

STEVE ORR: Into roles?

The Hon. WES FANG: Appointed—orpromoted, I should say—directly into roles of executive director
orabove.

STEVE ORR: Sorry, I'm a little unclear, Mr Fang. How many people since I've been in this role—

The Hon. WES FANG: Since you've been the secretary, how many people have been promoted or
appointed directly into roles of executive director or above?

STEVE ORR: We've been through a change in the department, which I think you're familiar with,
Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes.

STEVE ORR: That led to a structural change, and you're probably familiar with some of the people
who are—

The Hon. WES FANG: Machinery-of-government changes, yes.

STEVE ORR: No, it wasn't a machinery-of-government change; it was a structural change within the
department.

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes, which occurred as part of the machinery-of-government changes, yes.

STEVE ORR: Well, no, it wasn'ta machinery-of-government change; it was a structural change within
the department,and a numberofroles were changed. There were new people who'd come in, some of which are
sitting around me. Ms Lorimer-Ward hascome in as Chief Executive Officer of Local Land Services. Ms Connell
has come in.

The Hon. WES FANG: [ appreciateall that. Was it a direct appointment forthese membersand other
people, or were they required to reapply for their positions?

STEVE ORR: There are a few bits to this, Mr Fang, so it might takea bit of time for me to explain it,
if you're willing to indulge me.

The Hon. WES FANG: I'd like the really short "explain it like I'm five years old" experience. Let's
pretend that I am; that's fine. I know they're going to make their joke across the aisle.
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The Hon. STEPHEN LAWRENCE: [ thought you were changing gears.

The Hon. WES FANG: But seriously—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: We want a fast gear.

The Hon. WES FANG: No, crack all the jokes you want. But this is actually quite serious, so just stop.
The CHAIR: Order!

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Orr, how many people were directly appointed into roles since you've been
secretary? Were people that were required to change position with the change in the arrangements in the
department required to reapply for their jobs or were they directly appointed from one position into another?

STEVE ORR: Within the public sector there is a thing called mobility in terms of you can move senior
executives around. That's a right which I have as secretary. You canmove someone from an ED position—exec
director position—over here into one overhere if you believe thatthey can do the job. That's one generalprinciple.
To your question about what has actually happened in terms of direct appointments, there were a number of direct
appointments in the structural change into ED roles. Those direct appointments occurred largely where there was
minimal change to the role, in my mind. Interms of numbers, I'd need to take that onnotice. I don't have it all in
my mind.

The second part to that is where the role was substantially new. Either the role itself was new—for
instance, the role Ms Connell is in and therole Mr Sloan is in. They were new roles. We went to market forthose
new roles and we tested the market, so it really just depended on what actually was occurring with the role in
terms of the process, which was then used to appoint people into them.

The Hon. WES FANG: Canlthen summarise thatanswerto say that if the role was similar, you could
shift somebody across, butif therole changed substantially, or there was a promotion involved, you would go to
market?

STEVE ORR: The view which I took was that where there was substantial change to the role—i.e. it
had become a new role—I went to market. The reason it would become a new role is that there was significant
additional functionality, or it was a brand-new role so the role didn't previously exist, such as the roles which
Ms Connell and Mr Sloan are in.

The Hon. WES FANG: Dr Tyndall has indicated that he was working for recovery—sorry,
reconstruction—and that he was then moved into the department under Ms Fox. He had interviewed for an ED
role but was in a director role at the time, and was then promoted into an ED role in your department. It was a
direct appointment from the Minister—somebody who she knew through Laborconnections previously—and that
was something that we already had.I know it wasn't under you, Mr Orr, but would that happen underyou today?

STEVE ORR: No, and it didn't happen previously. Dr Tyndallhas outlined the process, and the process
he has outlined is entirely consistent with the legislation so there's nothing unusual about it.

The Hon. WES FANG: Who was required to sign off that appointment?

STEVE ORR: It's entirely consistent with the legislation. I didn't sign off on it but it would've been
Ms Fox. Ms Fox, or the secretary, is responsible for all senior exec recruitment within the department.

The Hon. WES FANG: Who recommended Dr Tyndall to Ms Fox?

STEVE ORR: It was well before my time.

The Hon. WES FANG: Was it the Minister?

STEVE ORR: As Dr Tyndall has suggested to you, that's something you'd need to ask Ms Fox.
ADAM TYNDALL: With the Chair's grace, could I clarify one issue?

The CHAIR: By all means, yes.

ADAM TYNDALL: Interms of myacting arrangement,] was appointed in an acting position from a
talent pool. For my substantive role, I went through a merit assessment process that was advertised externally.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Just a quick follow-on. Mr Orr, did any of yourteam sitting here today
have to reapply for their roles due to the changes within the department?

STEVE ORR: Ithink I've, in some ways, answered the question. The people who are sitting here—Ms
Lorimer-Ward—
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The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So there's movement; I get that.

STEVE ORR: I'll justrunthrough it foryou. I left LLS. The role became vacant. We went to the market
for the role. Ms Lorimer-Ward was successful in securing the role. Ms Connell—new role; went to market.
Ms Connell was successful in securing the role. Mr Sloan—went to market. Mr Sloan was successful in securing
the role. Those two roles were new roles. The LLS role was vacant. We went to market to fill the role.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: For that example, if you don't mind, Ms Lorimer-Ward, because Mr
Orr used you as an example here, you obviously applied for the job as CEO of LLS.

KATE LORIMER-WARD: Correct.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, you have had a process to fill Ms Lorimer-Ward's previous
role, or has that role been—

STEVE ORR: That'sa matter forMs Connell. I think there's someone actingin thatrole atthe moment,
but Ms Connell could speak to that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Butmy point is thatno-one was forced within the department to have
to reapply for their job. Ifthey reapplied, it was because they were looking to change jobs or you had the ability
to move ED and above within similar roles to fit the business structure or to fit the organisational department
structure of what you wanted as a secretary. [s that a fair assumption?

STEVE ORR: Broadly, that would be a fair comment.

The Hon. WES FANG: Dr Tyndall, how long after you were appointed did you help set up Ms
Moriarty's office?

ADAM TYNDALL: I wasneverinvolved in setting up Ms Moriarty's office, Mr Fang.
The Hon. WES FANG: You never helped set up the office.

ADAM TYNDALL: No.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did you ever work in relation to the Minister's office as a liaison?
ADAM TYNDALL: No.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, back to LLS staff, why can't they take a work vehicle home
overnight if they're departing early of a morning or arriving back to their home base late of an evening?

STEVE ORR: Mr Farraway,I'vebeen out of LLS now for four months so it might be more appropriate
if I ask Ms Lorimer-Ward, if it's okay.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [I'm happy for that but, in fairness, this has been going on for longer
than four months.

STEVE ORR: That'sokay,but MsLorimer-Ward is the CEO now and it'sappropriate that she responds.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You are the secretary, but Ms Lorimer-Ward?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: Iunderstand that, according to the policy, people can get approvalif it's
partof their trip planning to be able to take a vehicle home, if it makes sense in terms of their time efficiency or
from a work health and safety measure, but not permanently garage a vehicle at home. The main reason for that
decision around not endorsing any sort of permanent arrangement is that there are industrial relations issues that
we need to get on top of, particularly around fringe benefits tax and whether that is something that would be
incurred or payable if that vehicle was permanently garaged at home.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: IfanLLS vetoranLLS field officer was on three consecutive days of
field work in different locations, they could takethat vehicle home for those three overnights to ensure they had
it to depart early of a morning and arrive back late at night, but once those field trips concluded they return the
car to the depot?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: Provided their manager or a senior executive approves some sort of trip
planning.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So for every trip thatin LLS field officer or vet needs to do, they have
to get a trip plan approved?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: Until we resolve the industrial relations issues, we would be putting staff
in a very difficult position if they ended up with some sort of permanent or ongoing arrangement.
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The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Does the right to disconnect laws that are being introduced by the
Federal Government apply to LLS staff, in particular LLS vets?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: My understandingis no. However, staff do have, and are aware of, the
opportunity that they don't have to take a call at night if they choose not to.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So that's an existing policy framework or with their State award?
KATE LORIMER-WARD: Or an existing practice.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: HasLLS seen a significant reduction to their travel budget in the last
12 months, and is that limiting the work, in particular some of the statutory work, that they need to do?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: I can'tcommenton the pastbutwhat I can comment on is the budget they
have this year. My understanding is that the budget that's been allocated to travel this year is sufficient to meet
everyone's obligations in a safe manner.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Firstly, to you Ms Lorimer-Ward, do you have enough travelbudget to
meet all your statutory obligations for field visits?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: The initial advice I have is that we do.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do youhaveenoughtravel budget to oversee any contingency if there
was an outbreak where it required an LLS response, or would thatrequire an additional request to the secretary?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: I'm not sure in terms of what buffer there is but, in terms of planned
business—of which we do have planned emergency provision within that—there is a provision there that can
accommodate a certain level of emergency response. Over and above that,thatis something that we would have
to look at.

STEVE ORR: Mr Farraway, if we were to get into that circumstance, the rules change because the
emergency response arrangementskick in. There are different funding arrangements in relation to that if we were
dealing with an outbreak of whatever disease. That then changes the game in terms of how travel is dealt with.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: They're genuine questions here because actually havea great deal of
respect forall youragencies and the work you do. My question is, Mr Orr, whether it's Fisheries, Forestry or LLS,
what bufferor contingencies do they have in their travelbudgets to allow for BAU? But BAU can move, because
if you have some weed outbreak and LLS need to get on top of it, it might require more fieldwork and sending
more people out. It's not an outbreak thattriggers otherprovisions with the State or Commonwealth governments,
but it's a higher level of BAU. Do your department headsnowhavea contingency in their travel budget to allow
for that?

STEVE ORR: Ms Lorimer-Ward may want to comment, but everyone's been allocated their travel
budget. I think it's prudent management to ensure you've got a bit of buffer in terms of how you deal with that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do they have a buffer?

STEVE ORR: I can'tcommenton each oneof them individually. PethapsI could come back to you in
relation to that,Mr Farraway. The budget that we have for travel is the sameas we had for travel last year. Last
yearthe budget was $19.5 million. This yearit's slightly less—it's $19.3 million—but we only spent $15 million
last year.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [I've run out of time. We'll come back to that.

The CHAIR: Thattakesus to 3.30 p.m., which meanswe'll havea 15-minute break. We'll come back
at3.45 p.m.

(Short adjournment.)

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I'll start with some questions. Dr Filmer, we were talking before about the
latest statistics on animaluse in research. The latest statistics that are available online are from 2022. When do
we expect to see the 2023 animal use statistics published?

KIM FILMER: As Iexplained earlier, the statistics for 2023 are submitted by the end of March 2024,
so they've been submitted now. They'll go through a process of looking atthe data, makingsure it's accurate. Once
that's been done, they'll be formatted into a report, which will go to the Animal Research Review Panel—or
ARRP—to be approved. Then, once they're happy with them, they'll be submitted to the Minister. Then, once we
get that process, we will publish them.
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The Hon. EMMA HURST: Iknowyoumentioned thatthere wasa new person trained up to help speed
that process along. Do you have any timeline in mind? Are we looking in the next six months, hopefully,or even
sooner?

KIM FILMER: ARRP only meets every nine weeks—I think that's the right number—so you've got to
catchan ARRP meeting for a start. That can make over two monthsdifference. We'd be aiming to get—the data
is in, you've got to check to make sure it's all there and then look atit. That takes months. AsIsaid, we are training
up an extra person that can be helping in that, so hopefully that will speed thatpartofthe process up. Then again,
you've got to catch the ARRP meeting and then get it through the Minister's office, and then publish it and format
it. That's the other thing: we've changed the formatting—you might have noticed—in the last couple of years, to
makeit easier to read. We're alwaysaiming to try to do thatby the end of the year,butI certainly can't commit to
that.Itjust depends whatelse is going on and the priorities and whateverand, again, whetherit just catches or just
misses an ARRP meeting can make nine weeks difference.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: The numberofanimalssubjectto majorphysiological challenge, which is
obviously the most extreme category below death asan endpoint, went up in 2022 from about 20,000 animals to
over 28,000 animals. Do we have any idea on why this hasincreased so much? Is that something that either the
department or ARRP panel looks into?

KIM FILMER: I'd need to take that notice to get that specific data for you.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: 1 also want to ask what work the Animal Research Review Panel or the
DPI has done to make sure that research institutions in New South Wales are aware of the new ban on forced
swim and smokingexperiments.Is that correspondence thatwill actually be sent out to animal ethics committees?

KIM FILMER: I think there was information—I might need to take that on notice to be totally accurate,
butthere is a newsletter that goes out to the research establishments. I think it may have been in there, butI would
need to just double-check that to be sure.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are you aware if the panel or the department of primary industries have
received any correspondence from research institutions about these new laws—any feedback, clarifications or
concerns?

KIM FILMER: No, I haven't.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are you aware if the panel has? Are you able to take that on notice?
KIM FILMER: I can take that on notice.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are you aware if any animal ethics committees have applied for or had
approved a 12-month extension for any forced swim or smoking experiments?

KIM FILMER: I'm not aware of that.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are you able to take it on notice?
KIM FILMER: I can take that on notice, yes.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: It's well-known that the Centenary Institute is one of the only research
institutions left in New South Wales still doing the nose-only smoking experiment. Do you know if they have
applied for or received a 12-month extension?

KIM FILMER: I'd have to take that on notice.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Has the department had any meetings with the Centenary Institute
specifically about the smoking experiments done there?

KIM FILMER: There has been oversight by ARRP over time in that, but in terms of specifically the
department having conversations, again I'd have to take that on notice and check with the compliance team.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Hasthe Centenary Institute sent any correspondence to ARRP in the last
six months about the legislation or the ban on smoking experiments? If you're able to take that on notice,can you
also provide the committee with a copy if that is the case?

KIM FILMER: I can check foryou.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Thankyou.I notethatthe animaluse statistics for 2022 still state thatthe
reporting on the use of crustaceans and cephalopodsis still optional. I assume, with the legislative changes, that
that will change from 2024 onwards. Are you aware if that's been communicated to research facilities?
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KIM FILMER: I'm not aware of that either, sorry, I'll have to take that on notice.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Just to clarify with that one,the Animal Research Amendment (Prohibition
of Forced Swim Tests and Forced Smoke Inhalation Experiments) Bill 2024 adopted the definition of "fish" from
the Fisheries Management Act, which includes crustaceansand cephalopods. That was an adoption broadly across
the whole Animal Research Act. I'm just wondering, with that change of the definition, what that will mean for
reporting going forward and whetherthat'sbeen communicated with research facilities. I also have some questions
for Mr Rob Kelly. While you're sitting down there, I want to raise some concerns thathave been brought to me
by a sanctuary called the Contented Pig Inn in the Northern Tablelands.

They were actually issued a biosecurity order that they had to constructa pen orenclosure within 42 days
to keep wild pigs out. This is a charity that relies on fundraising. They posted the biosecurity notice online and
asked people to donate so that they could actually build that fence. In response to this, the sanctuary actually
received a legal threat from the LLS. I can give you a copy of that,which I will find in a second. They said that
the sanctuary wasusing misinformation to obtain financialbenefit by deception, and said they were getting legal
advice and urged her to reconsider what she was doing. Can I get a clarification on what'sactually happened here?
Given that this is a sanctuary that was ordered to build a fence and was trying to comply with that, why would
they then get a legal threat for attempting to fundraise to be able to afford to comply with the direction?

ROB KELLY: Thanks for the question. I'll have to take that on notice, because I'm not aware of the
issue and it hasn't been raised with me.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Thank you—ifyou could. I might give these documentsto youas well in
regards to that legal threat. Does that surprise you, that the LLS branch would ask her to put up this fence and

then issue a legal threat to someone that's just a member of the community that is trying to comply with what
they'd asked for?

ROB KELLY: I'mnotacross the details, so I can't comment on somethingthatI haven't been provided
the details of the exact situation.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Are youhappy tolook into this situation further? [ know it's causing a lot
of distress to the sanctuary owners. Can I ask you to look further into this?

ROB KELLY: Yes. I'll take that on notice and look into it.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I might hand these documents up to you as well so you've got copies of
what I'm talking about.

ROB KELLY: Yes, that's fine.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: The LLS branch went on to trap and shoot dozens of pigs just outside of
her property in very close proximity to the domestic pigs thatshe houses. Is thatstandard, for LLS to shoot pigs
right outside a person's property very close to other domestic animals?

ROB KELLY: The process for obtaining consent for an aerial shoot program—I'm assuming this is—
The Hon. EMMA HURST: I don't believe it was aerial shooting. That's not my understanding.

ROB KELLY: What was that, sorry?

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I don't know if it was aerial shooting or not.

ROB KELLY: We wouldn't be involved in ground shooting, as the LLS. If LLS is involved in the
destruction of pest animals, whether that be through aerial shooting or through coordinated ground control, any
ofthose landholders participatingin an LLS-run program have to provide written approvalorauthorisation to not
only undertake the works but also, on the forms, it requires the landholder to tick which pest species they will
allow us to control on their property. Ifa landholder doesnot consent to those activities being undertaken, we do
not undertake the works.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Thank you. I'll come back to that.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: My questions are directed to Mr Sloan, atthis point. I want to go back to
the Auditor-General's report into threatened species thatI was asking the Minister about earlier this morming,
where it stated that, as I'm sure you are aware, there are 42 threatened marine species and four ecological
communities. As I understand it, the threatened species management Act requires that a Priorities Action
Statement is also prepared. Is there a PAS, or Priorities Action Statement, for all of those threatened species?
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SEAN SLOAN: Thanks,Ms Fachrmann.I'll have to take on notice whether or not we've got one forall
ofthose. We've got a threatened species program in Fisheries. They obviously have to prioritise their work across
a whole range of those species. We've also—

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: When you said—what is it—a threatened species unit or something, is it?
SEAN SLOAN: Yes, that's right.
Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: What's that called?

SEAN SLOAN: We've got a whole team of people that work on threatened species—essentially, the
threatened species that we deal with in the aquatic space.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Could you please provide on notice for me exactly what those positions
are and what they work on? That would be excellent.

SEAN SLOAN: Ms Faehrmann,Icansay thatthey work on everything from threatened shark species
to freshwater species. There's quite a lot of small-bodied native fish species. We've got a breeding program up at
Grafton research station that deals almost exclusively with small-bodied native fish. So we've got quite a large
group of species that we work on, but I'm happy to provide you with those details.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Okay. Is your website out of date, then, when it seems to indicate that, in
the chart for finalised recovery and threatabatement plans,the last plan was finalised in 2011 for the black rock
cod?

SEAN SLOAN: I'll takethaton notice, Ms Faechrmann,and just come back to you with some details on
those. As I mentioned, we've got everything from seahorses that we're breeding atthe moment—which we have
in tanksatPort Stephens—and the freshwater species at Grafton. We've got a whole raft of species that we deal
with. In terms of the threat abatement plans and recovery plans,I'll need to take that on notice and come back with
the detail on that.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Would it be fair to say, though, considering under the Fisheries
Management Act it does say that the secretary is to prepare and adopt a Priorities Action Statement for every
species listed under that,that youbelieve that there should be a Priorities Action Statement forthose species that
are listed as threatened?

SEAN SLOAN: That'smy understanding, Ms Fachrmann,butI'll take advice on thatand comeback to
you. The other thing I will sayis thatwe do havea Threatened Species Scientific Committee, which I'm actually
meeting with in a week or two's time. They meetregularly and have the role of determining which species should
be listed as threatened in the aquatics space. We work with that committee as well. I'm happy to come back to you
with that detail on the plans that you are referring to.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Is there a reason why—asI understand it, this is what the Auditor-General
also pointed out—really the only statutory program for protecting threatened species in the State is the Saving our
Species program? That doesn't include the species that aren't a part of the Biodiversity Conservation Act—so
species like sharks andrays. Is there a reason why Fisheries doesn't haveits own targeted, dedicated Saving our
Species program for marine threatened species?

SEAN SLOAN: We do.
Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: What's that called?

SEAN SLOAN: We havea whole unit thatis a threatened species unit within the Fisheries division of
the department. They work on everything, from those species that I've mentioned—species like grey nurse sharks,
trout cod, and we have a whole range of small bodied native-freshwater species, seahorses—

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Let's stick with the grey nurse shark, then, because thatis a particular
passion of mine. According to your website, there is a Priorities Action Statement that hasreplaced the 2002 Grey
Nurse Shark Draft Recovery Plan. Thatappearsto have been prepared anduploadedin 2013, notupdated and not
an official document as faras we can tell. What is the formalrecovery strategy—the plan—for the grey nurse
shark that the department has, that is in place and in force?

SEAN SLOAN: I'm happy to provide some specific details to you on that,but my understandingis that,
with grey nurse sharks, which is a species that's listed on the east coastas critically endangered, we have a number
of areasthataredesignated ascritical habitat for grey nurse sharks, and they are protected. In addition to that, we
have a range of controls around fishing so that any sorts of interactions are limited.
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Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Some ofthose critical habitatareas, such asthe Montague Island one, with
respect, are part of the sanctuary zones that were partially revoked by the former Government and not restored
under this Government. Isn't that correct?

SEAN SLOAN: Yes, at Montague Island there is an area. My understanding is that when it was
originally set up—I'm not sure exactly of the timing, butabout 20 years ago—its original intention was to protect
habitat for grey nurse sharksand,as you'd expect with all scientific information, it evolves over time and we get
better information. So my understanding with that particular location is that the grey nurse sharks are actually
potentially in a different location around the island.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Could you please provide the evidence or science that you're basing that
on? Because,asfarasIunderstand andrecall, the decision by Mr Constance and Minister Marshallin 2019 wasn't
based on any science or evidence. It was purely based on politics. But if you've got some science since then, that
would be much appreciated.

SEAN SLOAN: Yes, I'm happy to provide that information.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: When I look at the website of the DPI for the grey nurse shark Priorities
Action Statement, the webpage that has that Priorities Action Statement actually states at the bottom that the
Priorities Action Statement actions for grey nurse sharks are taken from the approved Commonwealth recovery
plan for this species and that the department will be responsible for implementing only those actions of relevance
to New South Wales. That is confusing to me because under the Fisheries Management Act there is the
responsibility to havein place a Priorities Action Statement. The grey nurse shark is critically endangered, yet at
a Statelevel it seemsthatwe don'thavea Priorities Action Statementin place. We're relying on a Commonwealth
one. Indeed, it is very unclear, when looking at this, exactly whatactionsthe New South Wales Government has
to enforce to protect the grey nurse shark. What's going on with threatened species management within the
department? Honestly, it doesn't seem to be prioritised.

SEAN SLOAN: No, that'snottrue. As I mentioned, we've got a team of people that work on threatened
species and, with respect to the grey nurse shark, there are 11 areas that are designated as critical habitats—

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Which has been the case forabout two decades now.
SEAN SLOAN: Yes.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Infact,atleast. Thatis when I kind of first became aware of this issue and
was active on it atthe Nature Conservation Council. For atleast 20 years we've known about critical habitat areas
and the department has known about that as well. Right now it doesn't seem as though there is an in force,
up-to-date Priorities Action Statement—a plan—to protect the critically endangered grey nurse shark, which we
know former politicians like Bob Carr have called the labrador of the ocean. Why is that the case?

SEAN SLOAN: I'm happy to look into that, Ms Fachrmann,and look at the issue of what our plansare.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Surely it's one of the most iconic species. It is like if you came here from
the environment department and didn't know how to answer questions about the koala recovery plan, the Koala
Strategy. I mean, surely this is not rocket science for your department.

SEAN SLOAN: What I'm explaining is thatthere is a planin place. I mean,there are a whole range of
areas which are designated as critical habitat forgrey nurse sharks. There are 11 of them.I canread them out if
you'd like me to. That is a key part of the plan—

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: I know what the critical habitat areas are. I'm very well aware of those.
Just one last question—

SEAN SLOAN: So we are dealing with grey nurse sharks.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Whatis the department doingto ascertain the numbers of grey nurse sharks
and whether they are recovering in number, considering they are critically endangered and considering your
responsibilities under the Act?

SEAN SLOAN: There are indications thatthe population is recovering and I'm happy to provide those
details, Ms Faehrmann.

Ms CATE FAEHRMANN: Not what the department is doing, though.
SEAN SLOAN: I'm happy to come back to you with those details.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Mr Orr, I justwantedto touch on where we left offin the last session.
We've discussed some of the restructure, people in different positions and how they came into those positions.
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Hasthe restructure of the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development, which was once DPI and
Regional NSW, concluded?

STEVE ORR: What's happened, Mr Farraways, is that the top level—that is, those people reporting to
me—is complete. As [ alluded to before, Mr Sloan, Ms Connell and otherpeople have recently arrived. They will
need to think about their structures in terms of what sits beneath them. That will be a matter forthem, which they'll
be considering over the coming months.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Holistically, as the secretary for DPIRD now, how many more jobs
need to go for you to meet your efficiencies and targets for Treasury?

STEVE ORR: What efficiencies and targets?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Don't you need to reduce your overall staffing structure? We've
prosecuted this through previous estimates with the former secretary, that there are executive director positions
acrossthe board that have either gone or need to go in time. So you're saying that you have yourtop-levelstructure
now set in place?

STEVE ORR: Yes.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: A question, possibly, to Ms Lorimer-Ward, Ms Connell or Mr Sloan is
how long are your individual restructures going to take in your departments or your areas before they are
concluded?

STEVE ORR: I think what you're alluding to is SEB numbers, senior executive numbers, within the
department.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes.

STEVE ORR: We have a target which we need to hit. Thatis well known in terms of government
policy. We have 165 senior executives within the department at the moment. That's what ournumberis. Our target
is 157, so we've got to reduce in terms of a further eight roles, and we've got a couple of years to do that. There's
no busting urgency to get it alldone. As you'd expect—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Are executive directors in that band that you're talking about?

STEVE ORR: When [ say "senior executive band",there are fourbands in the senior executive. One is
the secretary, which is a band 4. Then there's band 3, which are deputy secretaries, a numberof which are here.
Ms Lorimer-Ward is also a band 3. Then there's band 2, which are executive directors, and then there's band 1,
which are directors. In total, we currently have 165 of those bands when all put together.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So you've got eight more positions to be disposed of, essentially, or
moulded into your overall mix to meet your target.

STEVE ORR: Correct, and there's a time period for that—there'sa couple of years—which we'll work
towards, Mr Farraway.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: That's fine. Dr Filmer might be the right one to ask about this,ormaybe
not.It's about lumpy skin, MRNA and foot-and-mouth.I wanted to confirm that, in the event of a foot-and-mouth
or FMD outbreak, we have a "vaccinate to kill" policy. Is that still correct?

KIM FILMER: I'm probably not the right person to answer your question.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Sorry, I'm coming to you on a different question. I got confused, sorry.
RACHEL CONNELL: It's probably more appropriately addressed to Dr Szabo.

STEVE ORR: Isyour question broadly about a response?

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [tis about our current policy around an FMD outbreak.

STEVE ORR: Which is a national framework.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Correct, but if the outbreak were to occur in New South Wales, do we
take the lead on behalf of the Commonwealth, or is that separate?

STEVE ORR: I will let Dr Szabo explain the arrangements but it's coordinated at a national level.

LISA SZABO: Yes. When we havea disease outbreak, if it were to occur, for examplein New South
Wales, then if it's an animaldisease the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development would take
the lead on thatresponse. That means we would start the process of developing a response plan. That plan would
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be taken to a Consultative Committee for Emergency Animal Diseases, which is a collective of individuals from
all the jurisdictions around Australia as well as industry, in particular the affected industry of whatever the
response was, for consideration and agreement in terms of going forward.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Excusemy ignorance, butin the eventofan FMD outbreak, we havea
vaccinate-to-kill policy. Is that still correct?

LISA SZABO: Iwould havetotakethatone onnotice. We don'thave a vaccine in the country for FMD.
We are looking to use messenger, mnRNA, to develop one.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ haveaheap of questions. We will see if we can get through them, but
if youneed to take some on notice, more than happy forthat. Isit fair to say, though, once that we have the mRNA
vaccine for FMD we will no longer need to kill vaccinated animals as the dye method currently used in live
vaccines won't be needed?

LISA SZABO: I understand thatthatthekey featurein using mRNA vaccinesis that you do havethe
ability to distinguish an animalthat has been vaccinated from an animalthat has had the disease.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do you havean update onthe results of the mRNA vaccine trials for
border disease at the EMAI?

LISA SZABO: 1do. From July last yearthrough to May thisyearthe mRNA vaccineshave been shown
to stimulate protective and long-lasting immune response in sheep for the border disease as a model. In August,
just this month,the mRNA vaccine against lumpy skin disease virus was also shown to give a very strong antibody
response in some animalmodels. Similarly, the mRNA vaccines against foot-and-mouth disease virus were shown
to give a strong antibody response in animal models.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: As I understand it—and excuse my ignorance of some of this—we
needed to develop the border disease mRNA vaccine to get the template to develop the FMD and lumpy skin
mRNA vaccines. Is that correct?

LISA SZABO: Yes, it's correct. It was used as a model to see if the mRNA vaccine technology would
work with these sorts of viruses.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: How faroff are we from developing a successful mRNA vaccine for
foot-and-mouth and lumpy skin disease? And the reason I ask is the bit of work that was done by a formerag
Minister and former Government, around August 2023. August 2023, under the former Government, was the
target, wasn't it, to have a vaccine developed here. I don't think we're anywhere near that, are we?

LISA SZABO: No. My understanding is that by the end of this calendar year, in December 2024, we
are hoping to have that proof of conceptachieved for mRNA vaccines against foot-and-mouth disease as well as
lumpy skin disease, bearing in mind that we won't be doing that testing in animals in this country. That will be
done by one of the overseas partners in this project.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: So, just explain that part.

RACHEL CONNELL: Canl add there, Mr Farraway, thatin terms of success, there are also the
requirements that the regulatory authorities in relation to the use of these kinds of vaccines impose. It would be
subject to the Therapeutic Goods Administration and APVMA approving the use of the product.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: To your point aboutthiscalendaryear,it's only atthatpoint that we—
and excuse my ignorance—are at a point where we can then go ahead to test the vaccine, or then to actualy
produce the vaccine—test in animals but offshore?

LISA SZABO: It's toable to test thatit is effective in animalsthat havebeen deliberately infected with
the virus.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Yes, which we obviously have to do offshore.
LISA SZABO: Offshore, yes. Not that it is commercially available.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Are we still in a contractual agreement with, is it Tiba Biotech, to
deliver the vaccines for FMD and lumpy skin?

LISA SZABO: Yes. The collaborators in the development of these vaccines are the Canadian Food
Inspection Agency, the University of NSW RNA Institute, the Friedrich-Loeffler-Institut in Germany, and asyou
said, the Tiba Biotech company in the US.
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The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Have we partnered with anyone else in the developmentor it's still the
same partners that we originally agreed to have a contractual agreement with?

LISA SZABO: To my knowledge, those are the partners in the agreement.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Once we have the mRNA vaccines for FMD and lumpy skin, are we
still planning on manufacturing those vaccines here in New South Wales?

LISA SZABO: I do acknowledge thatthe New South Wales Government did provide a significant
investment of $96 million into the NSW RNA pilot facility, which is now being built at Macquarie University. It
would be anticipated if that were available that potentially those vaccines could be produced here.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: The plan is still to manufacture those vaccines here in New South
Wales? That is still the overall plan—a part of it?

LISA SZABO: Yes. We ventured down this particular path of mRNA vaccine technology, so thatasa
sovereign nation we would have the ability to have these vaccinesavailable,ratherthan be dependenton bringing
them in from other countries.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I havea question around resources. Does the departmenthave all the
resources needed, including the financial allocation, to deliver the mRNA vaccine for FMD and lumpy skin?

LISA SZABO: Yes. Thereis $11.3 million from the New South Wales Government, $8.5 million from
Meat and Livestock Australia and half a million dollars from the Queensland Department of Primary Industries
who have invested in this project and this technology development.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Within the department, do we have a vaccination program or initial
draftvaccination program drawn up in the event of an FMD or lumpy skin outbreak in Australia and do we have
the mRNA vaccine ready to roll out?I suppose you've actually already answered that,haven't you, because it is
December before we can test the effectiveness offshore, correct?

LISA SZABO: That is correct. The mRNA vaccines are not available.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Do we havea draftrollout plan in the event of an outbreak thatcould
occur in our State?

LISA SZABO: I will takethatonnotice. But when we do respond—and there are in Ausvet plans for
lumpy skin disease as well as for FMD. There's quite a considerable amount of detail in that and I'm just not
familiar enough to say whether there is a vaccine policy part in that.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: That's alright. I am happy for you to take that on notice.

RACHEL CONNELL: I justsayagain, Mr Farraway, it is important to note thatthere are obviously
some quite onerous regulatory requirements imposed by the Australian Government that would have to be
complied with.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Of course, butin the event of an outbreak it would be quite sensible for
DPI to have a draft or some form of plan to pull off the shelf, because it is a constant threatthatis never really
going to go away any time soon.

RACHEL CONNELL: As Ms Szabo said, we will takeit on notice. But the Ausvetplanis the national
framework under which that be put in place, so we would act consistently with the national framework.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I suppose from some of the evidence and answers [ have heard here
today,am I right in saying that once we have the foot-and-mouth and lumpy skin mRNA vaccines, do you believe
we would then have the capability to develop a new mRNA vaccine to combat any new animal based diseases
once we havethe initial mRNA vaccine tested and working? Whatis the scope internally, if it all works, for the
next phase, or is there one?

LISA SZABO: I think at present the focus has been on border disease as a model and then on lumpy
skin disease and then on foot-and-mouth disease, because of the threats that exist in those areas just north of
Australia and the prospect of it coming into these shores and then consequently the impactthat it would have on
industries if it arrived. But having that base technology there, that experience in developing those vaccines
presents opportunity to explore further if needed.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Thank you very much. Thatis very helpful. Dr Filmer, I've got an
Animal Welfare League question. I don't know if you can help me with this one, but I would like to know a little
bit more about animal care facilities that could possibly be funded by the New South Wales Government through
DPI. I read in the Animal Welfare League July newsletter thatan animalwelfare facility is being established in
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Orange. Do you know anything about that, and what it does, and some of the funding that might be associated
with it?

KIM FILMER: The Animal Welfare League has branches and groups in various towns. I think what
that would be referring to is a focused group that are members of the Animal Welfare League that are based in
Orange.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: They have promoted thatthisis being funded by the New South Wales
Government, to my understanding, and thatthiswas a trial of a new animalcare facility in partnership with some
funding from the Government. Do we know anything more on AWL funding and any trials? It was raised with
mein this newsletter because people in the AWL in and around the Central West actually don't know much about
it.

KIM FILMER: 1 think what is probably being referred to—and I don't know for sure. The use of the
word "trial", I don't think fits in this space, butit's probably referring to the mobile animalcare grant—the MACS
grant, it was called—that was delivered by the Government probably 12—

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: What was that? The mobile—

KIM FILMER: The Mobile Animal Care Services grant. The Animal Welfare League received over
$1 million forthat,and some of thatwas to run the animal care truck—or vet truck, as it used to be called—into
remote areasto provide services such as vaccination, desexing et cetera for people that weren't able to afford vet
services otherwise, or going to arecas where there was a shortage of veterinary services, so towns that might not
have had a vet service available. I think what you are probably referring to is the MACS grant, as it was called.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: But other than that,to your knowledge, there are no other incentives,
programs or trials going on with the Animal Welfare League?

KIM FILMER: No.
The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Who do I ask about pounds?
KIM FILMER: That might be me.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I'm notan expert on this, and I do acknowledge that there is an inquiry
going. From DPI's view and position, how often are you talking to the Office of Local Government around how
fit for purpose older and existing pounds are, and also a building design and template for the future build and
replacement of pounds in local government areas?

KIM FILMER: There are a couple of things going on in that space. We talk to the Office of Local
Government fairly frequently. As you know, they also have responsibility, under their Minister, for POCTAA. In
terms of pounds specifically, there was a pounds inquiry held earlier this year, I think it was.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: It'sstill ongoing, I think.

KIM FILMER: Yes, and thereport for thatis notout yet. I think, in terms of answering that question,
at the moment the conversation—well, I guess we're waiting for that report to come out.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: I suppose the question for you, Dr Filmer, is this: Is the Office of Local
Government coming to DPI seeking any additional advice or consultation around how to build fit-for-purpose
future pounds on different scales for local councils across regional New South Wales?

KIM FILMER: I'm not aware of any of that consultation with my team.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ havea question regarding Norco. Has the Department of Primary
Industries had any consultation or discussions with Norco, or has Norco or any dairy farmers associated with
Norco and the co-op spoken to the department around NSW Health's decision to withdraw Norco milk as part of
their contract? Maybe firstly to you, Mr Orr.

STEVE ORR: We are certainly aware of the issue, Mr Farraway. Butin terms of what discussions have
actually occurred with Norco, I couldn't really comment.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Isthedepartmentplayinga role,or hasthe department been approached
by stakeholders—anywhere from NSW Farmers to dairy farmersto anyone else internally within government—
seeking your counsel or consultation about this?

STEVE ORR: Thatcould well have happened. There are a lot of people in the department,asyouare
aware, Mr Farraway.In terms of those conversationsbetween any of ourstaffand Norco,and any of ourstaff and
any other agencies, I'd just need to take that on notice.
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The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: You're happy to just take it on notice to see if there's anything else
happening?

STEVE ORR: Sure.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Category B provisions—is the Department of Primary Industries and
Regional Development in any discussions with the Commonwealth Government or your Federal counterparts in
the Federal agencies around category B provisions for the farming sector for the recovery phase and how to
possibly support farming operations across the State in these events?

STEVE ORR: I'm not aware of any conversations, but I just look to my colleagues.

KATE LORIMER-WARD: The agency has been engaging as part of the review that has been
undertaken, which is more universal around the programs thatare in place. But I'd have to take on notice whether
there has been specific consultation around category B.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: Ihavea follow-up question. Can you take on notice what the department
is doing from a department-to-department level from here in New South Wales with the Commonwealth around
disaster assistance for the agricultural sector that reflects the magnitude of the damage rather than whether it
comes from a single or from multiple events? It's one thing, obviously, Minister to Minister, but I'd be interested
to know if we are there fighting with our bureaucratsin Canberra who don't really understand on the ground, to
be frank, like State agencies do, about some of these category B provisions and how we could do things better.

STEVE ORR: We are happy to provide that,noting it is a portfolio responsibility for another Minister,
specifically.

The Hon. SAM FARRAWAY: [ am only looking for the ag sector stuff, obviously.

STEVE ORR: We certainly play a role, particularly the Rural Assistance Authority, through the
provision of that support. But we will take your question on notice.

The CHAIR: I might return to my questioning of you, Mr Sloan. The secretariatis just aboutto hand
out the document I was referring to. For those playing at home, it is an email from Jamie Jones requesting
information on behalf of the Minister's office regarding dot points in terms of compliance, prosecution and fines
regarding the spearfishing incidents in Sydney and Jervis Bay,asthey were trying to pitch a story to the media. If
I go to the response from Dr Andrew Moriarty, he outlines the instances between Cronulla and Jervis Bay.I take
you to dot points two and three, where it states:

Police chose toissuean on the spot fine 0f$500 for taking blue groper by any method other than by line. Fine amounts are set out in
Schedule 8 of the Fisheries Management (General) Regulation, which cannot be varied unless by a change to the legislation.

The third dot point states:

When Police choseto issue the onthe spot fine, Fisheries Compliance can thennot instigate a prosecution or any other compliance
action for this breach, unless the person of interest elects to have the fine heard in court, which they did not do.

Inall the other documents where there are details going back and forth around media releases, holding statements
and information going out to the public on this issue, the explanation as to why you couldn't instigate a higher
fine or take the person to court was totally omitted from any information going out to the public or to the media.

My question is why was such a crucial piece of information omitted from any statements to the media or
statements to the public, given thatthat waslargely whatkicked off a lot of the angst? The question in everyone's
mind was "Why wasn't this person fined more?" You threw it out there that you could fine them upwards of
$22,000 and prosecute, but you never explained why thatdidn't happen.I'm really curious to get an explanation,
given that you had this explanation here, which clearly sets out why you couldn't do that. Why was that not
included in any communication with the media or with the public? I would surmise that if you had done that, it
might have cooled down the situation in the public quite a fair bit.

SEAN SLOAN: Obviously, we provided this information foruse in the media that was occurring at the
time. It was a while ago—

The CHAIR: That information in the documents I've seen never went to any media outlet.

SEAN SLOAN: Itwas a while ago now, so I can't recall exactly, but I think we fielded questions—
I fielded questions—in the last budget estimates session in February on that issue and did explain some of this.
That's my recollection.

The CHAIR: But the documents that were received under GIPAA don't reflect that this information
was actually provided to media and provided to the public.
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SEAN SLOAN: I would haveto take it on notice, Chair. I'm not sure why it wasn't, butit's certainly not
something that has, from my perspective, been hidden. Police were first on the scene. If1 recall, I explained that
it was sort of a holiday period and fisheries officers were at Cronulla the day before, but then they had a planned
operation that took them to another location on the day of this event, so police were first on the scene.

The CHAIR: If you cantake on notice why this seemed to be omitted from any information to media
or any information to the public, that would be great.

SEAN SLOAN: Would be happy to.

The CHAIR: CanlI, with your permission, invite Mr Turnell up? I want to talk about ICOLLs fora
minute.  know he answered some questions about ICOLLs at the last session. For Hansard, ICOLLs means

intermittently closed and open lakes and lagoons. Howmany of them do we have in New South Wales, Mr Turnell
or Mr Sloan?

PETER TURNELL: 1 believe there are about 135 estuaries in New South Wales, about 70 of which
are I[COLLs. Most of them exist south of Sydney.

The CHAIR: So when we're looking at assessing stock levels—I know, Mr Sloan, you've spoken about
it in the past—we assess ata whole-fishery level. Given the distinct environmentalsystems that ICOLLs are and
given that they open and close intermittently, and during those periods of being open are obviously a great
opportunity for spawning of fish, why are we not examining ICOLLs separately in terms of fish stock levels?
Why are we not doing some research in thatspace abouthowthose open and closed time periods are potentially
impactingon fish stocksand how thatis interacting with rec and commercialtake? Are we doing any work in this
space to understand what is happening during those time periods and how we could maybe better manage fish
stocks during those time periods of the opening and closing?

SEAN SLOAN: Yes, Chair. We dohavea piece of work being done on ICOLLs and, obviously, every
one of them is different. I think that's the point you are getting to: how do we manage and how do we inform with
information that we collect how a particular ICOLL should be managed. We do havea piece of work under the
Marine Estate Management Strategy to look atthat.Interms of the detail, obviously with so many of them, as r
Tumell pointed out, it's hard to get exactinformation on all of them, so we use the information that we have from
things like our commercial fishing logbook program to inform what fish stocksare doing in those areas. In terms
of the detail that we have on all of them, I'd have to take it on notice, unless Peter has something.

PETER TURNELL: They all vary. Some are open more often than not; some are closed more often
thannot. You've got species like bream, tarwhine, snapperand salmon that won't spawn inside those estuaries if
they're closed. They prefer the near coastal offshore waters or near coastal waters. Silver biddies, on the other
hand, will probably spawn in a closed system. So getting our heads around what happensin particular I[COLLs,
depending on how often they're closed, is a very important—we're more than happy to work with stakeholders to
improve our knowledge on that in these areas.

The CHAIR: Do youhavea time frame in terms of that body of work, Mr Sloan, that you were referring
to that's being done through marine estate?

SEAN SLOAN: I'm sorry—
The CHAIR: I'm happy for you to take it on notice.
SEAN SLOAN: I'll take it on notice, Chair.

The CHAIR: Can just switch over to the Mulloway harvest strategy? When was the last time the
Mulloway Harvest Strategy Working Group actually met? To give you a helping hand, there are no minutes fora
meeting that was, I think, in December 2023. Sorry, the last meeting was in March 2024, but there are no actual
minutes on the website for it. There is a chair's summary, but no minutes.

SEAN SLOAN: Yes, Chair, I think they have metsince then. I'll haveto takethaton notice, but they
have a process of clearing their minutes and then, once they have done that, postingthem on the website. I believe
they have met since March. That's my understanding.

The CHAIR: Why would it take so long to clear a set of minutes from March 2024?

SEAN SLOAN: Every committee works differently, but usually a process would be that these are
working groups and they would wait until they meet again until they clear their minutes. I'll have to take it on
notice, Chair. I'm not across the detail of all of these working groups.

The CHAIR: Yes, okay. When was the last stock assessment done on Mulloway? Do we know?
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SEAN SLOAN: Yes. It was updated earlier this year, I understand. I'm happy to provide clarification
on that,but we provide stock assessment input to the nationalfish stock statusreport, which happensevery two
years, and I believe we updated Mulloway as part of that exercise.

The CHAIR: Isthat stock assessment public or front facing?

SEAN SLOAN: Yes, it would be if it's part of the national fish stock status report, and I believe that
that is public.

The CHAIR: Would you be happy just to check?

SEAN SLOAN: I'm happy tocheckthat. WhatI cansay,Chair, is thatthatreport does show thatthere
are some signs of recovery of Mulloway. Thankfully,on the back of those two years of significant flooding, that
has helped some activity of spawning with Mulloway and there have been some signs of recruitment into the
fishery.

The CHAIR: Has the Mulloway harvest strategy actually been finalised, or do you have a date for
finalisation?

SEAN SLOAN: The working group has finalised a draft harvest strategy,and the process we go through
is to go through the advisory councils for commercial, recreational and Aboriginal fishing. Essentially, once we
haveall their input, we usually then go out for public consultation. So we're atthe stage where thatdraftis going
through the advisory councils, and it will soon come out for public consultation. It's a complicated species in
fisheries, with its biology, so it has taken the working group some time, but it's not faraway.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Dr Filmer, ['ve got some more questions for you.I knowwe've talked a lot
before about the standards forexhibiting animalsin New South Wales and the factthatthose standardsare very
out of date. For example, the dolphin standards were published in 1994. Has the DPI been doing any work on
updating those standards? Has there been any progress at this point?

KIM FILMER: On dolphins specifically?
The Hon. EMMA HURST: On exhibited animals in New South Wales generally.
KIM FILMER: Not in the last 12 months since the last budget estimates, no.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: It's my understanding that the Coffs Coast Wildlife Sanctuary, formerly
known as Dolphin Marine Magic, has exemptionsto its licence which allow it to keep dolphins and seals in pools
that are much smaller even than the 1994 dolphin standards allow. Is that correct?

KIM FILMER: No, that's not correct.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: What's your understanding of the situation there?

KIM FILMER: My understandingis thatthe pools—there are three dolphins up there at the moment.
The pools that they're being kept in are big enough to house, according to the standards, up to six dolphins. So
they more than meet the standards. The size of that poolis 1689.55 cubic metres. As I said, that exceeds the
minimum size for three, because it's actually big enough to hold six.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Isit possible for the DPI to actually issue an exemption if a facility doesn't
meet certain aspects of the standardsorif it is a small difference, or is that outside the scope of the DPI—or the
powers, I should say?

KIM FILMER: There would be some discretion in terms of the degree to which something was outside
a standard, but the standards are there for a reason. The standards are there to ensure the welfare of the animals
meet a minimum standard.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Concerns have been raised with my office about a particular exhibited
animal facility that travels around the local area and shoots unwanted bobby calves and horses, and takes them
back to the zoo to use as food. Has the DPI received complaints about this type of activity at all?

KIM FILMER: No, I'm not aware of that.
The Hon. EMMA HURST: Not that you're aware of. Can you take it on notice?
KIM FILMER: I can.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Whataboutthoroughbreds? Have you heard anyallegationsthat ex-racing
thoroughbreds are being used to feed animals in zoos?

KIM FILMER: No.
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The Hon. EMMA HURST: Could you take that on notice?
KIM FILMER: I can.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Would that be considered illegal, to your knowledge? Is that something
that would be investigated if that was to come to the attention of the DPI?

KIM FILMER: Are you talking about horses generally or thoroughbreds?

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I'm talking aboutany ofthese animals potentially being shot—unwanted
bobby calves or horses being shot and taken to the zoo for food. Would that be something that you would hand
over to, say, the Food Authority or somebody like that? Would there be concerns with that if a complaint came
through?

KIM FILMER: It depends what the complaint was. If the complaint was around an illegal knackery,
for example, then that would certainly that should be licensed and so would come into the compliance section. If
it's somebody who hasaccess to, say, bobby calves and they're humanely euthanising them and then using them
to feed to zoo animals, that's not breaking the law. It's not illegal to euthanise an animal provided you do it
humanely. It dependson the circumstance, I think, and what the type of animal it is and what the source of it is
and then, provided it's killed humanely, from a welfare point of view that's obviously the objective.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: The numberof primatesthathavebeenused in research in those 2020-22
statistics is quite high—188, I believe—and this hasbeen anupward trend, it seems, in the past three years or so
from the date of those statistics. Do you have any information asto why such a high number of primates are still
being used in experimentation and why that number has gone up?

KIM FILMER: I think there's a little bit of confusion around the use of the word "used". When the
research statistics are reported atthe moment—apart from dogs and cats, which is now reported more fully—the
numbers thatare reported are the usage. A single animalmay beused once, twice, three times in a yearand it gets
counted every time it gets used. The usage of animals in research overinflates the numbers of animals that are
used in research, and that applies across the statistics, except for the dog and cat section, which now has reporting
on the usage as well as the numbers kept. Thatdoes cause a little bit of confusion. In fact, it confused me when
I first started looking at these numbers a few years ago. In terms of the baboon colony, the baboons used,
I specifically had interest in that myself and went to the baboon area and had a look atthem to get anidea of the
numbers. The numbers weren't fluctuatinglike the statistics indicated because it's a usage, not the actualnumbers
kept.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: It's the number of experiments that are occurring that has increased, not
the number of animals that have been used?

KIM FILMER: Yes. An animalmight be used for something really minor one week, and two months
later might get used for something else very minor, and then again two months later, something else. It can be
used more than one,and obviously the more usage you get, particularly in those minor things, the better because
that means you've got less animals being required to be in that situation in the first place.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: But the number of experiments has still gone up. Have we got any
information as to why the number of experiments themselves have gone up then, if it's not the actual usage of
animals?

KIM FILMER: The statistics I've got here around baboons, specifically, are that only five of them were
actually used in research projects and the rest of them were used in breeding and stock maintenance categories.
So you understand from the statistics, they're reported against different types of categories. It's not the specific
experiment. One of the categories is called breeding and stock maintenance.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: That 188 could be an animal that is bred and then just maintained at the
Wallacia facility and never used for research at all?

KIM FILMER: That's right. Exactly. I'm not sure which line you're getting your stats out of, but the
otherthing thathappened in the 2022 statistics was that 40 other primates, which was the description, were actually
chimpanzees and gorillas used in research, but what actually happened was that blood and faecal samples were
opportunistically collected while they were having other veterinary treatment. They may well have been zoo
animalsthatjusthappened to have some blood tests taken while they were havingsome other procedures done as
an opportunistic thing. The number of 40 has been quoted there, so I think that accounts for what looks like an
increase in the numbers of things happeningbecause there was that plus the baseline numberofbaboonsthatare
kept at Wallacia.
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The Hon. EMMA HURST: Whatareyouable totell me about the five experimentsthat youare aware
of? Are you able to tell me any details around those?

KIM FILMER: No. As you know, the animalethics committees oversee the experimentsthatare being
done, so thatinformation isn't reported back to the department. You can imagine with the vastarray of different
types of experiments that are undertaken by all different organisations, it's impossible to try to collate that data,
so it comes back tous in the form of a descriptor around thattype of use as opposed to the actualspecifics of the
experiments. No, we can't provide you with that data.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: The New South Wales Government recently established a Non-Animal
Technologies Network, which is a new expert body that will develop and promote alternatives to using animal
in experimentation. I know that has come from a different portfolio. It has come from the medical research
portfolio. I am just wondering if the DPI or ARRP will have any involvement in that group, or have you been
included in any kind of consultations around how that's going to work?

KIM FILMER: Certainly I was involved initially because that grant for that project, as you know,
started offas a $7 million grant. Early on I had discussions with the department of health around how that grant
should be administered. As you know, it wassplit into two, so $4.5 million was left with the department of health
to administer, which is the partthatyou're referring to. The other $2.5 million cameacross to DPI to be used to
help increase the numbers of animals that are rehomed. That grant is still open; it hasn't been awarded yet. In
terms of the $4.5 million thatthe departmentofhealthis administering, I've had some overview of whatthey're
planning to do and conversations about it early on, but asit's progressed, they've done their part, we're doing our
part, is probably where it has landed.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Orr, in relation to the People Matter Employment Survey thatis conducted
through LLS, in particular, both from the time that you were in charge there butalso now I guess as secretary and
Ms Lorimer-Ward is in charge, havethose results been steady? Have they increased and improved, or have they
decreased and shown a decline in the morale of staff?

STEVE ORR: Are you talking about across the department, Mr Fang, or are you talking about
specifically to Local Land Services?

The Hon. WES FANG: LocalLand Services.

STEVE ORR: Ms Lorimer-Ward may wish to comment. The People Matter Employment Survey is a
survey which goes right across the public service. It's out at the moment and closes in a couple of weeks time.
We've been encouraging staff to complete the survey.

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes, thank you. I'm aware of those things. I'm asking in particular for LLS's
numbers.

STEVE ORR: In terms of LLS's number,I think there was a slight decline over time, but I don't think
that was peculiar.

The Hon. WES FANG: How do you define "slight decline"?
STEVE ORR: I'd need to go back and look at the specific numbers.
The Hon. WES FANG: Can you take that on notice?

STEVE ORR: Okay.But I don't think there was anything which was any different to broadly what
happened within the department. I think there was a decline within the department. The enga gement score—which
is one of the key attributes of the survey—for the department was 68 per cent. I think LLS was a similar number,
either 68 or 69, from memory. I don't think there was any particular change between the department—

The Hon. WES FANG: Seecing as you've taken it on notice, we'll get the exact numbers. I think that's
probably the best thing and then we can have a look at those and I'd appreciate that.

STEVE ORR: Sure. Do you just want to understand LLS over the last couple of years. Is that it?
The Hon. WES FANG: Yes. From your time as CEO.
STEVE ORR: Quite specific to me, Mr Fang?

The Hon. WES FANG: No. I'm just curious so that we can put a time frame on it because [ imagine
you'll have access to that. In relation to the software myLLS, what's the total cost of that package so far?

KATE LORIMER-WARD: I'd have to take that on notice in terms of amount spent so far.
The Hon. WES FANG: If you could. Is it operational yet?
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KATE LORIMER-WARD: There are some modules that are in use but in terms of the complete
program, no.

The Hon. WES FANG: Ifwantto takeit onnotice, that's fine. If you could provide the budgeted cost,
the totalcost to date, which modulesare operational, which modules are inoperative and how long the time frame
is before you expect a complete rollout of the myLLS software, I'd appreciate that.

KATE LORIMER-WARD: Sure.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Orr, did you engage KPMG to review some of the LLS service delivery
issues and the model?

STEVE ORR: I'd need to think carefully aboutthe timing, but KPMG did a number of pieces of work
for Local Land Services I'm going say in 2022.

The Hon. WES FANG: I think it might have been 2023, and after the election. Would that fit?

STEVE ORR: IfI could just finish, I'll just cover off the bits of work. One of which was to look atthe
enabling services within Local Land Services. Those are all the finance, HR et cetera.

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes, the governance model, the communications review and the service
delivery model. Does that sound familiar?

STEVE ORR: There were three bits of work, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: Not four?

STEVE ORR: My understanding is that there were three bits of work.
The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Point of order—

STEVE ORR: One was what I just—

The CHAIR: Mr Orr, sorry to interrupt you, I'll hear the point of order.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Chair, just as a matter of fairness, the witness is trying to answer
and he's being peppered with some form of questions mixed in with statements about what Mr Fang thinks the
answer should be. He should be allowed to just answer the question that he is asked before another one is asked.

The CHAIR: CanlI askthatwedon'tadoptwhatI call the "Mookhey Method" and fire off 15 questions
in one sentence and just allow one question, answer, question, answer.

The Hon. WES FANG: Understanding there were some, did you let the board know that you were
seeking KPMG to do these reviews, Mr Orr?

STEVE ORR: The board?

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes. The LLS board.

STEVE ORR: Yes.

The Hon. WES FANG: You did? What was the budget for those reviews?
STEVE ORR: This was quite some time ago, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: I appreciate that; I'm just asking the question.
STEVE ORR: I'll take on notice what the budget was.

The Hon. WES FANG: My understanding is that the board did not know. When the board were
provided the reviews from KPMG, did they accept those reviews and implement them?

STEVE ORR: One was service delivery, one was enabling services and then there was one other, which
may come to my mind in a minute. In terms of enabling services and the changes which we made regarding
enabling services, that was certainly discussed with the board. In terms of service delivery, that was certainly
discussed with the board. The final piece, which just escapes me at the moment, was more internally facing in
terms of a particular data matter, from memory. I'd need to check my notes in terms of exactly what went on
regarding those ones.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did you put that out to tender, those reviews?
STEVE ORR: There is a procurement framework.
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The Hon. WES FANG: Yes. Did you put it out to tender?

STEVE ORR: Whatever the procurement rules were at the time were complied with.
The Hon. WES FANG: [I'll take that as a, no; it didn't go out to tender.

STEVE ORR: No, sorry.

The Hon. WES FANG: I am just asking the question.

STEVE ORR: You asked but the answer is the procurement process was complied with. Irrespective
of what that process was, it was complied with.

The Hon. WES FANG: Who selected KPMG under that procurement process?
STEVE ORR: Who selected?

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes.

STEVE ORR: Again, I'll take on notice in terms of how we did the assessment.
The Hon. WES FANG: Do you have a history of working with KPMG, Mr Orr?
STEVE ORR: No.

The Hon. WES FANG: No? As in, have you worked with them in a collaborative way in other roles,
prior to your role with LLS?

STEVE ORR: We did a piece of work with KPMG—I'm going to say back in 2020-21. That was
regarding the service partnership arrangement between the department, as it was back then, the Department of
Planning, Industry and Environment.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did you ever work in local government?
STEVE ORR: No.

The Hon. WES FANG: So prior to your history with LLS, you hadn't worked in anotherrole in a
collaborative sense with KPMG?

STEVE ORR: With KPMG?
The Hon. WES FANG: Yes.

STEVE ORR: Going right back,I hada connection with KPMG—I'm going to say2015-16—in local
government reform but I didn't work in local government; i.e. a council, if that's what your point is?

The Hon. WES FANG: No. Sorry, I meant in the field of local government you did some work with
KPMG and then when you were head of LLS, you appointed KPMG without a tender process. Is that broadly
correct?

STEVE ORR: No, sorry, respectfully. Whateverwent on in terms of the appointment process was done
in accordance with the procurement guidelines, whatever that process was.

The Hon. WES FANG: I acceptthat. Mr Chaudhary, could I just put some questions to you. Has
demand for hardwood saw logs decreased or increased lately?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Demand for hardwood saw logs?

The Hon. WES FANG: Yes. Noting that you gave answers previously aboutnot being able to fulfil the
supply contracts, I imagine it will increase, but I'm just seeking your guidance on that.

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: We havecontracted supply. That meansthatthe amountoftimberthatwe
supply to our customers is a set amount per year. I can't comment on the market demand.

The Hon. WES FANG: Which of the hardwood products are driving the highest demand forsawn logs
in New South Wales? What are the key industries relying on these products?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Sure. Saw logs, definitely. Saw logs go into—if you're talking about
hardwood here specifically—building homes, so basically your flooring timber and structuraltimber. Then you've
got your essential products like power poles, bridge girders as well as wharf piles and, of course, pallets to
transport food. Those would be some of the key products for hardwood.
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The Hon. WES FANG: The construction industry's demand for hardwood—things like flooring and
decking and cladding that you mentioned in your answer—is influencing the need for saw logs out of the State
forests, isn't it?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Yes, that's correct.
The Hon. WES FANG: Is it housing that drives the demand forhardwood timber products, effectively?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: It's a combination of factors. Mainly it's the renovations market—or
alterations/additions, we call it—thatdrive hardwood for homes. But hardwood is also used in a variety of other
products,asIsaid, like power poles and yourstructuraltimbers that go into bridges, and we shouldn't forget pallets
that transport food.

The Hon. WES FANG: Of course. I guess it's fair to say that the Labor Government has obviously
made housing one of their key targets so a lack of supply of hardwood timber is really going to impact housing
supply, isn't it?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: It goes into housing construction but not to the same extent as softwood
timber does. Softwood from our forests go more into the structural timber for frames and trusses. Hardwood goes
to a lesser extent for home construction but more for kitchen—

The Hon. WES FANG: Renovations and the like.
ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: ——cabinetry and the flooring, particularly decking and that sort of thing.

The Hon. WES FANG: When activist groups claim that the hardwood division of forestry isn't
profitable, what are they missing there?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: That'sa good question. I think the pointis we manage two million hectares
ofland for the State and we manage it for a variety of reasons. Timber is part of it but we also manage it for things
like fire control, weed management, pest, recreation and so forth. So land managementisa big cost,as you would
expect, for any organisation and any land management agency such as Parks or Local Land Services to incur.
Native forest is the majority of ourland estate so we do spend, I think on average, somewhere between $15 to $20
a hectare in managing the land.

The Hon. WES FANG: What's driving a shortage of hardwood from the State forests?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Specifically for New South Wales, as I was explaining earlier, there's a
numberof factorsatplay that hasprevented us from supplying timber the last financialyearand some constraints
also this financialyear. They are things like disruptions to our operations. Whenever there's a protest activity we
stop operations. There are injunction applications. Native forestry is a contested space at the moment so there's
those sorts of things. Regulatory changes or stop-work orders all have impact as well.

The Hon. WES FANG: Thatwould be the EPA changing the rules at every opportunity thatthey get,
wouldn't it?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: The EPA is the regulator for native forests.

The Hon. WES FANG: Let's assume that Ms Higginson gets her way and gets Penny Sharpe to shut
down the hardwood industry in New South Wales. Where would we get our hardwood timber from?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: States like Victoria and WA have also shut down, or made decisions to
cease,native forest harvesting. The timber, if it is not produced in our publicly managed State forest, will probably
be imported, I suspect. Plantations are an opportunity, but I think we need to understand that trees take a number
of years to grow—at least, hardwood trees somewhere between 30 to 50 or 60 years. We need a lot of land to
establish those plantations—Iland that will be competing with agriculture and other uses.

The Hon. WES FANG: Would it be fair to say that, where you've got other States that are shutting
down their timber industries, that's putting a greater reliance on New South Wales timber and then, where there's
potentialto shut down our industry here in New South Wales, it will mean importing timber from other places? If
we did that, what would be the carbon cost of that timber—to import timber from overseas?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Mr Fang, I can'tcommenton the carboncost, butwhatI cansayis thatwe
manage the forest for a whole range of things. Carbon is part of it. The tree sequesters carbon, aswe know. The
productthatit's converted into stores carbon and,in its place, we have more trees thatare grown. For every tree
we take out, there are about four or five trees that grow in its place and sequester more carbon.

The Hon. WES FANG: Could you describe the current protections that are in place to manage and
protect greater gliders and what happens under the forestry rules at the moment?
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ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: We operateunderwhat is called the coastal[FOAs, which is a set of rules
that was developed by scientists and experts many yearsago. It's quite a comprehensive rule set. It's actually one
of the most stringent rule sets in the world, which I think is a very good thing for us. It gives us that assurance that
our operationsare carried under very strict rules. Recently we had the Environment Protection Authority change
some of the rules specific to the greater gliders, and that meant setting aside more trees, conducting different
searches to protect those species.

The Hon. WES FANG: Forestry in New South Wales is such an important industry, the State
Government must heavily subsidise the industry. Can you provide the details of what the State Government
provides in subsidies to the hardwood division?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: No, we don't get subsidies for hardwood division.
The Hon. WES FANG: None at all?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: No, we don't get subsidies for hardwood division. We get something called
a community services obligation. That's there to fund community projects or community-specific costs like
community firefighting, for example, or providing certain roads for direct community or public access.

The Hon. WES FANG: That's fascinating. I genuinely appreciate that.I would have thought it would
be heavily subsidised, butit's not atall. Canyou provide anidea of what the impact is of illegal protesters? What
impact does it have on harvesting operations? Does it have an impact on the mental health of Forestry Corp
workers?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: It is obviously difficult when—the main pointhere is that we want to make
sure thateverybody issafe,and I want to make sure that we have a safe workplace where our staff can go. They're
doing an honest job. They're implementing the current Government policy, and they should feelsafe in doing so—
our staff and our contractors. Any time there's a protest, we want to make sure thatit'sdone in a safe and respectful
manner. Therefore, we have our forests that are closed when there's an active harvesting operation going on. We
do find sometimes protesters have gone into closed forests that do putthemselves and others atrisk. It does take
a tollon everybody.

The Hon. WES FANG: Those illegal protesters, they do more than just target the forestry; they target
the workers. Canyou provide some context around how they threaten workers in their hometowns? What is the
extent of that harassment?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: Yes. There have been instances where our staff have been confronted in
certain places, particularly in public places. We don't condone any of that sort of behaviour. We do support our
staff because they go through a lot of psychological issues as a result of thataswell. Again, the point is thatwe
want to make sure that everything is donein a safe and respectful way—nothingagainst protesters, of course, but
we want to make sure it's done in a safe manner.

The Hon. WES FANG: On behalf of the Committee, I want you to please pass on our concerns foryour
workers and thank them for the great work that they do.

The CHAIR: Hear, hear!

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Tyndall,in the lasttwo minutes that I have, I wanted to return to you. There
are a number of people who have been watching the broadcast and they've indicated to us that there's—

Ms SUE HIGGINSON: There are three of them.

The Hon. WES FANG: Maybe more thanthree, [ suspect. They've indicated thatthere may have been
some miscommunication in some of the questions I've put, so I'm just going to re-put some of them, maybeina
different way. Did you have any other roles, acting or otherwise, in the office of the secretary before you were
appointed as the acting executive director?

ADAM TYNDALL: No.

The Hon. WES FANG: Without being formally appointed asa liaison, did you spend lengthy periods
of time in the Minister's office after the election outside of what you would consider to be reasonable meetings?

ADAM TYNDALL: You'd need to define "lengthy", Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: Ithasbeenputto me,and a numberof ourstaff,thatthere were periods of time
where the staffin the department were provided updates to say that you would be spending the week in the
Minister's office to help with the set-up. Would that be accurate?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'd need to look at the details of that, Mr Fang.
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The Hon. WES FANG: After you were appointed in the secretary's office, your evidence is that you
didn't spend a period of time helping the Minister in the capacity of helping her set up her office. Is that correct?

ADAM TYNDALL: No, that'snot correct. Could you repeat the question, sorry, Mr Fang? I'm just
having some trouble understanding the premise.

The Hon. WES FANG: I understand. Youareunderoath,so I wantto make sure the question is crystal
clear, Mr Tyndall. Did you spend a period of time after you were appointed in the Minister's office, during the
time the Minister was setting up the office—did you assist with that task?

ADAM TYNDALL: No.

The CHAIR: In the short remaining time I've got, Mr Chaudhary, just picking up on Mr Fang's
comments around psychosocialimpacts of protesters on your workers, have you recently lost any people from the
hardwood division because of these psychosocial hazards—in particular, any managers?

ANSHUL CHAUDHARY: [wouldn't go into specific individuals, Mr Chair, because I wantto respect
their privacy, but we have had a couple of members that have left the organisation.

The CHAIR: That's alll need to know. Thank you, Mr Chaudhary. Ms Connell, whatrecent advice has
been provided to the ACOs regarding biosecurity, given the number of incursions we're having of different
biosecurity threats—varroa mite, threats of lumpy skin, avian bird flu, all of them. What advice has been provided
to the ACOs, the RSPCA or the Animal Welfare League about steps they should be taking before entering
properties to do inspections? I've had several reports from concerned farmers that RSPCA particularly are just
jumping fences, not announcing their presence to the farmer, and traipsing all over their properties, presumably
to respond to complaints or do inspections. Is that something that really adheres to good biosecurity controls?

RACHEL CONNELL: I'd haveto takethe question on notice about whatadvice we have been giving
to the ACOs in relation to the circumstances you're presenting. I'm not aware of those in particular, so I can't
comment on those, but I'll take on notice what advice we've provided.

The CHAIR: I'm sure the advice wouldn't say, "Jump the fence and don't announce yourself."

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Mr Orr, in regards to animals that are potentially accidentally killed in a
shark net, are any of the animals then taken by the DPI for further research if that animal has been accidentally
killed through the shark net?

STEVE ORR: I might direct that question to Mr Sloan.

SEAN SLOAN: I think in some instances they would be, depending on the species—particularly if it
was a protected or threatened species—but not in all cases. I can take it on notice and give you a more fulsome
and detailed answer.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: I havea couple of follow-up questions, and I think you might need to take
them on notice.  am wondering about the numberofanimalsthathave been accidentally killed in shark nets, say
in the last three years, that have then been used in research.

SEAN SLOAN: I would have to take that on notice.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: That's fine. Which department orresearch facility would that go to? I's that
part of the DPI's own research, to your knowledge?

SEAN SLOAN: It would depend. We do have collaborations with universities, and there may be
instances where we've partnered with other research institutions. I'll take it on notice and provide you with some
details.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Thankyou,I really appreciate that. Mr Orr, I think this one is for you but
please hand it on if it is not. At the previous budget estimatesI'd asked the Minister and the DPI questionsabout
cestrum nocturnum. It'sa dangerous weed and it's killed two horses in northern New South Wales thatl am aware
of. The concern is that the plant was still legal to sell in New South Wales, and it was actually being sold by some
plantnurseries. I was advised atthe time that there was work being done to consider whether or not to make the
sale of this particularplantillegal. Isthatsomethingthatyouhaveanyupdatesonorknow anythingabout what's
happened with those considerations?

STEVE ORR: Idorememberthatissue and the loss of those stock.I'll see if any of my colleagues have
a specific update regarding—I think the question was the sale of that particular plant in nurseries and whether or
not it was still allowed or not. We might respond to you on notice unless any of my colleagues have any further
information, but it wouldn't appear so.
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The Hon. WES FANG: Dr Tyndall, just returning to yourappointment, could you outline for me what
tasks and roles you did have in the first two months when you were appointed, and what locations you worked
out of?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'm happy to take that on notice for you, Mr Fang. It was quite some time ago.
The Hon. WES FANG: Where was your normal place of work when you were first appointed?
ADAM TYNDALL: My home office was in Gosford, but we have an office here in Sydney.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did youundertake any tasksin the Minister's office in your first two months
after being appointed?

ADAM TYNDALL: What do you mean by any tasks, Mr Fang? That's a pretty broad statement.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did you attend the Minister's office in the first two months of your
appointment?

ADAM TYNDALL: Yes, I did, but I'm happy to take it on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: Were those times that you were working out of the Minister's office for part of
the day? Did you ever work out of there for the whole day?

ADAM TYNDALL: Mr Fang, I do understand your laser-like focus on this issue.
The Hon. WES FANG: Oh good, I'm glad.

ADAM TYNDALL: I would take that question on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: Did you have a pass for the Minister's office?

ADAM TYNDALL: At which point, Mr Fang?

The Hon. WES FANG: In the first two months after your appointment, did you have a pass to the
Minister's office in 52 Martin Place?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'd need to take it on notice when I first had a pass. It's not unusual for senior
public servants to have a pass for 52 Martin Place.

The Hon. WES FANG: But you have had a pass to the Minister's office. Is that correct?
ADAM TYNDALL: I do have one now, yes.

The Hon. WES FANG: You have one now?

ADAM TYNDALL: Yes, MrFang.

The Hon. WES FANG: How often do you work out of the Minister's office now?
ADAM TYNDALL: I don't work out of the Minister's office, Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: How often do you have to renew your pass?

ADAM TYNDALL: I'd need to takethaton notice. I think it's an administrative thing that's managed
by Martin Place.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Orr, how many of your staff do you believe would have access to the
Minister's office directly?

STEVE ORR: Generally, it would be those staff who attend meetings with the Minister. Basically, it
would be people such as Ms Lorimer-Ward, Ms Connell and Mr Sloan. Basically, band 3 and band 2 staff
members. I wouldn't say it's all band 2 staff members. It would just depend on whether or not those people had
interactions with the office.

The Hon. WES FANG: Mr Tyndall, did you ever attend the Minister's office without first attending
your other office in the office of the secretary?

ADAM TYNDALL: I cantake thaton notice, Mr Fang. Obviously I'd need to check thatso I don'
mislead the Committee. I'll take that on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: Because certainly the questions at the first part of the day indicated that you
weren't at all in the Minister's office. We now discover that you've got a pass to the Minister's office.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Point of order—

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE NO. 4 - REGIONAL NSW



Tuesday 27 August 2024 Legislative Council Page 83
CORRECTED

ADAM TYNDALL: Justto beclear, Mr Fang, I neverasserted thatl was never in the Minister's office.
I was asked a number of questions about whether I set up the Minister's office, and I said that I had not.

The CHAIR: I'll hear the point of order in the 12 seconds we've got left.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: Chair, not only is that a complete mischaracterisation of the
evidence that was given earlier, it's not even a question. It's a statement from Mr Fang.

The Hon. WES FANG: We are getting a lot more clarity now, Chair, as to the depths with which this
may go. We'll follow it up at another time. Thank you, Chair.

The CHAIR: Given the time has lapsed, I won't necessarily rule on the point of order.
The Hon. WES FANG: That's fair.

The CHAIR: I'll throw to the Government to see whether they have any questions for the remaining
15 minutes.

The Hon. CAMERON MURPHY: No questions, Chair.

The Hon. GREG DONNELLY: Not at this stage.

The CHAIR: This is the only stage you get, Mr Donnelly. Speak now, or forever hold your peace.
The Hon. GREG DONNELLY: No. We have no questions, Chair.

STEVE ORR: There are a couple of mop-up issues, if we could deal with those?

The CHAIR: Sorry, I forgot my favourite segment: clear the homework. Let's go.

STEVE ORR: I might go to Ms Connell first.

RACHEL CONNELL: In relation to Mr Farraway's question about vaccinate to kill, in the eventofa
lumpy skin disease or foot-and-mouth disease incursion, the decision to vaccinate or not would be made in
conjunction with the Consultative Committee on Emergency Animal Diseases, which is a nationalbody chaired
by Australia's chief vet, which provides technical advice in the event of emergency animaldisease outbreaks. In
relation to the Deputy Chair's question about how was the forced swim test bill communicated by the department
once it was assented to, it was communicated in three ways: Information was published on our website,
information was published on the Animal Ethics Infolink website and also disseminated to stakeholders through
an animal research circular newsletter.

SEAN SLOAN: Chair, youaskeda question about how many vehicles our Fisheries compliance team
had. The answeris that we currently have 66 vehicles that the Fisheries compliance unit uses. Mr Farraway asked
a question abouthow many applications there were for the biosecurity commissioner role—there were 11—and
how many there were for the Agriculture Commissioner. There were six. Ms Faehrmann asked some questions
about the threatened species unit within the Fisheries division and how many staffthere were. There are actually
currently nine staff in that team. They work with our Fisheries compliance and Fisheries research team.

That area of our business is a collaborative effort, but there are nine dedicated staff. There was also a
question about threat abatement plans and Priorities Action Statement. There was a move some time ago for the
adoption of a common assessment method, which was a collaborative effort with the Commonwealth around
threatened species management. We moved away from threatabatement plans to the use of the Priorities Action
Statement. We do have Priorities Action Statement either finalised orin draft form forallof ourthreatened species,
but it does appear that we do need to do some work to update our website. I will certainly look into that.

On the questions about Mulloway Harvest Strategy, the working group did, in fact,meet last in March,
on 18-19 March. The process they go through is thatthey adopt their minutes at the following meeting, so that's
why there is a delay. I'll take that on notice and look into whether or not they can be finalised any sooner, but
that's the working group's process. The stock assessment report for Mulloway was finalised late last year, it is
public and it's part of that national fish stock assessment process, so it's on the website and we can certainly
provide—

The CHAIR: Your website or the national website?

SEAN SLOAN: It would be on the national website, but we havea link to thatso we can provide that
as well. In terms of the management of ICOLLs, we do have a project that was funded under the Marine Estate
Management Strategy. It's led by DPIRD, but has partners, you know, partnered with DCCEEW and other
agencies. [t wasabout getting consistency in management and approvalsacross [ICOLLs and it was auditing where

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE NO. 4 - REGIONAL NSW



Tuesday 27 August 2024 Legislative Council Page 84
CORRECTED

we're at with I[COLL managementacrossthe State. There are over 60 thatare in that process and there's a report
that isn't finalised yet, that's pending, so that's the response to that one.

The CHAIR: Thank you. Any other?

STEVE ORR: Justa quick couple from me, Chair, if there are no others. We did get asked this morming
whether we can divulge the details of the people Mr Sloan alluded to in terms of the applicants forthose particular
roles and the advice we've got back is, no, we can't,because it's private information. Secondly, Mr Fang, the third
bit from KPMG was a data review, to your question earlier.

The Hon. WES FANG: Are you sure there weren't four?
STEVE ORR: No.
The Hon. WES FANG: Okay.

STEVE ORR: Well, I mean there could well have been,I'll confirm it on notice, butI only recall three.
My recollection is that I wasn't the decision-maker regarding the appointment of KPMG. In fact, the only time
I canrecall being the decision-makerwas with that piece on the service partnership agreement, which I alluded to
before, but I'll confirm that on notice.

The Hon. WES FANG: I appreciate it.
The CHAIR: Anything else?

KIM FILMER: I've got a couple here. There was a question from Ms Hurst about whether Centenary
had received correspondence about smoking experiments. There was a research circular sent out on 5 April, so
they have received that.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, it was the otherway around: Had the panelreceived correspondence
from Centenary?

KIM FILMER: Okay. We'll take that back on notice then and sort that out. There was another one
around whether the statistics are communicated to research facilities. Again, thatwas in a research circular on 5
August 2024 to inform them that the 2022 statistics were available on the Animal Ethics Infolink website.

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Sorry, what was that question related to?

KIM FILMER: According to this, animaluse statistics. The question was: Are you aware what has
been communicated to research facilities?

The Hon. EMMA HURST: Is that about the change, having to report about cephalopods and
crustaceans?

KIM FILMER: No, I've got thatasa separate thing, but I'll take that on notice so I can get it right for
you and make sure they're the right questions and answers, thanks.

The CHAIR: Thank you very much for yourtime and your candour.I believe you'vestill taken quite a
few questions on notice, despite clearing the decks a bit at the end, so the Committee secretariat will be in touch
with you in the time frame to get those answers back to us. Thank you once again for yourtime and enjoy the rest
of your afternoon.

(The witnesses withdrew.)

The Committee proceeded to deliberate.
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